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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 03 MAY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Son i ,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Mr  Montana.   Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Mr  Cha i rperson  may I  apo log i se  we are  

s ta r t ing  about  ha l f  an  hour  la te  i t  seems the re  was a  b i t  o f  

a  m iscommunica t ion  Mr  Montana  knew he was coming 

toady but  thought  he  was on s tandby and d id  no t  rea l i se  i t  

wou ld  be  the  normal  t ime ten  o ’c lock .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:   That  seems to  be  a  m isunders tand ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   The one th ing  

wh ich  works  in  your  favour  Mr  Montana is  tha t  s ince  you  

s tar ted  tes t i f y ing  you have been very  coopera t ive  w i th  the  

commiss ion  so  your  t rack  record  speaks fo r  you.  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you –  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They a lways say i t  i s  good to  c rea te  a  

good reco rd  fo r  yourse l f  because  i t  speaks fo r  you even 

when you canno t  speak fo r  yourse l f .   Okay a l r igh t  bu t  20 

thank you fo r  –  fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  and I  know tha t  i t  was 

shor t  no t ice  bu t  we apprec ia te  tha t  you were  ab le  to  ava i l  

yourse l f .  Okay a l r igh t .   I  th ink  le t  us  do  the  oa th .   Ja .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MONTANA:   Tshepo Lucky Mon tana.  
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REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MONTANA:   Not  a t  a l l .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR MONTANA:   I  d .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  10 

MR MONTANA:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Yes Mr  Son i .  

ADV SONI  SC:   As  you p lease Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Mr  Montana you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  on  the  

prev ious occas ion  you were  here  we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Ngoye you have reca l led  and we had dea l t  

w i th  the  a l legat ions she makes in  parag raph 19.   You reca l l  

tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   I  reca l l  Cha i r.   May I  –  May I  th rough you 20 

Cha i r  jus t  ra i se  one th ing?  Go back to  15 .13 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   15?  

MR MONTANA:   15 .13 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And 15.13 and 15.14 I  th ink  i t  i s  jus t  one 
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th ing  Mr  Son i  I  d id  ra ise  i t  the  las t  t ime and requested the  

commiss ion  to  f ind  the  copy o f  the  le t te r  o f  suspend ing  Mr  

Mar t in  Chauke and I  th ink  I  sa id  look  I  wanted to  –  to  

remind myse l f  and Cha i r  I  have s ince  come ac ross  –  i t  is  

no t  the  same le t te r  bu t  a  d ra f t  le t te r  by  –  and I  w i l l  fo rward  

tha t  to  you –  be tween the  le t te r  i t  i s  because i t  i s  

apparent ly  s igned by  the  la te  Ms  Hope Z inde and  i t  had 

noth ing  to  do  I  th ink  the  commiss ion  w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  has  

go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  ( ta lk ing  over  one another ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  have not  seen i t .  10 

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  no  I  w i l l  fo rward  tha t  Cha i r  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   The le t te r  speaks  about  o the r  th ings about  

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh tha t  a re  no t .  

MR MONTANA:   ( Inaud ib le ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So  I  wanted to  jus t  remind myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   To  pu t  tha t  to  res t  ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And –  bu t  I  th ink  a  s igned copy tha t  20 

hopefu l l y  tha t  Mr  Chauke w i l l  p rov ide  tha t  to  the 

commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Because I  have  got  the  dra f t  bu t  I  s t i l l  

fo rward  tha t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   00 :01 :03 Cha i r  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Mr  Montana I  am gra te fu l  you po in ted  tha t  

ou t  what  I  thought  we wou ld  do  is  a l l  the  mat te rs  tha t  a re  

sought  o f  so  in  d ispute  and where  you have  ra ised  

concerns we w i l l  dea l  w i th  them a t  the  end o f  ou r  –  Ms  

Ngoye ’s  and Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  repor ts .   Then –  you know 

then we know tha t  we have dea l t  w i th  –  we have dea l t  w i th  

a l l  the  mat te rs  you have been ca l led  fo r  and those  w i l l  be  10 

the  00 :04:41 o f  tha t  a f f idav i t .   But  –  bu t  we in tend coming  

to  i t .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you.   Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Now you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  in  paragraph 19 

we dea l t  w i th  the  MM2 which  was  the  le t te r  tha t  was sent  

to  Mr  D ing iswayo  as  we l l .   Do you reca l l  tha t  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:   We dea l t  w i th  i t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  spoke a t  length  on  the  mat te r  yes .  

ADV SONI  SC:   Yes.   A l r igh t .   Now I  jus t  want  to  go  then to  20 

paragraph 20 the  –  and th is  i ssue  too  we dea l t  w i th  when  

we cons ide red Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  a f f i dav i t  tha t  you d i smissed 

Mr  D ing iswayo and we have been  th rough tha t .   And then  

we know tha t  Ms Ngoye ca l l ed  you and there  was a 

conversa t ion  be tween you and her  tha t  d id  happen r igh t?  
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MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   And one o f  the  th ings she says i f  you  tu rn  

to  page 289 is  she sa id  to  you tha t  the  d ismissa l  o f  Mr  

D ing iswayo was  s im i la r  to  the  mat te r  re la t ing  to  Mr  

Chauke.   D id  she  te l l  you  tha t  on  the  18 t h?   I f  you  look a t  

the  four th  l ine  she says:  

“ I  to ld  Mr  Montana tha t  I  am dea l ing  w i th  a  

repeat  o f  how he  had dea l t  w i th  Mr  Chauke  

when I  was in  in te r  –  I  was a t  In te rs i te  and  

i t  was not  acceptab le . ”  10 

D id  she te l l  you  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  Cha i r  no t  in  those exact  –  in  those  

exact  te rms not  ment ion ing  Mr  Chauke as  i t  were  bu t  she 

was –  she was unru l y  –  she was unru ly  Cha i r  –  she was 

insubord ina te .   Her  conduct  was very  bad.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Okay.   But  she d id  no t  te l l  you  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   Not  those spec i f i c  words no  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Okay.   D id  she ment ion  Chauke?  

MR MONTANA:   No not  a t  a l l  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   And… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  she –  wou ld  you say she may have 

sa id  i n  essence in  d i f fe ren t  te rms what  she puts  in  th is  

tense he re?  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  I  th ink  Cha i r  I  th ink  ( inaud ib le ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  
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ADV SONI  SC:   As  you p lease Cha i rperson I  am gra te fu l  

fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Now Then she says tha t  she sa id  she –  

you shou ld  have engaged w i th  her  and tha t  she had  

approved o f  a l l  Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  dec is ions.   D id  she te l l  

you  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r  she  d id  no t  say  tha t .   Cha i r  

you see we d id  no t  even d iscuss  a t  length  because I  had 

another  schedu led  meet ing  and I  d id  ind ica te  to  Ms Ngoye  10 

tha t  I  am hav ing  a  meet ing  w i l l  d iscuss the  mat te r  once I  

am done in  the  meet ing  or  tomor row and tha t  i s  when she 

re fused and she became unru ly.    

And –  and e f fec t i ve l y  and I  th ink  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  

length  in  my a f f idav i t .   She then was dar ing  me to  f i re  her  

–  you a re  f i r ing  me –  you f i red  my genera l  manager.   Wel l  I  

reminded her  the  genera l  manager  appo in ted  by  the  Group  

CEO and f i red  the  Group CEO.    

But  I  then inv i ted  her  to  say look come le t  us  the  

fo l low ing day and inv i ted  her  to  a l l  the  issues she was 20 

ra is ing  in  pass ing  in  end I  ask  her  pu t  them in  b lack  and 

wh i te  I  want  to  see them because  I  was hear ing  some o f  

those th ings fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.    

So I  th ink  the  D ing iswayo d ism issa l  i t  seems to  

have un leashed someth ing  e lse  Cha i r.   I  sa id  pu t  tha t  in  
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b lack  and wh i te  show us some coopera t ing  and she kept  on  

say ing  we l l  I  th ink  you jus t  f i re  me.   And I  sa id  we l l  you –  

tha t  i s  what  you are  ask ing  fo r  tha t  i s  what  you w i l l  ge t  and 

then I  inv i ted  her  to  come and see me tomorrow and sa id  

look I  w i l l  take  ac t ion .    

I  have asked you to  pu t  the  th ings in  b lack  and  

wh i te  you have s t i l l  to  do  tha t .  Kep t  on  hav ing  a  –  she was 

sc reaming Cha i r  she was comple te ly  d isorder  bu t  th is  was  

someone who you cou ld  see tha t  she –  when someone is  

dar ing  you in  tha t  way she – and I  knew a t  tha t  t ime 10 

cons is ten t  w i th  my emai ls  and Mr  Son i  the  ema i ls  tha t  I  

had wr i t ten  about .  So there  was a l l  tha t  background.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About  the  campaign.  

MR MONTANA:   So  you –  about  the  campaign tha t  there  

were  a l l  these th ings and here  is  the  pe rson who is  dar ing  

her  immedia te  boss –  I  even sa id  pu t  them in  b lack  and 

wh i te  le t  us  d iscuss tha t  the  fo l low ing day.   She s t i l l  de f ies  

tha t .  I f  I  den ied  her  an  oppor tun i ty  I  wou ld  unders tand tha t  

i f  she  says I  t r ied  to  ra ise  the  issues w i th  Mr  Montana he 

d id  no t  want  even  to  hear  me.    20 

I  sa id  to  her  and  aga in  tha t  de ta i l  I  p rov ide  in  my  

a f f idav i t  –  I  sa id  to  her  pu t  i t  in  b lack  and wh i te  le t  us 

d iscuss those.   And she was no she was on a  warpath  and  

her  cons is ten t  th ing  you see in  the  le t te r  tha t  she 00:09:58 

she then kept  on  say ing  then f i re  me then because  you – i t  
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i s  qu i te  c lear  tha t  you do not  want  me.  And fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime she says we l l  th is  i s  –  th i s  i s  qu i te  c lea r  tha t  I  am 

be ing  pun ished f rom my days a t  In te rs i te  wh ich  are  no t  –  

wh ich  a re  no t  even re la ted  Cha i r  tha t  00 :12 :27 her  

movement  f rom I  th ink  I  have exp la ined tha t  move f rom 

In ters i te  to  the  PRASA Corpora te  Off i ce  as  i t  were .    

So Cha i r  she was –  she was comple te ly  –  she was  

unru ly,  un-coopera t ing  and she da red me to  f i re  her  and I  

accepted her  inv i ta t ion  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   A l r igh t  so  can I  jus t  unders tand when you 10 

ta lked to  her  on  the  phone on the  18 t h  you had to ld  her  you 

are  go ing  to  f i re  he r.   You had to ld  he r  tha t  she must  come 

on the  fo l low ing  day because you a re  f i r ing  her  in  tha t  

phone ca l l .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes no ,  no  tha t  even ing  I  d id  te l l  her  tha t  

she –  we l l  she i s  ask ing  fo r  i t .   She d id  no t  say  i t  once,  she 

d id  no t  say  i t  tw ice  –  every  t ime she jus t  kept  on  say ing  

then f i re  me and  I  took  a  dec is ion  tha t  here  is  a  person 

who –  he re  is  an  execut ive  who –  who conducts  herse l f  in  

tha t  way and I  th ink  Cha i r  in  my –  in  one o f  my documents  20 

I  am not  su re  i f  I  have a t tached i t  ins ide  I  w r i te  a  le t te r  to  

the  cha i r  o f  the  –  o f  the  Remunera t ion  and HR Commi t tee  

o f  the  board  to  exp la in  the  c i rcumstances a round  her,  Mr  

D ing iswayo and someone e lse .    

So I  dea l t  w i th  i t  in  tha t  way but  she –  because a t  
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tha t  t ime I  cou ld  no t  jus t  f i re  her  bu t  she gave me a  reason 

to  f i re  he r.   She sa id  f i re  me because she was –  she was 

def ian t ,  she was d iso rder ly  and i t  was someone who says  

look I  am not  go ing  to  ac tua l l y  respect  you r  au thor i t y  as  

CEO and she was  put t ing  me to  the  tes t .    

For  me she was mak ing  a  c lear  s ta tement  I  am no  

longer  p repared to  work  w i th  you.   I  am no longer  go ing  to  

respect  your  pos i t ion .   So Cha i r  I  took  ac t ion  on  tha t  bas is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now befo re  tha t  d iscuss ion  be tween the 

two o f  you was the  pos i t ion  tha t  –  in  o ther  words  be fore  10 

she s tar ted  dar ing  you say ing  f i re  me was the  pos i t i on  tha t  

you were  go ing  to  f i re  he r  in  any  event  because you saw 

her  as  pa r t  o f  tha t  campaign –  i t  was jus t  a  mat te r  o f  t ime 

but  when she sa id  f i re  me and  repeated tha t  then you 

dec ided I ’ l l  do  i t  now then?  Or  was the  –  or  what  was the  

pos i t ion?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  p robab ly  in  my mind and I  want  to  

re f lec t  to  the  Cha i r  and the  commiss ion  my honest  –  the  

way –  my s ta te  o f  m ind a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime I  had taken a  

f i rm v iew about  some o f  the  team members  who were  no  20 

longer  focuss ing  on  what  we had agreed upon  as  an  

organ isa t ion  and  they were  runn ing  beh ind  the  campaign  

and the  se lec t ing  cer ta in  cont rac ts  and leav ing  o the rs  and 

do ing  a  who le  range o f  o the r  th ings.   So my mind  was –  

was mind was fac t  was made Cha i r  bu t  I  wou ld  no t  say  
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because you know when you run  an organ isa t ion  espec ia l l y  

an  organ isa t ion  as  b ig  as  PRASA you are  manag ing  

d i f fe ren t  in te res ts .    

I  w i l l  te l l  you  Cha i r  tha t  there  a re  many ins tances 

where  I  ge t  angry  w i th  peop le  and I  take  a  v iew tha t  they  

shou ld  be  f i red .   Some o f  them wou ld  run  beh ind  my back  

and run  to  the  cha i rman and a t  tha t  t ime Mr  Buthe lez i  –  Mr  

Buthe lez i  w i l l  then inv i te  me and say come le t  us  have 

d inner.   We wi l l  have d inner  we  ta lk  and we ta l k  about  

o ther  th ings and he w i l l  say  there  is  th is  s i tua t ion .    10 

And then he w i l l  say  to  me –  and g ive  me cogen t  

reasons and say  look I  th ink  maybe cha i r  you a re  over-

react ing  you are  no t  dea l ing  w i th  the  issue and w i l l  counse l  

me and say I  th ink  you shou ld  dea l  w i th  i t  d i f fe ren t ly.   So – 

so  somet imes I  do  take  a  v iew but  i t  does not  mean tha t  

v iew wou ld  be  rea l i sed because  an organ isa t ion  you have 

one on one meet ings –  peop le  do  present  and te l l  you  I  d id  

th is  because I  thought  123.    

But  th is  one was invo lved in  wrongdo ing  and I  –  and 

I  inv i ted  he r  to  s i t  w i th  me as an  execut ive  and she def ies  20 

me and she asked me to  f i re  her.   So yes I  had made up 

my mind tha t  she  can see the  tone  in  my emai l  bu t  whethe r  

u l t imate ly  she was go ing  to  be  f i red  or  no t  Cha i r  I  wou ld  

no t  say  w i th  cer ta in ty  because I  th ink  tha t  a  lo t  o f  th ings  

had t ransp i red .    
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So  I  wou ld  pu t  –  I  th ink  tha t  w i l l  –  tha t  wou ld  have 

been -   you are  manag ing  d i f fe ren t  in te res ts  somet imes you  

want  to  un i te  the  organ isa t ion ,  you  want  to  un i te  the  teams 

tha t  the  execut ive  i s  leav ing  and there fore  –  and there fo re  

you cons ide r  a l l  o f  those fac to rs .    

I s  i t  u l t imate ly  in  the  in te res t  o f  the  organ isa t ion  bu t  

we were  fac ing  a  s ta te  o f  pa ra lys is  because  o f  the  

campaign and Cha i r  I  had reso lved in  my head i f  I  s tayed 

in  PRASA beyond tha t  per iod  probab ly  most  o f  these 

peop le  some o f  them wi l l  come here  sa id  a  who le  range o f  10 

th ings a t  the  commiss ion .   Some o f  them in  fac t  have even  

done wors t  th ings tha t  what  Ms Ngoye has done.  Some o f  

them a re  Cha i r  ins tead o f  f i r ing  I  ca l led  the  pe rson on one  

on one meet ing  and I  sa id  PRASA 00:15:43 does not  

be long to  me does not  be long to  my fa the r  and i f  had i t  –  i t  

was my fa ther ’s  company I  wou ld  probab ly  wou ld  have  

th rown you out  o f  the  company yes terday.    

Mr  Ho le le  came here  Cha i r  he  d id  wrong th ings bu t  

–  bu t  I  had the  one on one meet ing  I  sa id  you cannot  be  a 

head –  you cannot  be  a  head o f  s t ra tegy loca ted in  my 20 

o f f i ce  i f  you  are  do ing  123 and  not  –  and you  are  no t  

showing even tha t  leve l  o f  loya l ty  bu t  desp i te  tha t  Cha i r  I  

sa id  ins tead o f  f i r ing  –  th rowing you in to  the  s t ree t  I  th ink  

we need to  f ind  a  d i f fe ren t  ro le  fo r  you in  the  bus iness.   So 

you s t i l l  work ing  fo r  th is  company,  you serve  i t  w i th  loya l ty  
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bu t  you cannot  be  the  s t ra tegy o f f i cer  who l ies  to  me or  

you know I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  th is  mat te r  and deta i l  when we  

dea l  w i th  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  mat te r  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Because I  those issues come in  tha t  

contex t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  d id  no t  f i re  he r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So  i t  was not  th is  th ing  tha t  you have th is  10 

guy who was f i r ing  eve rybody,  who was so  sense less .   I  

fo l low –  I  l i s ten  to  reason Cha i r  and in  some ins tances  

these peop le  had  access to  the  board  and they w i l l  te l l  –  

they w i l l  lobby board  members  and board  members  wou ld  

ask  me and somet imes they w i l l  say  to  me we th ink  you 

must  reverse  tha t  dec i s ion  or  we th ink  you must  no t  go  tha t  

rou te .   Because the  board  is  there  is  counse l  you.    

So Cha i r  I  was not  th is  a l l  power fu l  person who was 

push ing  eve rybody out  o f  the  way as  presented  in  th is  

a f f idav i t .   No i t  is  no t  cor rec t .   So I  w i l l  say  in  a  nu tshe l l  20 

Cha i r  my mind was made but  whether  she was go ing  to  

leave PRASA or  no t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink  i t  was s t i l l  dependent  on  a  who le  

range o f  o the r  fac tors .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.   Mr  Son i .  

ADV SONI  SC:   As  you p lease Cha i r.   Now in  the  next  

parag raph,  parag raph 21 Ms Nyoge says:  

“We met  on  the  19 t h  the  meet ing  s ta r ted  a t  

18 :00  by  18 :05 Mr  Montana to ld  me he was  

d ismiss ing  me wi th  immedia te  e f fec t . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  tha t  was co r rec t .   As  I  sa id  I  to ld  her  

yes  –  the  reason  I  inv i ted  her  was to  f i re  he r.   I  to ld  he r  

tha t .   She knew when she was coming to  me tha t  –  she  10 

re fused the  oppor tun i ty  to  meet  and d i scuss w i th  me.   And 

I  sa id  you must  come tomorrow I  w i l l  g ive  you fac t s  tha t  –  I  

cou ld  no t  have  ca l led  immedia te ly  bu t  I  had another  

meet ing .   She was ac tua l l y  d i s rup t ive  I  had to  go  ou t  o f  a  

meet ing  to  be  ab le  to  t ry  and even ca lm her  down.  She was  

def ian t  Cha i r  and  I  have reco rded tha t  in  my a f f idav i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   Okay I  jus t  want  to  po in t  th is  ou t  to  you Mr  

Montana the  one essent ia l  d i f fe rence between your  and Ms 

Nyoge is  you are  say ing  you to ld  her  on  the  18 t h  tha t  she 

was f i red  she i s  say ing  she on ly  found out  a t  s ix  o ’c lock  on  20 

the  even ing  o f  the  19 t h .   That  i s  the  d i f fe rence between the  

two o f  you r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  w i l l  respect  the  d i f fe rence Cha i r.   Le t  

us  ag ree to  d isagree w i th  Ms Ngoye on th is  one I  w i l l  no t  

d ispute  tha t .   I  w i l l  pu t  my v iew – she w i l l  pu t  her  v iew and  
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ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:   No,  no  bu t  Mr  Montana I  want  to  

emphas ise  th is  t ha t  i s  an  essent ia l  d i f fe rence because to  

an  ou ts ider  i t  makes a  l i t t le  sense  tha t  an  employee is  to ld  

you are  f i red  and comes back to  rece ive  the  le t te r  

d ismiss ing  he r.   So I  am say ing  i t  i s  –  i t  i s  no t  an  

inconsequent ia l  d i f fe rence between the  two o f  you and I  

wou ld  l i ke  you to  re f lec t  –  d id  you te l l  her  on  the  18 t h  o r  

on ly  on  the  19 t h?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r  I  to ld  her  on  the  18 t h  bu t  10 

because I  was in  a  meet ing  the re  was no way I  wou ld  even   

-  because the  meet ing  was in  the  even ing  as  we l l  the  

prev ious n igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   Okay so  we –  we … 

MR MONTANA:   I  wou ld  no t  know… 

ADV SONI  SC:   So  we know now you to ld  he r  on  the  19 t h?  

MR MONTANA:   I t  was on the  18 t h .  

ADV SONI  SC:   I  am sor ry  on  the  18 t h .  

MR MONTANA:   On the  18 t h  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   A l r igh t  and then you gave he r  the  le t te r  o f  20 

d ismissa l  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  –  I  am sor ry  Mr  Son i .  I  th ink  

he  was s t i l l  say ing  someth ing  tha t  m ight  substan t ia te  h is  

vers ion .  

ADV SONI  SC:   O f  cou rse  sor ry.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Because you  see there  are  now two  

vers ions and he is  s t i ck ing  to  h is  vers ion  tha t  i t  i s  the  18 t h .   

I  th ink  he  was s t i l l  substan t ia t ing .   You were  say ing  Mr  

Montana you were  in  a  meet ing  there  is  no  way someth ing ,  

someth ing?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r  I  was t ry ing  to  say tha t  there  

was no way in  wh ich  because we  d id  no t  p lan  to  f i re  her.   

That  i s  the  issue.   I  th ink  i t  l i nks  to  the  –  to  my exp lanat ion  

ear l ie r  on  to  you  Cha i r  tha t  there  was no p lan  to  f i re  her.   

There  was no le t te r  –  w i th  D ing iswayo as  the  team 10 

prepared the  le t te r.   I  want  to  mee t  the  –  I  want  to  meet  the  

–  I  want  to  meet  D ing iswayo –  I  want  to  ind ica te .   So we  

knew there  was a  –  there  was a  process lead ing  up to  tha t .   

Ms Ngoye ’s  dec is ion  was made on  the  events  o f  the  18 t h  I  

made tha t  dec is ion  and I  inv i ted  her  the  fo l low ing –  the  

fo l low ing day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA:   So  I  am jus t  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  wou ld  no t  have prepared a  le t te r  on  tha t  20 

day when she was not  there  –  we are  no t  meet ing  I  was 

meet ing  w i th  o ther  peop le  Cha i r.   But  then we  had a  

d iscuss ion  ove r  the  phone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Son i .  

ADV SONI  SC:   Thank you.   Then le t  us  look a t  MM3 th is  i s  
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the  le t te r  o f  immedia te  te rm inat ion  tha t  appears  a t  page  

319 Mr  Montana.    

MR MONTANA:   319?  

ADV SONI  SC:   Yes.   Have you got  i t?  

MR MONTANA:   I  have got  i t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   You –  in  your  le t te r  –  a l r igh t  f i rs t l y  

th is  le t te r  on  320  is  s igned and i t  appears  to  be  s igns by  

yourse l f ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  i t  i s  my le t te r  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Now you –  you s ta r t  o f f  a t  page 10 

319 in  the  f i rs t  paragraph re fe r r ing  to  the  phone ca l l  and  

the  fac t  tha t  the  –  the  mat te r  concerned the  d ismissa l  o f  Mr  

D ing iswayo and you then se t  ou t  the  ob jec t ion  tha t  Ms  

Ngoye ra i sed and  you say here  tha t  you to ld  her  you were  

engaged in  the  –  in  anothe r  meet ing  jus t  as  you have to ld  

us  th is  morn ing .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Then you say she began to  ra ise  he r  vo i ce  

and demanded your  ob jec t ion  be  –  he r  ob jec t ion  be  heard  

and you say tha t  tha t  amounted to  an  ac t  o f  g ross  20 

insubord ina t ion  wh ich  may a t t rac t  a  d ras t ic  sanct i on  such 

as  d i smissa l .   That  i s  what  your  le t te r  says,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:   I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   And you say:  

“Be tha t  as  i f  may in  l igh t  o f  your  dar ing  me 
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to  request  you to  f i re  –  request  you to  f i re  

her  in  my capac i ty  as  the  Group  CEO in  

v iew o f  your  dar ing  as  an  ac t  o f  repud ia t ion  

o f  you r  cont rac t  wh ich  I  e lec t  to  accept . ”  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   That  i s  co r rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   Then on the  next  page you say:  

“Ms Ngoye proceeded to  make numerous  

a l legat ions aga ins t  you in  unre la ted  mat te rs  10 

inc lud ing  an  asser t ion  tha t  the  dec i s ion  to  

remove her  as  the  Ch ie f  –  her  as  the  CEO 

of  In te rs i te  i s  ma l ic ious. ”  

She ra i sed tha t  w i th  you as  we l l .  

MR MONTANA:   She d id  Cha i r  –  she d id  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .    

“ I  reminded you  tha t  th is  had no bear ing  

whatsoever  to  the  issues wh ich  you ca l led  

me about .   I  v iew  –  I  w i th  a  v iew to  address 

your  concerns requested you put  these  20 

gr ievances and a l legat ions in  wr i t ing .   You  

re fused to  do  so .   Your  re fusa l  and def iance 

to  ac t  on  my ins t ruc t ions aga in  amounted to  

g ross  insubord ina t ion . ”  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    

“Now dur ing  th i s  conversa t ion  i t  became 

c lea r  to  me. . ”   

And you obv ious ly  ta lk ing  about  the  conversa t ion  on  the  

18 t h  –  tha t  i s  the  te lephon ic  conversa t ion?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    

“ I t  became c lea r  to  me tha t  you as  an  

execut ive  a t  PRASA in ten t iona l l y  fa i led  to  

accept  my autho r i t y  as  the  Group CEO and 10 

you addressed  me wi th  a  leve l  o f  

res i s tance,  de f iance and great  d is respect  to  

wh ich  I  caut ioned  you aga ins t . ”  

That  too  d id  happen?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Then you say:  

“The leve l  o f  inso lence wh ich  you presented  

towards me i s  unacceptab le  and not  in  the  

best  in te res t  o f  PRASA.   You have  

repeated ly  reminded me to  te rm inate  your  20 

employment  wh ich  you repeated in  our  b r ie f  

meet ing  th is  even ing . ”  

You see tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:   And tha t  –  so  you say tha t  happened even  
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in  tha t  meet ing?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r  I  am re fer r ing  to  the  18 t h .  Cha i r  

I  cannot  reca l l  whether  on  tha t  18 t h  I  am re fer r ing  to  the  

te lephon ic  conversa t ion  or  we – we ac tua l l y  –  I  do  no t  

th ink  we met  bu t  I  am open –  bu t  I  th ink  we spoke but  th is  

–  th is  le t te r  cor rec t l y  pu t  on  record  what  I  sa id  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Then you go on to  say:  

“ I  am there fore  exceed ing  to  your  demand  

to  te rm inate  your  employment  fo r thwi th . ”  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:   You see Mr  Montana th is  wou ld  suggest  

tha t  the  dec i s ion  was on ly  made  on the  19 t h  no t  on  the  

18 t h .   I  am on ly  say ing  to  you tha t  when one reads the  

le t te r  tha t  i s  what  appears .  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r  you  remember  the  l e t te r  i s  

g iv ing  e f fec t  to  my dec is ion  wh ich  I  had conveyed to  he r.   I  

th ink  –  I  th ink  tha t  the  – the  –  I  do  no t  know how 

s ign i f i can t  –  how mate r ia l  i t  i s .   I  am say ing  in  my 

tes t imony I  am say ing  to  the  commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA:   On the  18 t h  I  have made tha t  dec is ion .   I  

have conveyed to  her  and then I  pu t  i t  in  b lack  and wh i te  

th is  le t te r  co r rec t l y  captures  tha t .   I  do  no t  know whether  i f  

I  had g iven … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  –  we l l  I  was under  the  –  we l l  I  see  
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tha t  you s igned i t  on  the  20 t h  i f  you  look a t  the  –  now a t  the  

end o f  the  le t te r  i f  you  s igned i t  on  the  20 t h  i f  you  s igned  

the  le t te r  the  fo l low ing morn ing  or  the  fo l low ing day a f te r  

the  d iscuss ion  on  the  phone w i th  Ms Ngoye then tha t  wou ld  

tend to  suppor t  the  idea tha t  the  vers ion  tha t  –  the  

d iscuss ion  on  the  phone wou ld  have been on the  19  –  

even ing  o f  the  19 t h .   Un less  –  un less  i t  i s  no t  a  s i tua t ion  

tha t  the  le t te r  came the  day a f te r  the  conversa t ion .  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  I  th ink  probab ly  tha t  i s  what  

happened.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  we d id  no t  have th is  

mat te r  over  a  th ree  day per iod .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So  the  prev ious n igh t  and the  next  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

MR MONTANA:   So  e i ther  the  –  the  da te  may  not  be  

cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Or  v i sa  versa  so  I… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So  I  accept  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  I  th ink  tha t  p robab ly  

reso lves i t .   I f  in  te rms o f  when the  conversa t ion  was i f  you 

say the  le t te r  was s igned the  day a f te r  the  te lephone  
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conversa t ion  then  i t  wou ld  have to  be  the  19 t h .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r  because I  th ink  in  her  own  

a f f idav i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   She s ta r ts  on  the  18 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And then she says we indeed met  on  19  –  

the  19 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And I  cannot  reca l l  why the  da te  i s  the 10 

20 t h  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   So  I  th ink  –  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  I  do  no t  know Mr  Son i?  

ADV SONI  SC:   Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Your  memory  is  f resher.  

ADV SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On these th ings than mine.  

ADV SONI  SC:   So  –  yes –  the  po in t  i s  Cha i rpe rson  what  i s  

c lea r  f rom Ms Ngoye ’s  a f f idav i t  he rs  they had a  te lephone 20 

conversa t ion  on  the  18 t h .   The –  i t  was unhappy  

conversa t ion .   Mr  Montana says i t  was an aggress ive  

conversa t ion .   We can accept  bo th  vers ions i t  does not  

mat te r.   But  Ms Ngoye says she was on ly  to ld  on  the  19 t h  

tha t  she was be ing  d i smissed when she met  Mr  Montana  
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face  to  face .   And Mr  Montana ’s  vers ion  is  he  to ld  her  on  

the  18 t h .   So tha t  i s  the  d i f fe rence  between them and I  am 

say ing  Cha i rperson tha t  the  le t te r  wh ich  ind i ca tes  tha t  

there  i s  a  re fe rence to  the  face  to  face  meet ing  on  the  19 t h  

wou ld  suggest  tha t  Ms Ngoye ’s  ve rs ion  is  cor rec t  tha t  she  

was on ly  to ld  on  the  19 t h  no t  on  the  18 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  in  the  end I  th ink  you made some 

po in t  ear l ie r  I  jus t  want  you to  rem ind me whether  i t  wou ld  

make any d i f fe rence whether  she  was to ld  on  the  18 t h  o r  

19 t h?  10 

ADV SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson what  –  what  wou ld  happen or  

what  –  what  -  who is  th i s?   And I  accept  in  t he  f ina l  

ana lyses no t  much w i l l  depend on but  i t  wou ld  show tha t  

Ms Ngoye ’s  vers ion  is  the  more  probab le  when one  has a l l  

the  ev idence in  hand.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  what  I  was in te res ted  in  i s  

whethe r  i t  makes  any d i f fe rence whethe r  she was  to ld  on 

the  18 t h  o r  the  19 t h  because i t  i s  accepted tha t  she was 

d ismissed.  20 

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  whethe r  she was to ld  

on  the  18 t h  o r  the  19 t h .    On the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  shou ld  no t  

mat te r  bu t  I  maybe miss ing  someth ing .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  bu t  Cha i rperson I  was  mere ly  
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h igh l igh t ing  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  d ismissa l  took  p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  Mr  Montana,  you w i l l  reca l l ,  and 

I  jus t  ask  you to  respond to  th is  Mr  Montana,  and the  

Cha i rperson asked th is  ear l ie r,  you had a l ready made up 

your  m ind a t  the  t ime when you d i smiss ing  Mr  D ing iswayo  

because you sa id  so  on  the  las t  occas ion ,  tha t  you a l so  

were  go ing  to  d ismiss  Ngoye.   Tha t  i s  what  you sa id  on  the 

las t  occas ion .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  was mere ly  say ing ,  Cha i rperson,  

tha t  wou ld  emerge then is  tha t  what  i s  conta ined in  the 

le t te r  i s  in  fac t  an  expo fac to  re f lec t ion  on  why Ms Ngoye  

was be ing  d i smissed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Because the  dec is ion  had been made 

even before  the  18 t h  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .a t  the  t ime Mr  D ing iswayo was 

d ismissed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  why  –  I  am 

s t i l l  no t  sure  why i t  makes any d i f fe rence,  whethe r  i t  was 

on the  18 t h  o r  19 t h  because Mr  Montana says:   We had a  
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conversa t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  f i red  her  because she was inso len t ,  

she was insubord ina te ,  she get  me to  f i re  her,  and I  f i re  

he r.   He says:   Wel l ,  because I  v iewed he r  as  pa r t  o f  that  

campaign,  I  had made up my mind to  f i re  cer ta in  peop le  

inc lud ing  he r.   But  whether  i t  was go ing  to  happen,  I  am 

not  sure  because  somet imes I  wou ld  take  a  dec is ion  and  

then I  wou ld  persuaded,  you know.   So I  am say ing ,  I  am 

not  su re .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe tha t  he  does not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  I  accept  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  can I  say?  No,  I  th ink  the  f i rs t  

po in t .   Cha i r,  the  po in t  I  have made tha t  th is ,  fo r  me i t  i s  

no t  a  b ig  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    I  fee l  l i ke  I  have been cons is ten t  in  te rms 

o f  what  was. . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink  my ear l ie r  response 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   In  te rms o f  what  was in  your  

m ind.  

MR MONTANA :    What  was in  my mind and what  wou ld 

u l t imate ly  happen .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    But  th is  le t te r  i s  spec i f i c .   And Cha i r,  jus t  

to  he lp  Mr  Son i .   I  am say ing  in  the  las t  paragraph.   You 

see,  because –  and le t  me –  and I  am address ing  the  

second par t ,  Mr  Son i ,  o f  what  you are  say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA :    Mr  Son i  –  you w i l l  reca l l ,  Cha i r,  and why I  

am not  –  I  do  no t  want  to  leave th i s  i ssue hang ing  the  way 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .Mr  Son i  has summar i sed i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Ms Ngoye was say ing  she was been  

ta rge ted and even when she was here  a t  the  Commiss ion  

she sa id :   I  am be ing  f i red  or  be ing  suspended – even now 

because I  am the  co r rup t ion  pasto r (? ) .   I  am be ing  20 

v ic t im ised and every th ing .   I  mean ,  she ment ioned a  lo t  o f  

th ings.   Cha i r,  I  –  someth ing  tha t  I  do  no t  accept  bu t  i f  you  

look a t  the  las t  paragraph on the  f i rs t  page i t (? )  say  and I  

am descr ib ing  what  happened on the  18 t h .    

 He –  tha t  i s  –  i t  may –  in  l igh t  o f  you dar ing  me 
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to  request  you to  f i re  me,  I  in  my capac i ty  as  the  Group 

CEO.   Now tha t  sentence cont inues.   I t  cap tures  what  

happened on the  18 t h ,  no t  on  the  19 t h  bu t  aga in ,  Cha i r,  fo r  

me is  no t  a  b ig  issue.   The pr inc ip le  i s  one where  she is  

f i red  and I  ind ica te  the  reason why.   So th is  wou ld  have  

been –  i f  we use  a  d i f fe ren t  word ,  i t  w i l l  be  the  – what  do  

you ca l l  –  the  las t  s t raw,  p robab ly.   I  th ink  le t  us  jus t  use  

tha t  word .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  ac tua l l y,  I  was  th ink ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MONTANA :    That  was the  las t  s t raw but  i f ,  le t  us  say,  

she sa t (? )  w i th  me,  she d id  no t  then.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    She d id  no t  even then knew a t  tha t  

par t i cu la r  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Wou ld  she have been f i red?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  Cha i r  tha t  i s  s t i l l  a  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA :    You cannot  –  un for tunate ly,  you  cannot  

specu la te  about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  w i l l  o f fe r  you someth ing  and you must  

g ive  me your  comment .   In  the  l igh t  o f  how s t rong ly  you fe l t  

aga ins t  peop le  whom you v iewed as  be ing  par t  o f  the  
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campaign tha t  you ta lked about  in  your  emai l  and in  the  

l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  you v iewed her  as  par t  o f  tha t  

campaign and in  the  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  in  your  own mind 

you had made i t  –  up  your  m ind to  f i re  such peop le .   The 

probab i l i t ies  tha t  she was go ing  to  be  f i red  what  happened 

may jus t  have brought  fo rward  wha t  was go ing  to  happen in  

a l l  p robab i l i t y.   We are  no t  say ing  cer ta in ly.   

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On. . .   Wou ld  you  th ink  tha t  i s  fa i r?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  i t  i s  fa i r.   I t  was the  probab i l i t y  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . i t  was ve ry  h igh  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was very  h igh ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    That  she be f i red ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  my mind was very  c lear  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .on  tha t  i ssue,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  reso lves  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Then,  Mr  Montana,  a t  pa ragraph 21,  

she cont inues and i f  I  can  jus t  summar i se  i t .   We do not  

need to  dea l  w i th  i t  in  de ta i l  because I  th ink  i t  i s  agreed 

tha t  they approach the  cha i rperson th is  t ime,  no t  

Mr  Buthe lez i  bu t  Mr  Mole fe .   He asked you to  recons ide r.   

You –  the  de terminat ions were  ended but  they were  then  

put  on  suspens ion .   That  i s  cor rec t?   Both  she and 

Mr  D ing iswayo.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   I t  i s  cor rec t  bu t  I  th ink  the  

–  she was not  there .   Le t  me jus t  share  w i th  the 10 

Commiss ion ,  Cha i r.   We had a  schedu led  board  meet ing .   I t  

was meant  to  s ta r t  a t  ten .   When we ar r i ved,  o f  cou rse ,  

they d id  no t  ra ise  the  issue w i th  the  board .   They  lobb ied  

Mr  Mole fe .    

 So they ra i sed –  they took those le t te rs  to  

Mr  Mole fe  and say:   We have been f i red  and every th ing .   

From myse l f  and  Mr  Mole fe  –  Mr  Popo Mole fe .   We then  

had a  d iscuss ion  be fore  the  board .   In  fac t ,  we de layed the  

board  meet ing  fo r  about  two hours .   Th is  was a  b ig  f igh t  

be tween myse l f  and Mr  Mole fe  and  I  ask  h im:   Why are  you 20 

a  shop s teward  o f  these employees?   

 Employees were  be ing  suspended fo r  be ing  

d isc ip l ined in  th is  company.   You  do not  speak fo r  them.   

Why –  then we had and we were  ho ld ing  the  board  meet ing  

fo r  a  long t ime.   We then reached a  compromise .   And I  
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sa id  no  i t  i s  f ine .   I  am go ing  to  b r ing  these peop le  back  

bu t  I  am go ing  to  then d isc ip l ine  them.   So I  then asked our  

lega l  depar tment  –  our  ER team to  prepare  le t te rs .    

 The one was fo r  me to  s ign  the  d i smissa l .   The 

o ther  one was then to  g ive  them le t te rs  suspend ing  them 

pend ing  a  d i sc ip l inary  ac t ion .   So we d id  tha t  Cha i r.   So i t  

was not  a  meet ing  where  the  cha i r  came and –  we  had a  

b ig  f igh t  fo r  two hours .   And par t  o f  the  issue tha t  I  was 

convey ing  to  Mr  Mole fe  tha t  you  see these employees –  

she is  very  mean(?) .   P rec ise l y  because you are  s tand ing  10 

beh ind  her.    

 So a l l  these wrong th ings a re  now tha t  we have 

a  ta lk  bu t  as  long  as  I  am CEO,  res t  assured,  I  am go ing  to  

ac t  aga ins t  these peop le .   I f  they  do  not  fo l low  lawfu l  

ins t ruc t ions f rom me as the i r  immedia te  boss I  am go ing  to  

ac t . . .   So  the  compromise  was tha t  i t  i s  f ine .   I  sa id  to  h im 

there  i s  no  way tha t  I  can take  them back w i thou t  them 

then fac ing  the  charges,  as  i t  were ,  Cha i r.    

 And tha t  i s  wha t  I  d id  and by  the  t ime I  le f t  

PRASA these peop le  were  in  fac t  s t i l l  under  suspens ion 20 

and Ms Ngoye more  spec i f i ca l l y  she had charges brought  

aga ins t  her  inc lud ing  th i s  one o f  insubord ina t ion ,  i nc lud ing  

many o the r  charges,  inc lud ing  the  S iyagena mat te r.   So 

they were  a l l  under  –  i f  I  remember  we l l ,  fo r  example ,  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  case was se t ,  the  da te  was se t ,  and I  th ink  tha t  
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the  counc i l . . .  

 I  th ink  i f  I  remember  we l l ,  the  name was –  the  

name came and ran  away f rom me aga in .   Now a  da te  was 

se t  Cha i r  –  PRASA.   And what  happened Cha i r  a f te r  I  have  

le f t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Cou ld  she have been lega l l y  represented 

a t  such a  d i sc ip l i nary  hear ing?  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i s  tha t  so?  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  wou ld  no t  be  –  I  wou ld  pu t  –  un less  

i f  a  lega l  representa t i ve  wou ld  say:   We want  the  Group 

CEO.   There  are  ins tances where ,  fo r  example ,  whether  in  

the  d isc ip l ina ry  case or  a t  the  CCMA,  I  have been  ca l led .   

There  is  Kas im.   The sen ior  counse l ,  Kas im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  Advocate  Naseer  Kas im.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.   I t  was the  person who was  

go ing  to  p res ide  over  tha t  par t i cu la r  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  to  p res ide  as  cha i rperson?  20 

MR MONTANA :    As  cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  thought  tha t  you were  say ing  tha t  

Ms Ngoye was go ing  to  be  lega l l y  represented.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  she was ent i t led  to  have tha t ,  

Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  she was ent i t led  to  have tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    She was ent i t led .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was not  a rb i t ra t ion  o r  was i t  a  CCMA 

th ing?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r.   No,  no  i t  was s t i l l  –  you w i l l  

reca l l  Cha i r  I  w i thdrew the  le t te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In te rna l l y?  

MR MONTANA :    I t  was an in te rna l  d isc ip l ina ry  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  10 

MR MONTANA :    Now what  happened Cha i r  i s  tha t  a f te r  I  

have le f t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    . . .and you remember  the  R 57 mi l l ion ,  i t  i s  

a  b ig  to  –  R58 mi l l ion  to  S iyagena mat te r.   I  speak about  i t  

dur ing  my . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  a  b ig  i ssue,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Now a f te r  I  have le f t ,  what  happened,  I  20 

th ink  tha t  PRASA brought  in  Nor ton  Rose,  the  law f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    And they dec la red eve ryone inc lud ing  

peop le  tha t  were  suspended in  the  organ isa t ion  – some o f  

them for  se r ious t ransgress ions,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Some o f  them even about  money.   Peop le  

have s to len  money in  the  company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Now everyone  was on th is  bandwagon 

tha t  no  they were  f i red  by  Montana and peop le  tha t  have  

got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  me who do not  repor t  to  me 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    . . . show(? )  them who are  rear  seats(?)  10 

who are  charged because they have been caught  w i th  the i r  

hands in  the  cook ie  ja r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And they wou ld  re turn (?)  a l l  o f  them on a  

must  s tay  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . came back.   So,  and then those tha t  

remained were  in  fac t  suspended Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    So  you can see  tha t  in  an  organ isa t ion  20 

where  there  is  a  ba t t le  in  the  leadersh ip  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .par t i cu la r ly  be tween the  cha i r  and the  

CEO . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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MR MONTANA :    . . . you  have tha t  k ind  o f  a  th ing  where  the  

organ isa t ion  i s  sp l i t  in  be tween.   And what  i s  the  resu l t?   

The resu l t  i s  tha t  the  opera t ions o f  the  bus iness,  the  mora l  

o f  s ta f f ,  the  d isc ip l ine  co l lapses.   And tha t  is  what  

happened in  PRASA,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Jus t  on  tha t  po in t  Cha i rperson and  

th is  i s  jus t  fo r  the  record ,  no t  to  p lace  a  d ispute .   In  the 

las t  sentence o f  parag raph 21 Mr  Ngoye says tha t :  

“A f te r  the  suspens ion  was l i f ted ,  the  ac t ing  10 

Group CEO,  Mr  Nath i  Khena,  found no 

ev idence o f  m isconduct . . . ”  

 Now I  am jus t  p lac ing  tha t  on  reco rd .   I  am not  – 

I  –  i t  i s  jus t  in  re la t ion  to  the  po in t  you made Cha i rperson  

about  whethe r  there  was an inqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  want  to  pu t  on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    There  was no an inqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR MONTANA :    And i f  somebody  is  charged fo r  i r regu lar  

approva l  o f  R 58  mi l l ion  and many o the r  t ransgress ions –  

one o f  the  charges re la ted  to  –  because when she ac ted  in  

my pos i t ion  in  tha t  December  when I  was on leave,  i t  was 

not  on l y  the  SA Fence &  Gate  mat te r  tha t  she approved.   
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There  a re  a  who le  range o f  o ther  mat te rs ,  Cha i r,  tha t  were  

i r regu lar l y  approved by  he r.   I t  was par t  o f  the  charge 

sheet .  

 Now you cannot  say  because Mr  Montana is  

gone.   The board  has go t  an  ob l iga t ion  to  make su re  tha t  

they ve r i f y  and check and say we th ink  tha t  th is  one is  –  i t  

s tands,  th is  one does not  s tand,  Cha i r.   And I  th ink  tha t  i f  

you  look a t  the  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  you w i l l  

ac tua l l y  see,  Cha i r,  tha t  the  peop le  who were  no t  

d isc ip l ined a t  PRASA,  I  –  the  hear t  o f  what  the  Pub l ic  10 

Pro tec tor  ra i sed.    

 I  do  no t  agree w i th  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  

bu t  i f  you  look a t  what  has happened,  Cha i r,  because the  

repor t  came a f te r  I  have le f t .   So they –  mat te rs  in  the 

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  to  d ismiss  and a  who le  range o f  

o ther  employees and then those tha t  a re  ac tua l l y  

ment ioned in  the  repor t  –  I  mean,  le t  us  take  one good  

example .   I  am not  go ing  –  jus t  to  ment ion  i t .    

 The mat te r  we d iscussed about  the  Pr imed ia  

i ssue.   Who was  cent ra l  to  i t?   I t  i s  Mr  Ho le le .   And tha t  20 

mat te r  i s  ra ised in  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .   Who –  

there  i s  the  mat te r  o f  the  brand leadersh ip .   The  

appo in tment  o f  b rand leadersh ip .   Who is  cent ra l  to  i t?   I t  

i s  Mr  Ho le le .   I t  i s  in  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .   He is  

no t  be ing  d isc ip l i ned.  
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 I f  you  look a t  the  Werksmans ’ repor t ,  i t  

ment ioned the  peop le  who were  pa r t  o f  the  ad jud i ca t ion .   I t  

ment ioned Mr  O l i ver  and Mr  Ho le le  and Ms Ngoye,  a l l  o f  

them in  tha t  o rde r.   Cha i r,  those are  the  peop le  who 

remained a t  PRASA.   So yes she makes tha t  s ta tement  bu t  

knowing and fo l low ing up on a l l  the  de ta i l s ,  Cha i r,  i t  never  

happened.   I t  was bas ica l l y  what  you ca l l  –  I  used 

in te rv iew shop s tewards,  what  they ca l l  no  they used the  

word  but i -bu t i -scheme .    

 So  i t  was bas ica l l y  one o f  the i r  own who is  be ing  10 

brought  in  bu t  to  jus t i f y  b r ing ing  her  in  and o the r  peop le ,  

they b rought  in  a  who le  range o f  o ther  peop le ,  some o f  the 

faces ser ious t ransgress ions.   They never  faced,  Cha i r.   I f  

th is  Commiss ion  were  to  rev iew,  fo r  example  Cha i r,  the 

charges fo r  some o f  the  peop le ,  you w i l l  l i t era l l y  be  

shocked tha t  they  were  brought  back.  

 So we –  the  board  says we  want  to  f igh t  

cor rup t ion .   The  board  says we  want  to  f igh t  improper  

conduct .   But  f i f t y  percent  o f  the  peop le  tha t  they regard  as  

the i r  own peop le  are  no t  sub jec ted  to  these k inds o f  th ings,  20 

Cha i r.   And I  th ink  i t  i s  a  separa te  i ssue.   I  agree w i th  

Mr  Son i .   Le t  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .bu t  there  was not  a  p roper  inqu i ry  tha t  

you say . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    We brough t (?)  exerc ises  f iduc ia ry  

respons ib i l i t i es  in  the  –  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   No,  those  

mat te rs ,  one wou ld  go  in to  them but  never the less  i t  m igh t  

be  good to  jus t  have a  look,  fo r  example ,  a t  the  charge 

sheet  aga ins t  Mr  Ngoye in  the  l igh t  o f  what  you say  

Mr  Montana.   But  a lso  i t  wou ld  a lso  jus t  be  he lp fu l  to  see  

whethe r  Mr  Khena in  conc lud ing  tha t  there  was no 

ev idence o f  m isconduct  on  the  par t  o f  Ms Ngoye,  whethe r  10 

he  prepared any document  tha t  showed tha t  he  had  app l ied  

h is  m ind to  what  was there .    

 And whether  he  had been fu rn ished -  he  secured 

fo r  example ,  s ta tements  f rom peop le  who may have had  

in fo rmat ion  re la t ion  to  the  charges because i f  –  obv ious ly,  

i f  i t  was someth ing  tha t  went  a long the  l ines :   Oh,  they 

were  charged by  Montana,  so  there  cannot  be  a  case.   That  

wou ld  no t  be  acceptab le .   But  i f  there  was a  proper  

app l i ca t ion  o f  m ind to  look  a t  what  ev idence there  – what  

w i tnesses have to  say,  were  w i tnesses in te rv iewed.    20 

 And one wou ld  a lso  have thought  i t  wou ld  have 

been impor tan t  to  ge t  Mr  Montana ’s  vers ion  because he is  

the  one who made the  dec i s ion  to  d ismiss .   To  say,  be fore  

f ina l l y  say ing  bu t  there  i s  no  bas is  fo r  charges these  

peop le ,  to  say:   What  do  you have to  say?  And what  about  



03 MAY 2021 – DAY 387 
 

Page 39 of 178 
 

th is?   What  about  tha t?   That  k ind  o f  th ing .  

 I  mean,  f rom wha t  Mr  Montana has  sa id ,  i t  seems 

l i ke  he  was not  asked fo r  anyth ing .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r,  I  was no never  asked.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r,  jus t  fo r  the  record .   The. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Par t  o f  my annexures I  dea l  w i th  those 

charges . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Those charges,  yes .  10 

MR MONTANA :    . . . fo r  the  Commiss ion  to  see 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . to  show how ser ious those  charges  

were .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   So i t  wou ld  be  good  

to  see what  Mr  Khena had or  wha t  he  prepared wh ich  led  

h im to  the  conc lus ion  because i f  what  Mr  Montana i s  20 

say ing ,  i t  may be tha t  PRASA,  up  to  a  cer ta in  leve l ,  had  

become fac t iona l i sed,  as  i t  were .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Say,  there  are  those who are  Montana ’s  

ones and then there  are  those who are  the  cha i rperson ’s  
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peop le .   But  we  do not  know but  tha t  –  he  g i ves  tha t  

impress ion  tha t  i t  may have been tha t  s i tua t ion .   Okay  

a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  see i t  i s  twenty  past  

e leven.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We cou ld  go  on fo r  another  ten  

m inutes  and then break fo r  tea  because we have s tar ted  

la te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Shou ld  we –  we can go –  we can take  10 

the  break now o r  we can take  i t  a t  ha l f -past  e leven.   I t  

depends on whether  f rom your  s ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  I  jus t  want  to  f in ish  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  mat te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . th is  par t  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   F in ish  i t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then we w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  and then a t  paragraphs  20 

22,  23  and 24,  Ms Ngoye ra ises  d i f fe ren t  quest ions  wh ich  

have come about  Prod igy  and Sw i fambo and so  on .   We 

have dea l t  w i th  most .    

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Except  tha t  I  s t i l l  wan t  to  put  

on  reco rd ,  espec ia l l y  in  re la t ion  to  23 .   In  re la t ion  to  23  
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because I  th ink  you w i l l  reca l l ,  we c losed on the  bas is  o f  

me d iscuss ing  Swi fambo,  Werksmans,  and o the r  i ssues.   

And I  th ink  you w i l l  reca l l  my po in t .   I  jus t  want  to  pu t  i t  on 

record .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes?  

MR MONTANA :    Because he re  Ms Ngoye says  –  she  

desc r ibes the  cour t ,  the  h igh  cour t  and the  supreme cour t  

o f  appea l  on  Sw i fambo.   And in  my a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r,  and 

o ther  papers ,  you w i l l  reca l l ,  I  sa id  I  want  those members  

o f  the  B id  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  to  be  summonsed to 10 

exp la in  the i r  ro les  because tha t  i s  where  –  the  B id  

Eva lua t ion  Commi t tee  and the  B id  Ad jud i ca t ion  Commi t tee .   

Those a re  the  peop le  who g ives cause,  Cha i r.    

 They must  each one exp la in  under  oa th :   I  gave 

Swi fambo f i ve .   I  gave anothe r  company ten .   Okay?   

Because i t  i s  easy to  say i t  happened dur ing  the  tenure .   

You know one th ing  I  hear  Cha i r  so  o f ten?  I  read the  

Werksmans repor t .   We hear  i t  happened under  the  tenure  

o f  Mr  Montana.   I  do  no t  want  tha t  Cha i r.   I  want  to  hear  

somebody say I  gave company X  a  score  o f  ten  a t  the 20 

ins t ruc t ion  o f  Mr  Montana.   But  they cannot  say  tha t  in  the 

tenure  o f  Mr  Montana.    

 I  mean,  i t  i s  a  –  you are  no t  –  you are  bas ica l l y  

th rowing my name but  they are  no t  l ink ing  me to  the  cr ime  

scene.   So I  must  have th is  th ing  hang ing  over  my head as  
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a  c loud tha t  i t  happened under  m is te r. . .   So  you  can see  

here  Cha i r  tha t  a l l  those th ree  th ings tha t  a re  be ing  

ment ioned,  the  suppor t  one th ing .    

 The conc lus ion  i s  there  under  24  because the 

issue is  t o  show tha t  Mr  Mood ley  who was invo lved – I  

a rgued and showed fo r  example  tha t  when we dea l t  w i th  

S t rawber ry  Worx  tha t  Ms Ngoye s igned the  ac tua l  cont rac t .   

I t  i s  par t  o f  my annexures Cha i r.  

 I  show a lso  about  twe lve  emai ls  be tween 

Mr  Chauke under  Ms Ngoye and S t rawberry  Worx .   Now the  10 

b ig  quest ion  Cha i r.   Why i f  there  was such a  coopera t ion  

be tween Ms Ngoye and the  team wi th  S t rawberry,  okay?  

They d id  no t  know Mr  Mood ley  a t  tha t  t ime.   They on ly  

knew h im –  they on ly  knew about  Mr  Mood ley  when 

Mr  Mole fe  jo ined PRASA.  

 So you can see Cha i r  tha t  we  have to  ask  

d i f f i cu l t  quest ion  or  e lse  peop le  w i l l  then go home wi th  

murder  jus t  mak ing  accusat ions tha t  board  members  –  do  I  

–  Cha i r  can read 22 and go in to  de ta i l s  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  

w i l l  he lp  th is  par t i cu la r  p rocess because in  my a f f idav i t ,  in  20 

my Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  rev iew app l ica t ion  I  dea l  w i t h  i t ,  in  

fac t ,  w i th  each o f  those deta i l s  the re .  

 But  I  do  no t  th ink  th is  i s  the  t ime.   I  am jus t  

s imp ly  say ing ,  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  on  my record  tha t  22 ,  23 ,  

24  I  re jec t  as  they s tand Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  i s  jus t  a  p i t y  tha t  the  cha l lenges  

wh ich  happened in  regard  to  a f f idav i t  happened because I  

wou ld  have pre fe r red  a  s i tua t ion  where  i f  you  are  dea l ing  

w i th  paragraphs  22,  23 ,  24  you dea l  w i th  them fu l l y  

inc lud ing  whatever  documents  you have so  tha t  when  one 

looks a t  ce r ta in  th ings a t  the  ev idence a t  your  response to  

Ms Ngoye ’s  ev idence and a l lega t ions one gets  the  fu l l  

p ic tu re  bu t  I  accept  tha t  we are  where  we are .  

 In  the  end what  may happen i s  tha t  one w i l l  read  

what  you have to  say about  pa ragraph  22  to  24  somewhere  10 

and then somewhere  e lse  f inds  someth ing  e lse  tha t  

be longs here  as  we l l  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  i s  f ine .   We are  jus t  

do ing  the  best  we  can in  the  c i r cumstances.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  can I  say  fo r  the  reco rd?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    That  those i ssues are  in  fa i rness no t  a  

response in  de ta i l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  dea l t  w i th  in  my a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA :    I  have in te rac ted  w i th  the  team Cha i r  fo r  

in fo rmat ion  las t  week.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    We have d iscussed my a f f idav i t .   We had  

agreed tha t  even sent  on  Fr iday a  rev ised a f f idav i t  on  
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some o f  those issues.   We were  meant  to  meet  on  Fr iday to  

then sor t  ou t  the  annexures in  re la t ion  to  each.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    We have agreed tomorrow I  th ink  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  what  we w i l l  do .   So I  th ink  Cha i r,  

they  a re  no t  be ing  los t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am jus t  pu t t ing  on  reco rd  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    . . .my pos i t ion  so  tha t  we can dea l  w i th  

them and the  suppor t ing  ev idence on each o f  these 

mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  am tempted to  say  

someth ing  now.   I  am go ing  to  say i t .   Mr  Montana,  you 

have a  r igh t  to  say no th ing  i f  you  do not  want  to  say 

anyth ing .   You have a  r igh t  to  say someth ing .   There  was  –  

I  was speak ing  w i th  the  lega l  team o f  somebody who was 

re luc tan t  to  tes t i f y  in  the  absence o f  h is  counse l  in  the  

Commiss ion  and I  used you as  an  example .   20 

 I  sa id :   Wel l ,  Mr  Montana comes here .   He does  

not  b r ing  any lawyers .   He has  had concerns w i th  the  

Commiss ion .   He has a r t i cu la ted  h is  concerns bu t  he  

dec ided to  take  par t  in  the  proceed ings.   And I  sa id  he  is  

te l l ing  h is  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  and  I  doubt  tha t  i f  he  was  
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asked he wou ld  say he  is  no t  heard  fa i r l y.   I  th ink  he  wou ld  

probab ly  concede  he has been heard  fa i r l y.   [ laughs]  

MR MONTANA :    No,  indeed Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  am qu i te  –  

there  a re  s t i l l  i ssues tha t  I  w i l l  s t i l l  ra ise  in  the  process.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink  Cha i r  when the  I  go t  the  

summons f rom the  Commiss ion  I  re f lec ted  deep ly (? ) .   What  

i s  the  ro le  o f  the  Commiss ion?   What  do  you want  to  

ach ieve?   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA :    And I  have used s t rong words Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  tha t  i f  the  Commiss ion ,  fo r  

example ,  on  the  med ia  s ide  on  the  th ing .   You know,  I  have  

cr i t i c ised.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And Cha i r,  I  s t i l l  have some o f  those on  

record  in  my a f f idav i t  bu t  I  have made a  dec is ion .   I  w i l l  

respect  the  Commiss ion ,  I  respec t  the  Cha i r  and I  w i l l  go 

there  w i thout  fear  o r  favour.   I  have put  fo rward  my v iews  20 

on these issues.   And Cha i r,  I  do  –  I  p re fer  to  wr i te  my own 

a f f idav i t s .    

 And then I  there  I  do  consu l t  w i th  some o f  the  

best  lega l  m inds and they w i l l  te l l  me do not  say  th is ,  do  

no t  say  tha t .   And there  are  t imes when I  go  rouge and I  
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say  no  I  am not  go ing  to  fo l low what  they have sa id  Cha i r.   

So I  do  seek lega l  adv i ce  Cha i r.   But  I  th ink  the  s to ry  o f  

PRASA is  my s tory  Cha i r.   There  was no PRASA.    

 I  was g iven a  mandate  by  government  to  fo rm 

PRASA and i t  was one o f  the  –  and one o f  the  th ings –  i t  

was not  jus t  fo rm ing PRASA.   They sa id :   Look,  our  

ra i lways a re  fa l l ing  apar t .   Le t  us  have an in te rvent ion .   Le t  

us  have an investment  p rogramme.   Le t  us  modern ise  so  

tha t  our  ra i l  can  match  w i th  ra i lways a l l  over  the  wor ld .    

 Now tha t  s to ry  Cha i r,  I  had to  go  th rough  10 

d i f f i cu l t ies .   You know tha t  Cab ine t  made i t s  dec is ion  in  

December  2004.   We on ly  fo rmed  PRASA f i ve  years  down 

the  l ine  bu t  the  dec is ion  to  res t ruc tu re  the  ra i lways was  

made by  government  in  2000.   So i t  took  an  ent i re  ten  

years  Cha i r  even before  to  th is  p rocess.   So I  was a  

cent ra l  pe rson in to  th is .   And Cha i r  I  w i l l  be  honest .   I t  

saddens me when I  look  a t  the  PRASA I  le f t  in  2015 and  

the  PRASA I  see today.  

 I  am not  say ing  i t  was a  per fec t  o rgan isa t ion .   

The ra i lways were  s t i l l  fac ing  a  lo t  o f  cha l lenges but  as  I  20 

say in  my a f f idav i t .   We are  on  a  t rans i t ion  towards 

crea t ing  and de l i ver ing  a  modern  t ra in  sys tem for  the  

count ry  and I  do  no t  th ink  anyone can te l l  tha t  s to ry  than  

me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA :    And tha t  i s  why  Cha i r  I  wro te  to  you on 

Ju l y  2019.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Because I  sa id  I  want  to  te l l  the  s to ry  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  must  jus t  say  because you have sa id  

tha t  be fore  and I  have never  sa id  th is .   I  do  no t  have a 

reco l lec t ion  o f  hav ing  seen tha t  le t te r  bu t  i t  has  been two 

years .   Maybe I  d id  and I  have fo rgo t ten  bu t  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  you got  any response.   I  th ink  you never  go t  a  10 

response.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   In  fac t ,  I  wro te  on  the  

twenty  –  I  th ink  i t  was on the  26 t h .   On the  2 n d  o f  August ,  

the  Commiss ion  responded.   We had a  meet ing  a t  the 

Commiss ion ’s  o f f i ces .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    And then a t  the  end o f  August ,  I  gave you  

a  f i rs t  d ra f t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .o f  my a f f idav i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    2019,  you say?  

MR MONTANA :    2019,  Cha i r.   Tha t  i s  why . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  thought  you sa id  2020.  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  why Cha i r  I  sa id  in  my s ta tement  I  

have been t ry ing  to  come to  your  Commiss ion .   I t  has  taken  
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me two years .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  because we then on the  journey had a  

b ig  f igh t  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .about  what  I  shou ld  say in  my a f f idav i t ,  

what  I  shou ld  no t  say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  the  pr inc ip le  o f  i t ,  Cha i r.   I  have made  

a  dec is ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  have consu l ted  w i th  my fami ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And sa id  look –  and some o f  the  leaders 

have sa id :   Look,  we th ink  you shou ld  go  to  the 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  sa id  no  I  be l ieve  the  Commiss ion  is  

pursu ing  a  p redetermined agenda and a l l  o f  those th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  20 

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  they sa id  we th ink  go  there .   And I  

sa id  Cha i r  i f  the  Commiss ion  t rea ts  me bad,  i f  they  –  i f  

Mr  Son i  t rea ts  me bad ly  and every th ing  I  w i l l  j us t  car ry  my  

bags and say:   Cha i r,  I  know I  have been summonsed but  I  

am –  yes I  do  no t  th ink  my s tory  i s  be ing  heard .   So fa r  
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th is  i s  my four th  day,  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  the  Commiss ion  has 

been very  open,  I  must  comment  tha t ,  you have g iven qu i te  

a  lo t  o f  assurances on the  issues tha t  we need to  d iscuss  

and the  b ig  i ssue  fo r  me,  Cha i r,  was the  acceptance o f  my 

a f f idav i t  because  a t  some s tage I  go t  a  le t te r  f rom the  

Commiss ion  say ing  you can come and speak w i thout  the  

a f f idav i t  and I  sa id  tha t  i s  unheard  o f ,  I  w i l l  never,  even i f  

you put  me in to  pr ison,  I  never  tes t i f ied  w i thout  my s to ry.   

Cha i r,  th is  a f f idav i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no ,  no  …[ in tervenes]  10 

MR MONTANA:    I t  i s  my own response and I  am say ing ,  

Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Your  s to ry.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes and I  am say ing ,  Cha i r  –  and you w i l l  

see  when i t  read  i t ,  Cha i r,  and th is  w i l l  be  my po in t .   I  am 

say ing  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  my a f f idav i t  because,  fo r  me,  

when I  asked why shou ld  I  go  a f te r  the  ANC sa id  a l l  o f  us 

must  go  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  I  then sa id ,  Cha i r,  tha t  

th is  wou ld  by  my repor t -back.    

The nat ion  gave us  a  mandate  about  these ra i lways  20 

and,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  b ig ,  no t  because fo r  any o ther  reason,  

because I  sa id  I  w i l l  use  th is  Commiss ion  to  g ive  a  repor t -

back to  the  na t ion  on  the  impor tan t  work .    

And I  come here  wa lk ing  ta l l ,  Cha i r,  fo r  me I  heard  

peop le  ta lk ing  about  cor respondence and a l l  o f  those  
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th ings and maybe,  Cha i r,  I  l i s ted  to  the  Pres ident  las t  

week,  I  sa id  when I  come here  I  am go ing  to  make a  joke  

and say Cha i r,  can we put  a l l  o f  these accusat ions aga ins t  

me beh ind  us  because tha t  i s  what  the  Pres ident  says.   But  

I  am here ,  Cha i r,  I  am here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  want  to  be  he ld  accountab le  in  th is  

fo rum,  tha t  i s  a lso  one impor tan t  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  th ink  the  s to ry  o f  South  A f r i can  10 

Ra i lways and the  t ransformat ion  tha t  i t  embarked on,  no t  

every th ing  about  cor respondence ,  where  I  have  made  

mis takes,  Cha i r,  le t  them be po in ted  out .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  to  p ro jec t  th is  th ing  tha t  there  was  

th is  g rand cor rup t ion  and a l l  o f  those th ings,  i t  i s  so  fa lse ,  

I  do  no t  sha re  tha t  v iew,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  thought  I  

wou ld  jus t  say  tha t  because I  was tempted to  say so  bu t  le t  

me say i t  and g ive  you the  f reedom not  to  say any th ing  or  20 

to  say someth ing .    

But ,  look ,  Mr  Montana,  as  we Commiss ion ,  we – I  

th ink  we t ry  ou r  best ,  we take  ou r  work  ser ious ly,  we are  

ac t ing  in  good fa i th .    

We might  be  I  m isunders tood somet imes but  we are  
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do ing  the  best  we can and we accept  tha t  peop le  w i l l  have  

d i f fe ren t  v iews about  our  work  in  the  Commiss ion  and we 

ho ld  no  grudges,  we say i t  i s  f ine ,  you know,  i t  i s  a  pub l i c  

p rocess and we jus t  keep on t ry ing  to  do  ou r  best .   That  i s  

a l l  and …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  am happy tha t  you made the  

dec is ion  to  par t i c ipa te  and as  I  sa id  when we s tar ted  th is  

morn ing ,  you have –  s ince  you s ta r ted  appear ing  you have  

been ve ry  coopera t ive ,  you have  been ava i l ing  yourse l f  10 

even a t  shor t  no t ice  to  appear,  so  we apprec ia te  tha t  

coopera t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    I  am genera l l y  uncoopera t ive ,  Cha i r,  bu t  

respect ing  the  Cha i r,  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  tha t  –  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  you are  a  ge t t ing  a  t rue  re f lec t ion  o f  

who I  am,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    When I  read the  newspapers ,  the  way I  

am descr ibed,  I  a lways ask  is  th is  me they are  ta lk ing  20 

about?   I  do  no t  th ink  my mom or  my dad,  when they read 

about  what  i s  be ing  sa id  about  me,  by  some o f  these 

pub l i ca t ions,  Cha i r.   They sa id  a l l  sor ts  o f  te r r ib le  th ings,  

bu t  we have got  to  r i se  above a l l  o f  those and I  hope tha t  

in  fu tu re  or  the  med ia  in  par t i cu la r,  w i l l  unders tand tha t  
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the i r  job  is  no t  on ly  the  so-ca l led  speak ing  t ru th  to  power,  

they a lso  have got  the  du ty  to  in fo rm,  to  enab le  c i t i zens to  

be  ab le  to  make in fo rmed dec is ions and par t i c ipa te  

e f fec t i ve ly.    

Now i f  the  med ia  m is lead them,  pro jec t  o thers  and  

take  s ides,  then  we are  go ing  to  have ac tua l l y  in  the i r  

m inds democracy,  Cha i r,  we want  the  med ia  tha t  f i rs t  and 

fo remost  must  unders tand even be fore  they speak t ru th  to  

power  they have a  du ty  to  in fo rm and educate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  an  in teg ra l  par t  o f  the  th ing .   So 

th is  no t ion  where  you pa id  what  the  la te  Edward  c i te ,  the  

Pa les t in ian  in te l lec tua l  when he  de l i ve red the  –  read  

lec tures  about  speak ing  t ru th  to  power,  you know,  the  

med ia  i s  very  exce l len t  in  do ing  tha t ,  Cha i r,  where  you 

se lec t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  want  to  s top  you now.  

MR MONTANA:    The rami f i ca t ion ,  so  speak t ru th  to  power  

tha t  in fo rms and educates .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA:    And I  th ink  tha t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  me,  

Cha i r.   Thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Le t  us  take  the  – 

or  were  you done  or  were  you not  done,  Mr. . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  jus t  need to  ask  two quest ions.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And I  know we are  past  i t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  I  am jus t  hop ing  tha t  w i l l  has ten  

th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Jus t  in  regard  to  Swi fambo,  Mr  

Montana,  because you know a l l  the  a l legat ions tha t  have  

been made.   I  want  to  ask  you,  Mr  Makhensa Mabunda,  you 10 

have dea l t  w i th  h im befo re  in  your  ev idence.   He  was a  

t ransact iona l  adv i ser  on  the  Swi fambo cont rac t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   He was not  to  PRASA? 

MR MONTANA:    No.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Def in i te ly,  no t .  

MR MONTANA:    Not ,  Cha i r,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   May  I  then ask  you to  p lease 

look a t  bund le  C1 ,  SS4,  page 214.133?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  d id  no t  know you were  go ing  to  20 

re fer  us  to  another  bund le ,  maybe we shou ld  take  the  

ad journment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  abso lu te l y,  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  le t  us  take  the  ad journment .   I  

thought  i t  was jus t  go ing  to  be  qu ick-qu ick .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no ,  i t  is  jus t  two passages f rom 

tha t  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  no ,  l e t  us  take  the  tea  break,  

i t  i s  twenty  f i ve  to  twe lve ,  le t  us  resume a t  ten  to  twe lve .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease,  Cha i r.   Mr  Montana,  10 

can I  re fe r  you to  the  Swi fambo cont rac t .    

Now you know tha t  there  has been a  f ind ing  by  the  

H igh  Cour t  and  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  tha t  the  

cont rac t  was a t  leas t  i r regu la r,  in  cer ta in  respects  cor rup t .   

I  jus t  want  to  re fe r  you to  what  Mr  Auswel l  Mashaba was  

the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Swi fambo Consor t ium.    

Now Swi fambo  Ra i l  has  been p laced under  

l iqu ida t ion ,  you know tha t ,  p rov inc ia l l y  l iqu ida t ion  and i f  

you look a  page –  so r ry,  le t  me s tar t  tha t  the  re ference is  

cor rec t ,  bund le  C1,  SS4,  page 2141.33 and what  i s  sa id  in  20 

respect  o f  no te  25  tha t  I  am go ing  to  read and jus t  go ing  to  

ask  your  comment  on  i t .    

Now le t  me jus t  exp la in  what  th is  i s .   In  suppor t  o f  

h is  app l i ca t ion ,  a  more  recent  app l i ca t ion  fo r  why  

Swi fambo had to  be  p laced under  l iqu ida t ion ,  Mr  Mashaba  
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f i l ed  an  a f f idav i t  and th is  i s  par t  o f  the  a f f idav i t  and he 

says in  no te  25 .1 :  

“Shor t l y  a f te r  Sw i fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  was awarded  

the  locomot ive  tender  by  PRASA Mr  Auswel l  

Mashaba and Mr  Makhensa Mabunda be approach  

by  two ind iv idua ls  who he ld  themse lves ou t  to  be  

fundra isers  w i th  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress.   

The two persons  were  Mar ia  Gomez and a t to rney 

George S ibe lo . ”  

Do you know Mrs  Gomez?  I  th ink  you ta l ked about  her  on  10 

some occas ion .  

MR MONTANA:    I  know Ms Gomez and I  know Mr  George 

S ibe lo .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You know h im  as we l l .  

MR MONTANA:    I  know both  o f  them,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   Now th is  i s  what  Mr  Mashaba  

cont inues to  say.   Says:  

“Under  p ressure  f rom MG. . . ”  

That  i s  Mr  S ibe lo  –  oh  sor ry,  Ms Gomez and GS,  tha t  i s  Mr  

S ibe lo .  20 

“ . . .Mr  Mashaba,  on  beha l f  o f  Leas ing  ag reed to  

a r range fo r  a  donat ion  to  t he  ANC of  an  amount  o f  

R88 mi l l ion  and  wh ich  wou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  as  

fo l lows,  he  wou ld  rece ive  a  hand l ing  fee  o f  about  

R8 mi l l ion . ”  
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Now I  jus t  want  to ,  be fore  cont inu ing ,  ask  you,  a re  you  

aware  o f  th is  a l legat ion  by  Mr  Mashaba? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  became aware  o f  the  80  

mi l l ion  –  no t  even 88,  80  m i l l ion  tha t  was ment ioned in  the  

med ia .   Th i s  came f rom the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Popo Mole fe ,  in  

the  Swi fambo mat te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  when  I  f i rs t  heard  o f  i t  bu t  

p rev ious l y  I  was aware  tha t  Mr  Mashaba was ta lk ing  to  the  

ANC,  f rom what  he  to ld  me but  no t  to  th is  leve l  o f  de ta i l ,  10 

Cha i r,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   When d id  Mr  Mashaba ind i ca te  to  you 

tha t  he  had been ta lk ing  to  the  ANC? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was around tha t  t ime.  

I  wou ld  assume tha t  th is  was –  th is  shou ld  have been in  

2014,  Cha i r,  i f  my memory  serves me we l l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  so  th is  now you became aware  

–  was th i s  wh i le  you –  cer ta in ly  you were  a t  PRASA a t  tha t  

t ime?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  sor ry,  Cha i r,  so r ry,  Cha i r.   I  am two  20 

th ings,  I  am say ing  tha t  –  I  am say ing  two th ings in  one,  le t  

me co r rec t  so  tha t  we can unders tand.   I  am say ing  when I  

heard  th is  80  m i l l ion  s to ry,  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Popo Mole fe  

on  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  i t  happened in  2016,  bu t  l e f t  –  so  

tha t  was a  year  l a te r,  a f te r  I  have  le f t  PRASA.   What  I  am 
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say ing ,  tha t  the  d iscuss ion  tha t  Mr  –  and I  am assuming,  I  

do  no t  –  I  am assuming th is  –  you are  say ing  i t  comes f rom 

the  a f f idav i t  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  i s  Mr  Mashaba.  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Mashaba.   So I  am say ing  tha t  a t  the  

t ime when he was busy w i th  th is  i n te rac t ion  I  was aware  o f  

them and tha t  was in  –  tha t  shou ld  have been 2013,  2014,  

Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Th i s  i s  wh i le  you were  s t i l l  a t  PRASA 

in  2014.  10 

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  no ,  Cha i r,  bu t  no t  80  m i l l ion ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no ,  no ,  I  unders tand but  you were  

aware  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  so  what  you a re  say ing  is  to  

your  reco l lec t ion  around 2013/2014,  wh i le  you were  s t i l l  a t  

PRASA you were  aware  o f   -  based on what  Mr  Mashaba  

to ld  you,  you were  aware  tha t  –  o r  he  sa id  he  was ta lk ing  

to  the  ANC,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  tha t  he  was approached by  the  ANC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes about  the  donat ion  o r  someth ing .  20 

MR MONTANA:    For  h im to  make a  donat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh okay,  a l r igh t .   And you say i n  2016  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Not  2016.   But ,  Cha i r,  we d id  no t  d iscuss,  

I  d id  no t  know the  de ta i l s .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no ,  I  accept  tha t  you say you d id  

no t  know the  de ta i l s  bu t  I  am now go ing  to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When tha t  was in  the  med ia  you became 

aware  o f  tha t .  

MR MONTANA:    I  became aware ,  Cha i r,  and then  I  a lso  

ob ta ined the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    When a f te r  I  have read the  a f f idav i t  I  was  10 

ac tua l l y  shocked  w i th  the  th ings  he  was say ing ,  tha t  i s  

when I  app l ied  to  be  a  f r iend o f  the  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  Cha i r,  when i t  i s  

the  r igh t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  th is  i s  what  I  want  to  ask  you.   

When you heard  tha t  -  th is  i s  in  2014,  when you heard  tha t  

the  ANC had approached Mr  Mashaba and tha t ,  I  take  i t ,  

was l inked to  the  Swi fambo cont rac t?  20 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  no .   You know,  Cha i r,  can I  –  I  

do  no t  know,  can  I  take  –  can I  ask  Mr  Son i  tha t  I  perhaps  

answer  th i s  quest ion  now but  in  a  much greate r  de ta i l ,  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:    Jus t  to  have the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  no ,  no… 

MR MONTANA:    I s  i t  f ine ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  do  tha t ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  address the  i ssue in  two ways,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Le t  me s tar t  w i th  the  ANC fundra is ing  

issue.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And because,  Cha i r,  I  ment ion  in  my 

a f f idav i t ,  I  was d rawn to  ANC fundra i s ing  ac t iv i t ies  and in  

my a f f idav i t  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  g rea t  length ,  Cha i r.    

And le t  me be honest ,  Cha i r,  I  l i s tened to  the  

tes t imony las t  week o f  the  ANC Pres ident ,  Mr  Ramaphosa,  

tha t  cont ras t s  ve ry  s t rong ly  w i th  what  I  say,  Cha i r.    

The ANC worked in  a  par t i cu la r  way and as  a  resu l t  

the  ANC ended be ing  def rauded because a  lo t  o f  peop le  

wou ld  come and say we want  to  ra ise  money in  the  name o f  20 

the  movement  and they w i l l  say  the  movement ,  the  ANC,  

re fer r i ng  to  themse lves.   And most  o f  them,  tha t  money  

does not  even end up in  the  ANC.    

When I  saw th i s  s ta tement ,  Cha i r,  I  t r ied  to  mee t  

w i th  the  Treasurer -Genera l  o f  the  ANC,  a t  tha t  t ime Dr  
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Zwe l i  Mkh ize ,  whom I  have met .    

I  have worked w i th  h im in  fac t  very  c lose ly  and I  

desc r ibed tha t  in  the  a f f idav i t  and I  have met  w i th  Dr  Zwel i  

Mkh ize  a t  the  home o f  Mar ia  Gomez.   We d i scussed ANC 

f inances and a l l  o f  those th ings the re .    

Money,  Cha i r,  Ms Gomez is  a  bus inesswoman,  

invo l ved not  –  Ms Gomez was never  i nvo lved w i th  PRASA,  

was never  i nvo lved w i th  Swi fambo,  was never  i nvo lved in  

the  locomot ive  tender,  she was a  bus inesswoman.   I  knew 

her  and he r  husband very  we l l ,  Cha i r,  th rough our  ANC 10 

ac t iv i t ies .  

 So,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  be  invo lved in  many ANC 

act iv i t ies  and the  un for tunate  th ing ,  I  hear  the  leadersh ip  

o f  the  ANC wi l l  come and say you  know,  th is  i s  the  work  o f  

some peop le .    

No,  i t  i s  a  way o f  l i f e  in  the  ANC,  Cha i r,  there  is  no t  

a  s ing le  s ta te  owned ente rpr i se  tha t  the  ANC has not  

approached,  Cha i r.   Because I  was  a  CEO …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  want  to  repeat  i t  and maybe i t  w i l l  20 

ge t  on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  jus t  tha t  I  d id  no t  hear  i t  p roper ly.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  am say ing  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  

Congress  approached s ta te  owned enterpr ises ,  i t  had i t s  

own conferences,  i t  had a  spec ia l  sec t ion ,  dep loyed  cadres 
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inc lud ing  those tha t  –  the  P res ident  was cor rec t  when he 

sa id  no t  each and  every  person appo in ted  in  government  o r  

SOEs was appo in ted  because he was a  dep loyed cadre  bu t  

one they are  there ,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  they  w i l l  be 

regarded as  dep loyed cadres and there  is  a  tab le  there  in  

the  ANC confe rence.    

They are  approached by  the  ANC e i ther  as  an  

organ isa t ion  or  by  ind iv idua l  leaders  o f  the  ANC or  by  

peop le  who came tha t  were  ra is ing  money fo r  the  

movement .   Ha l f  o f  tha t  money p robab ly  does not  go  to  the  10 

–  and I  w i l l  exp la in  why I  am tak ing  you th rough th i s ,  Cha i r  

–  ha l f  o f  tha t  money does not  even make –  ge t  th rough to  

ANC.  

 Now the  Swi fambo cont rac t ,  Cha i r,  was never  a  

cor rup t  cont rac t ,  i t  w i l l  never  be  a  cor rup t  cont rac t  and,  Mr  

Son i ,  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  issue as  we l l  about  the  – you had 

the  l iqu ida tors  here  and I  watched when the  Commiss ion  

in te rv iewed the  l iqu ida tors .    

Cha i r,  I  was in  s t i t ches inc lud ing  when one o f  the  –  

Mr  Sacks,  who was in  –  who in te rv iewed th is  th ing ,  he  says  20 

and i t  i s  there  a lso  in  the  t ranscr ip t ,  where  he  acknowledge  

tha t  I  know noth ing  about  th is  tender  o r  th is  t ransact ion .   

So the  ANC approached these peop le .    

The ANC wou ld  approach the  CEOs o f  these s ta te  

owned enterpr i ses ,  pub l i c  en t i t ies ,  ask ing  fo r  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And most  o f  them,  even i f  no t  maybe a l l  

o f  them,  most  o f  them wou ld  have been recommended by  

i t s  dep loyment  commi t tee ,  I  wou ld  suspect .  

MR MONTANA:    Who the…? 

CHAIRPERSON :    The CEOs o f  the  s ta te  owned  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no t ,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  no t  a l l  o f  them,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  am say ing  most ,  maybe mos t .  10 

MR MONTANA:    P robab ly,  no ,  Cha i r,  because 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  even tha t ,  ja .   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  I  th ink ,  in  fac t ,  you  know,  

when –  I  was l i s ten ing  to  the  Pres ident  very  ca re fu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  th ink  tha t  –  I  th ink  tha t  –  and I  went  

as  pa r t  o f  my rev iew and I  wro te  about  i t  on  soc ia l  med ia .   

The ANC leadersh ip  wants  to  ass i s t  th is  Commiss ion .    

They shou ld  no t  t ry  and put  b lame on peop le .   They  20 

must  come and say we want  to  say to  the  count ry  t here  is  a  

cer ta in  way in  wh ich  we d id  th ings.   These th ings happened  

before  the  –  even the  law on fund ing  fo r  po l i t i ca l  par t ies ,  

the  way we funded our  conferences,  the  way in  wh ich  i n  

wh ich  we –  pr io r  to  major  conferences o f  the  ANC,  there  
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a re  tab les  be ing  so ld  and a l l  o f  those th ings.   CEOs o f  

compan ies ,  they are  e i the r  buy ing  these tab les ,  Cha i r,  o r  

tha t  they w i l l  ge t  supp l ie rs  to  tha t  bus iness to  come and  

buy tab les .    

Peop le  who come,  Cha i r,  a re  a l l  leaders ,  even fo r  

the i r  own bus inesses and I  descr ibed tha t  a t  g rea t  length  

in  my a f f idav i t .    

So  I  th ink  –  and I  am a  member  o f  the  ANC,  Cha i r,  I  

have been a  member  o f  the  ANC – I  jo ined when  I  was a  

s tudent  a t  Mamelod i  H igh  Schoo l .   I  remain  a  member  o f  10 

the  ANC,  I  have served tha t  o rgan isa t ion  w i th  loya l ty  and  

probab ly  w i l l  d ie  as  a  member  o f  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  

Congress .    

But ,  Cha i r,  th is  th ing  o f  t ry ing  to  ta lk  about  s ta te  

capture ,  these th ings be longs to  Zuma,  i t  i s  fa lse .   The 

ANC is  a  way o f  l i f e  and i f  –  and I  thought  we  los t  an  

oppor tun i ty  when the  Pres ident  was he re .    

The ANC shou ld  have sa id  there  are  ce r ta in  th ings 

we used to  do  as  a  par ty,  as  an  organ isa t ion ,  and we  th ing ,  

w i th  h inds igh t ,  when we re f lec t  on  where  a re  count ry  i s  20 

go ing ,  we are  look ing  a t  the  cu l tu re  tha t  i s  deve lop ing ,  the  

cu l tu re  o f  cor rup t ion ,  we th ink  tha t  because we are  the  

lead ing  –  the  govern ing  par ty,  because o f  the  issue o f  

incumbency.    

Yes,  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  peop le  who get  invo lved in  
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th is  in  one way or  the  member  a re  members  o f  the  ANC.   

But  no t  a l l  o f  them,  some o f  them,  Cha i r,  when they go t  

pos i t ions ,  they become even ve ry  c lose  to  the  ANC.   

 Peop le  who know noth ing  about  the  ANC,  who has  

never  worked fo r  the  ANC who mos t  o f  them,  some o f  them 

–  I  mean,  I  see peop le  tha t  I  regard  as  se l l -ou ts ,  in  my own 

language,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  you see where  I  s tand  in  the  

po l i t i ca l  te r ra in ,  Cha i r.    

So these a re  peop le  who become –  e i ther  they ge t  

appo in ted  to  pos i t ions ,  some o f  them buy the i r  own  10 

pos i t ions ,  they se l l  even some o f  these th ings.    

Now i f  you go back to  Po lokwane Conference o f  the  

ANC,  the  Pres ident  made a  joke ,  Cha i r,  tha t  you seem to  

know more  about  the  ANC issues tha t  a re  there .   I  want  to  

l ink  –  I  am coming to  l ink  i t  to  Swi fambo,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  want  

to  dea l  w i th  the  b igger  contex t  because fo r  me th is  i ssue – 

when I  saw Popo  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  and say 80  mi l l ion  was  

g iven to  the  ANC,  I  then had a  b ig  s t rugg le .    

I  was outs ide  o f  PRASA,  I  have  worked w i th  the  

ANC,  I  have worked w i th  the  Treasure r-Genera l ,  I  then had 20 

to  -   I  wanted to  f ind  ou t  th is  80  m i l l ion ,  what  was i t  a l l  

about ,  where  is  coming f rom because I  d id  no t  know,  Cha i r,  

i t  was not  l i ke  we pa id  Swi fambo  80 mi l l ion  to  pay to  the  

ANC,  there  was never  such a  th ing .    

Auswel l  was approached and he asked me,  Cha i r,  
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and say hey,  do  you th ink  i t  i s  a  good idea,  Auswel l  i s  

invo l ved in  many o ther  bus inesses,  Cha i r,  he  is  an  

eng ineer.   He says …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am sor ry  Mr  –  jus t  fo r  the  record ,  

when you ta lk  about  Auswel l ,  you are  ta lk ing  about  Mr  

Mashaba.  

MR MONTANA:    Mashaba.   Mashaba,  ja .   Sor ry,  Mr  Son i .   

And he says …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a lso  I  must  jus t  say,  I  know tha t  you 

sa id  you wou ld  l ink  what  you were  say ing  w i th  th is  i ssue 10 

but  I  am not  su re  whether  you s topped on the  way.   I  have  

a  fee l ing  tha t  you  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  have not  s topped,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have a  fee l ing  tha t  you were  te l l ing  a  

cer ta in  s to ry  and then …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  the  ANC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    L inked to  Swi fambo and every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  the  –  s ta r t  a t  a  20 

broader  leve l  and  nar row i t  down.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Because las t  week you had the 

presenta t ion ,  I  th ink  the  Pres ident  o f  the  ANC,  I  am not  

ta lk ing  about  the  Pres ident ,  the  ANC was here  las t  week.   
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And I  want  to  say,  Cha i r,  w i thout  any fea r,  tha t  what  the  

ANC to ld  the  Commiss ion  can never  be  t rue ,  Cha i r.    

Those o f  us  who  were  in  t he  pub l i c  se rv i ce  be fo re  

we were  even CEOs,  we know the  ANC has a  par t i cu la r  –  

had a  par t i cu la r  way o f  do ing  th ings.    

The ANC has come to  a  cor rec t  de terminat ion  and  

th is  th ing  does not  s ta r t  in  2007,  Cha i r,  because Jacob 

Zuma is  the  Pres ident .   I f  you  look a t  the  confe rence  o f  the 

ANC,  the  Pres ident  spoke about  a  d iagnost ic  tha t  was done  

a t  NASREC.    10 

No,  Cha i r.   Former  Pres ident  Kga lema Mot lan the  

when he was the  Secre tary  Genera l  o f  the  ANC,  he  ac tua l l y  

gave –  he  dea l t  w i th  th is  i ssue a t  length  i n  Po lokwane,  he  

gave a  de ta i led  repor t  and th is  repor t ,  he  was ac tua l l y  

warn ing  us  aga ins t  these th ings and say we are  beg inn ing  

to  see a  d i s tu rb ing  t rend.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  ac tua l l y  seem to  th ink  –  remember  f rom 

the  med ia  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  repor ts  o f  the  med ia  o f  the  

repor t  he  had made in  Po lokwane was sa id  to  have  been –  

we l l ,  I  am not  us ing  the  words  tha t  was used  but  the  20 

impress ion  I  go t  was tha t  he  had  been bru ta l l y  honest  to  

the  organ isa t ion  about  cha l lenges and so  on .  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  tha t ,  I  was a t  
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Po lokwane,  the  dep loyed cadre ,  I  was not  represent ing  a  

branch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th is  in fo rmat ion  is  in fo rmat ion  I  ge t  f rom 

the  med ia .  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  i f  i t  is  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Any knowledge  I  have is  jus t  based on  

what  I  ge t  f rom the  pub l i c ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  in  –  sor ry,  Cha i r,  i t  is  in  my 

a f f idav i t  and I  say  in  my a f f idav i t ,  the  ANC is  such a  

mass ive  organ isa t ion ,  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  fear,  i t  i s  an  10 

organ isa t ion  o f  the  peop le  and i t  can say  to  th is  

Commiss ion  and  ass i s t  our  coun t ry,  we th ink  may have  

crea ted,  in  the  way we d id  th ings,  we may have crea ted  

cond i t ions  fo r  co r rup t ion ,  we may  have crea ted cond i t ions  

fo r  some o f  the  th ings tha t  a re  there .    

I t  does not  make the  ANC accused  number  one,  i t  i s  

bas ica l l y  tha t  i t  i s  re f lec t ing  honest ly.   Today you have 

leaders  o f  the  ANC who come because some o f  them,  they 

are  no t  in  government  bu t  they w i l l  take  advantage  o f  the 

s tand ing  o f  the  ANC in  soc ie ty,  even in  SOEs,  t hey w i l l  20 

come and approach us  and t r y  to  b id  and push fo r  the  

in te res t  o f  bus inesses where  they invo lved in ,  th i s  in  the  

name o f  the  ANC,  to  ge t  money,  Cha i r.   And a lways the  

movement ,  the  movement ,  the  movement .    

So I  th ink  tha t  when the  ANC was he re  las t  week ,  
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they  must  te l l  us  each o the r,  Cha i r.   You sa id  a t  some 

s tage there  w i l l  be  a  t ime when we  have to  face  each o ther  

and te l l  each o ther  the  t ru th  and I  th ink  the  t ime has 

ar r i ved,  Cha i r,  tha t  the  ANC hopefu l l y  i t  w i l l  s t i l l  come back  

here  and I  th ink  when we dea l  w i th  my a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r,  I  

dea l  w i th  what  I  be l ieve  the  way the  ANC opera ted .   Cha i r,  

the  ANC,  I  worked w i th  i t ,  they  w i l l  g ive  me a  l i s t  o f  

supp l ie rs  tha t  the  ANC owed and  say we th ink  you must  

ass is t  us  in  th is  way.    

They were  no t  ask ing  because I  am Lucky f rom 10 

Mamelod i ,  they  were  do ing  tha t  because they say hey,  you 

have got  ne tworks ,  you have got  in f luence,  use  i t  to  he lp  

us .   And,  Cha i r,  no  one –  I  heard  aga in  the  Pres ident  says 

–  and Popo Mole fe  sa id  the  same th ing  be fore  you ,  Cha i r,  

sa id  we do not  want  pub l i c  funds to  be  used fo r  par ty  

po l i t i ca l  ac t i v i t ies .   Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  t rue .  

You know,  when I  l i s ten ,  Cha i r,  and I  jus t  wa lk  up  

and down in  my room when I  l i s ten  to  these type o f  th ings.   

When the  ANC o rgan ises events  in  January  8  s ta tement ,  

the  leadersh ip  o f  the  ANC sa id  to  Min i s te r  D ipuo Peters ,  20 

we do not  have a  t ranspor t  p lan ,  we want  Lucky to  come 

and he lp  us ,  PRASA to  he lp  us  o rgan ise  th is  th ing .   Who 

pays fo r  these th ings?  And she is  no t  to ld  by  one  person 

in  a  co rner,  she i s  to ld  by  the  leadersh ip  o f  the  ANC when 

they make prepara t ions,  Cha i r.  
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So  I  th ink  the  organ isa t ion ,  the  ANC,  can take  a  

bo ld  s tep  –  cu r ren t ly  they want  to  p ro jec t  i t  tha t  i t  is  those 

who are  cor rup t  and those who are  no t  cor rup t  and ,  Cha i r,  

when we go deeper  in to  i t  –  and I  want  to  ass is t  the  

Commiss ion  –  because every  –  a t  leas t  once a  month ,  I  w i l l  

go  to  the  ANC HQ at  Lu thu l i  House,  i f  they  do  not  burn  

those papers  the re ,  every  t ime you go there  you s ign .   I f  

you say br ing  them and see the  peop le  who go there ,  you  

w i l l  see  tha t  CEOs wou ld  go  there ,  Cha i r.    

My own co l leagues.   I  w i l l  no t  ment ion  them,  I  do  10 

not  want  to  speak fo r  them,  bu t  they w i l l  te l l  you ,  Cha i r,  

tha t   –  they w i l l  even ask  you,  hey,  we are  under  p ressure  

on  th is  th ing ,  how do we dea l  w i th  i t?   Because we speak  

amongst  ourse l ves as  CEO.    

So the  ANC leadersh ip  to  come here  and p re tend 

tha t  no ,  we have suppor ted  th is  Commiss ion  and 

every th ing  bu t  do  no t  ass is t  th is  Commiss ion  to  so lve  the  

fundamenta l  p rob lems fac ing  our  soc ie ty.   I  th ink  i t  i s  not  

cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  and I  am say ing  th is  no t  because I  want  to  

a t tack  anyone,  I  want  to  –  I  sa id  I  want  to  come and ass is t  20 

the  Commiss ion .    

Cha i r,  the  ANC has had lo ts  o f  events ,  the  ANC has  

had –  some o f  the  debt  the  ANC had when Dr  Zwel i  Mkh ize  

was Treasurer -Genera l  were  sor ted  ou t  by  me,  I  had to  

speak to  these compan ies  and say can we dea l  w i th  the 
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ANC debt  d i f fe ren t ly  because some o f  were  tak ing  the  – 

ac tua l l y  one o f  the  days some – the  sher i f f  o f  the  cour t  was  

on h i s  way to  a t t ach  fu rn i tu re  a t  the  ANC headquar te rs  and 

I  was to ld  I  had  to  speak to  a  CEO of  a  la rge  t ranspor t  

company tha t  I  knew ve ry  we l l  and say bu t  you do work  fo r  

the  count ry,  fo r  the  government ,  you have th is  –  you have  

got  a  tender  and  every th ing ,  can you rea l l y  take  fu rn i tu re  

f rom the  ANC headquar te rs  fo r  2  000 –  or  ra ther  R2  

mi l l ion?  

Cha i r,  me and Dr  Zwel i  Mkh ize ,  and I  know tha t  he  10 

has sent  an  a f f idav i t  deny ing  a l l  o f  tha t ,  bu t  I  t r ied  to  t rack  

Mrs  Gomez because I  wanted her  to  f i le  an  a f f idav i t  be fore  

th is  Commiss ion ,  i s  i f  she  is  no t  in  the  count ry,  to  te l l  –  

she w i l l  say,  Cha i r,  tha t  we were  meet ing  a l l  the  t ime to  

look  a t  the  mon ies  fo r  the  ANC ins ide  the  count ry  and  

outs ide .  

Now when the  80  mi l l ion  came in  –  so  I  am dea l ing  

w i th  the  b ig  par t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    That  the  b ig  par t  I  am say ing  in  th is  20 

Commiss ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fore  you  go to  the  nar rower  pa r t ,  

you d id  re fe r  to  the  fac t  tha t  I  sa id  i f  we do not  wan t  th ings  

tha t  acco rd ing  to  the  ev idence tha t  the  Commiss ion  has 

heard  to  have happened in  the  past  to  happen aga in ,  i t  i s  
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c r i t i ca l  tha t  we be –  we re f lec t  ve ry  honest ly  on  what  i t  i s  

tha t  made those  th ings –  tha t  made i t  poss ib le  fo r  those  

th ings to  happen.  

MR MONTANA:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i f  we do not  know what  made i t  

poss ib le  fo r  those th ings to  happen we cannot  pu t  in  p lace  

cor rec t  measures to  p revent  them f rom recur r ing  in  the  

fu tu re  and so  I  repeat  tha t  we,  as  a  count ry,   and we as  

ind iv idua ls ,  we as  d i f fe ren t  g roups  have to  look  honest ly  a t  

what  i t  i s  tha t  b rought  us  here  and i t  p robab ly  i s  no t  a  10 

s ing le  th ing ,  i t  p robab ly  a  number  o f  th ings.   

Le t  us  look a t  those and then when  we know what  i t  

i s  tha t  made i t  poss ib le  fo r  those th ings to  happen,  we can  

look a t  what  i t  i s  tha t  we shou ld  pu t  in  p lace ,  make su re  

those th ings do  not  happen aga in .  

 So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you rea l l y  do  have in fo rmat ion  

tha t  can ass i s t  in  tha t  regard  we wou ld  apprec ia te  i t .   So  I  

jus t  wanted to  rea f f i rm tha t .   But  you were  in to  the  R80  

mi l l ion  th ing ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Deputy  Cha i r  –  Cha i r,  I  wanted to  read,  20 

Judge,  fo r  the  record  on  my sect ion  on  the  ANC.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    One o f  the  conc lus ions there ,  I  jus t  want  

to  read them in to  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA:    They are  par t  o f  my a f f idav i t ,  I  dea l  w i th  

them,  I  say :  

“Hav ing  dea l t  w i th ,  look ing  a t  the  52n d  Nat ional  

Conference and  the  repor t  o f  Secre tary  Genera l  

Kga lema Mot lan the…”  

And I  sa id  to  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  sa id  the  ANC shou ld  open 

about  the  las t  25  years ,  shou ld  be  very  open,  and I  sa id 

the :  

“ANC is  no t  on  t r ia l  and shou ld  no t  be  a f ra id  o f  th is  

cha l lenge,  i t  shou ld  draw s t rength  as  the  pa r ty  o f  10 

the  overa l l  ma jor i t y  o f  the  peop le  o f  South  A f r i ca  

and indeed the  change i t  w ishes to  see in  our  own  

soc ie ty.   The ANC has in  a  way a  spec ia l  ro le  in  ou r  

soc ie ty  and shou ld  fu l f i l  i t s  m iss ion ,  i t  i s  on ly  

th rough th i s  tha t  the  ANC wi l l  remain  a  her i tage o f  

a l l  the  peop le  o f  South  A f r i ca . ”  

Cha i r,  I  was d isappo in ted  when I  l i s tened to  what  the  ANC 

to ld  you in  th is  Commiss ion .    

Our  Pres ident  was he re  and I  thought  tha t  the  

leadersh ip  o f  the  count ry  w i l l  take  a  great  leap and  re f lec t  20 

honest ly  on  what  has happened over  the  past  few  years .   

We missed a  b ig  oppor tun i ty  p rec ise ly  because wanted to  

be  here  to  say the  ANC was courageous,  i t  dea l  w i th  the  

issue o f  s ta te  cap ture .    

And i f  you put  i t  in  tha t  way,  you are  ac tua l l y  
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s ta r t ing  a t  a  par t i cu la r  per iod ,  you want  to  ignore  what  

Kga lema Mot lan the  says about  the  dangers  o f  incumbency,  

what  i t  does to  our  own soc ie ty  and most  –  some o f  these  

th ings,  Cha i r,  may not  be  cr im ina l  bu t  you cou ld  tha t  i t  

s ta r t  to  e rode.    

He was there ,  no th ing  about  th ings tha t  I  have  

heard ,  Cha i r,  and I  sa id  on  Tw i t te r  las t  week as  the  

Pres ident  was tes t i f y ing ,  I  sa id  i f  I  was DCJ Zondo,  I  wou ld  

r i se  to  each and  every  CEO of  a  s ta te  owned enterp r ise  

and pub l i c  en t i t y  and say answer  two quest ions,  have you 10 

ever  made a  cont r ibu t ion  o r  been approached by  the  ANC? 

 Second ly,  have you been approached by  leaders  o f  

the  ANC for  the i r  own pe rsona l  bus inesses,  Cha i r?     

And you a l so  then put  a  p rov i s ion  tha t  you do not  –  

i f  you  were  found  to  have to ld  a  l ie ,  you w i l l  be  prosecuted.   

Okay,  Cha i r  –  o r  even i f  they  do  under  –  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  has  

been a  way o f  l i fe  and,  you see,  fo r  me,  I  do  no t  l i ke  l ies ,  I  

be l ieve  in  the  t ru th  and I  came to  th is  Commiss ion  to  te l l  

the  t ru th .    

I t  does not  make me less  commi t ted ,  less  o f  a  20 

member  o f  the  ANC.   But  the  ANC says we must  a l l  come 

here  and tes t i f y  be fore  you and I  thought  they wou ld  ra ise  

the  ba r,  Cha i r,  and I  want  to  say,  Cha i r,  w i thout  any fear  o r  

favour,  we missed a  b ig  oppor tun i t y  to  te l l  the  count ry  what  

i s  happen ing  and what  we need to  cor rec t .  



03 MAY 2021 – DAY 387 
 

Page 74 of 178 
 

 And I  th ink  tha t  once the  Commiss ion  has heard  my  

–  I  thought  we spoke about  –  the  Commiss ion  asked the  

Pres ident  what  Dr  Zwel i  Mkh ize  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sa id .  

MR MONTANA:    He conf i rmed bu t  the  ANC are  asked,  d id  

the  ANC get  the  80  mi l l ion  f rom Swi fambo,  the  ANC had 

issued a  s ta tement  and sa id  no .   And you know what  I  sa id  

to  Dr  Mkh ize  in  a  tex t  message?  I f  the  ANC d id  no t  ge t  the 

80  mi l l ion  –  i t  was not  coming f rom us,  i t  was no t  coming  

f rom PRASA,  i t  was not  a  cor rup t  dea l  and I  cannot  accuse 10 

Dr  Mkh ize  o f  be ing  cor rup t  because when th is  dea l  

happened he was  not  even Treasurer -Genera l  o f  the  ANC,  

he  became Treasure r -Genera l  o f  the  ANC la ter  bu t ,  Cha i r,  I  

was the re  w i th  h im a t  Mar ia  Gomez’s  house in  

Hawthorne(?)  and you wou ld  come – wou ld  s i t  there ,  I  

wou ld  be  there  to  d iscuss ANC monies  and Dr  –  Mar ia  

Gomez,  when the  TG has made some o f  the  requests  and  

requ i rements ,  somet imes she w i l l  be  g iven even accounts  

who to  pay and I  s i t  here ,  I  l i s tened to  the  Pres ident  las t  

week and the  ANC washes i t s  hands.    20 

I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  the  leadersh ip  o f  the  ANC’s  meet ing  to  da te  

must  re f lec t  honest ly  on  i t  and say  when we say we want  to  

coopera te  w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  when we say we  want  to  

ass is t  th is  Commiss ion ,  and las t  week Cha i r  i t  was not  one  

o f  those.     
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I  fe l t  ashamed as  a  member  o f  the  ANC tha t  we are  

no t  te l l ing  the  major i t y  o f  our  peop le  the  t rue  s to ry,  and I  

have reco rded Cha i r,  I  have got  a  b ig  sect ion  on  the  ANC 

here ,  inc lud ing  tenders  tha t  peop le  in  the  ANC got  and 

used the i r  own  pos i t ions ,  inc lud ing  some approaches  

Cha i r,  and I  am not  say ing  tha t  because I  want  to  p rove  

some anyone 's  wrong.   

But  I  th ink  tha t  we shou ld  learn  f rom i t  and say now 

tha t  we have got  the  Pres ident  tha t  s igned in to  law,  th is  

leg is la t ion  govern ing  the  way pa r t ies  shou ld  be ,  bu t  fo r  the 10 

ANC to  pre tend Cha i r  tha t  there  -  i t s  own conferences and  

events  are  no t  funded f rom pub l ic  funds,  i t  i s  no t  t rue  

Cha i r.  I  want  to  pu t  i t  ac tua l l y,  le t  me put  i t  as  b lun t ly  as  i t  

i s  no t  t rue  and th is  Commiss ion ,  maybe  shou ld  no t  hear  

f rom on ly  the  ANC,  i t  must  ex tend i t s  t ime –  I  am now 

urg ing  tha t  le t  us  ex tend ou r  t ime,  t i l l  the  end o f  the  year,  

app ly  fo r  tha t .   

Get  the  CEO’s  to  te l l  us  what  i s  the i r  re la t ionsh ip ,  I  

am te l l ing  my pa r ty,  you probab ly  hav ing  sca ry  th ings Cha i r  

f rom th is  p rocess .   So who must  sa id  -  who must  p rov ide  20 

leadersh ip  on  dec is ion ,  who must  ass i s t  th is  Commiss ion ,  

the  ANC is  supposed to  be  the  f i rs t ,  i t ' s  go t  no th ing  to  do  

w i th  w inn ing  or  l os ing  an  e lec t ion ,  i t  must  se t  the  bas is  so  

tha t  when th is  Commiss ion  pu ts  the  recommendat ion ,  they  

ass is t  our  count ry  so  tha t  some o f  the  th ings -  and Cha i r  
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they  must  abandon we s ta r ted  Kga lema Mot lan the  

re f lec t ing  a t  the  t ime befo re  Jacob  Zuma was Pres ident  o f  

the  Repub l ic ,  bu t  he  was one o f  us .   

Maybe,  maybe  he wants  to  come and the  

Commiss ion  wan t  to  inv i te  Kga lema Mot lan the  fo rmer  

Pres ident  and say,  what  were  you th ink ing ,  what  was in  

your  m ind,  what  was the  ANC th ink ing  on  th is  i ssue ,  Cha i r?   

But  now we a re  co lou r  cod ing…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  h is  repor t ,  whethe r  he  comes or  no t  

h is  repor t  may be  impor tan t ,  ja .  10 

MR MONTANA:    May be impor tan t  fo r  the  Commiss ion  

Cha i r  and you w i l l  be  ab le  to  assess i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  w i l l  be  ab le  to  say what  were  the  

cha l lenges tha t  he  ta lked about  in  h is  repor ts  in  2007.   

That  maybe have  been based on th ings tha t  had happened 

before  2007 and then look a t  the  SG’s  repor t  in  the  

Mangaung Conference and maybe look a t  the  SD’s repor ts  

in  2017 NASREC Conference and  see -  because I  have a  

susp ic ion  tha t  some o f  the  th ings are  the  same tha t  keep  

on be ing  ment ioned.  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  hear  f rom a  dep loyed cadre ,  I  d id  

no t  app ly  fo r  a  job  a  Lu thu l i  House but  the  ANC gave me a  

lo t  o f  du t ies  as  one o f  the i r  t rus ted  peop le  and i t  i s  a  way 

o f  l i f e  cha in  in  the  ANC tha t  when you are  in  tha t  pos i t ion ,  

you a l so  have to  f ind  a  way whether  d i rec t l y  o r  ind i rec t l y,  
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to  ass i s t  the  ANC.    

I t  i s  a  cu l tu re  tha t  i s  there  and i t  i s  a  cu l tu re  tha t  

members  o f  the  ANC and i t s  leaders  and I  am not  –  I  am 

ta lk ing  a t  the  genera l  leve l ,  I  am not  rea l l y  –  t hey do  

approach Cha i r,  to  even fo r  the i r  own bus inesses Cha i r  and 

say hey man Mon tana,  can you he lp  us  we a re  work ing  w i th  

th is  peop le ,  they  are  mak ing  cont r ibu t ion  to  the  movement  

and eve ry th ing  and some o f  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

the  movement .    

I t  i s  peop le ,  cadre ’s  enr i ch ing  themse lves Cha i r  and 10 

I  thought  the  ANC wou ld  re f lec t  honest ly  on  th is  i ssue,  

Cha i r  bu t  enough  o f  tha t  Cha i r,  fo r  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  you a re  r igh t  enough we w i l l  

move on fu r ther  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  a lso  say th i s .   When you  

say as  you have  jus t  sa id  a  few seconds ago,  they wou ld  

come to  somebody who is  a  CEO of  an  SOE and say he re  

are  these peop le  we were  work ing  w i th  th is  peop le ,  wou ld  

tha t  be  in  the  contex t  o f  say ing ,  when there  are  tenders  

remember  them o r  what?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  le t  me g ive  two spec i f i c  examples .  20 

When we d id  –  we are  dea l ing  w i th  SA Fence and Gate ,  

there  was a  tender  and I  know tha t  my leader  ge ts  angry  

when I  ment ioned  i t ,  bu t  i t  i s  t rue .   Enoch Godongwana fo r  

example ,  lobb ied  us  tha t  -  fo r  the  tender  to  be  awarded to  

a  par t i cu la r  company.   He den ies  i t ,  i t  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  
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happened and tha t  company was Sondo lo  and th is  Sondo lo  

I .T and Sondo lo  I .T i s  a  subs id ia ry  o f  BOSASA,  okay.   

Cha i r  I  knew Gav in  Woods very  we l l  and 

somet imes…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Gav in  Watson.  

MR MONTANA:    Sor ry,  Gav in  Watson,  h is  name is  Gav in  

Watson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  knew Gav in  Watson and you know when 

I  looked and I  l i s tened to  how he was be ing  t rea ted ,  10 

cr im ina l  and a l l  o f  those th ings.   When someone was very  

c lose  to  the  ANC,  who has done a  lo t  o f  th ings fo r  the  ANC 

and I  knew h im a  lo t  o f  comrades knew h im and Gav in  was  

a  good man,  a  good ANC person and now peop le  are  a f ra id  

to  come here  and say Cha i r,  because they want  to  p ro jec t  

the  par t i cu la r  p i c tu re .   

And I  was proud  when I  saw Jacob Zuma fo rmer  

Pres ident ,  he  came and the  way he spoke a t  Gav in 

Watson 's  funera l .   So we want  peop le  o f  courage,  tha t  

when i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t ,  we do not  wash ou r  hands.   The ANC 20 

was re fus ing  to  even to  meet  me Cha i r  because they  

be l ieved tha t  there  was h is  mass ive  cor rup t ion  a t  PRASA 

and fo r  me I  jus t  s tood f i rm.   

Okay,  I  sa id  you can have i t ,  you  can show i t  in  the  

med ia  i s  no t  t rue .   An oppor tun i ty  w i l l  a r i se  when I  te l l  the 
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count ry  the  t ru th .   Yes,  you canno t  h ide ,  you cannot  have 

d is tance fo rever.   Cha i r  i t  i s  a  way o f  l i f e  in  the  ANC and  

you w i l l  no t  say  we are  renewing the  ANC wi thout  look ing  

a t  these th ings bu t  the  ANC,  the  t ransformat ion  o f  the  ANC 

i t  i s  a  much b igger  i ssue,  i t  has  to  do  w i th  changes in  our  

own soc ie ty.   

I t  i s  no t  jus t  a  s imp le  quest ion  about  peop le  who  

s tea l  and peop le  who do not  s tea l ,  we can spend 100 years  

Cha i r,  accus ing  each o the r  o f  who s to le  what ,  who s to le  

what ,  some o f  these th ings are  no t  t rue .  Our  soc ie ty  i s  10 

chang ing ,  the  ANC ca l l s  i t se l f  a  leader  o f  soc ie ty  and when 

the  Pres ident  was here  l as t  week I  wanted to  hear  how we  

are  be ing  led ,  I  am not  re fe r r ing  to  the  Pres ident ,  bu t  by 

the  par ty.   

I t  fa i led  the  b iggest  tes t  o f  accountab i l i t y  and  

leadersh ip  las t  week the  ANC.   My own par ty  Cha i r,  okay  

so  cu r ren t ly  the  mode l  i t  has ,  is  to  have ve terans who 

speaks because we respect  them,  we love  them because o f  

the  enormous sac r i f i ces  they have made.   The w isdom they 

br ing  in to  the  th ing ,  they fo rm themse lves tha t  they have  20 

now become a  -  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  a  b log  tha t  ta rge ts  o the r  

peop le .   

I  hear  peop le  who know me very  we l l  who a re  par t  

o f  the  ve terans  who ta lk  about  PRASA’s  cor rup t ion ,  

because I  do  no t  rep ly  to  some o f  them because they are  
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so  sen io r,  I  respect  them.   Some o f  them have been there  

s ince  the  60 ’s  and I  sent  a  no te  to  them,  can I  p lease come 

v is i t  you a t  home and have tea  because I  want  to  show 

them qu ie t l y  tha t  what  we are  repeat ing  such and so  fo r th ,  

there  i s  no  bas i s  fo r  i t .   

So  Cha i r,  I  am say ing  tha t  I  am hop ing  tha t  be fore  

you round up th i s  Commiss ion  the  ANC wi l l  then have the  

courage to  come back and say we th ink  we s tand -  I  do  no t  

th ink  ANC i s  accused number  one  but  I  th ink  tha t  a  lo t  o f  

th ings has happened in  the  count ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    As  I  unders tand i t ,  and you must  jus t  

conf i rm i f  my unders tand ing  is  cor rec t .   What  you are  

say ing  is  when the  Commiss ion  has to  look  a t  how the  

leve l s  o f  cor rup t i on  arose,  the  way they arose,  and how 

var ious th ings happened,  wh ich  are  assoc ia ted  w i th  S ta te 

Capture ,  how those th ings happened.   

You say there  is  a  cer ta in  way o f  do ing  th ings w i th in  

the  ANC,  wh ich  i s  par t  o f  the i r  cu l tu re  tha t  has been the re  

fo r  a  long t ime.    

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  in  your  v iew,  must  have crea ted  

or  cont r ibu te  to  the  env i ronment  tha t  made the  co r rup t ion  

to  r i se  the  way i t  has  a r isen fo r  S ta te  Capture  to  happen 

and i f  the  ANC wants  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  and i f  the 

ANC wants  to  say go ing  fo rward ,  these th ings mus t  never  
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happen aga in  i t  must  s ta r t  by  acknowledg ing  tha t  cu l tu re  

and an ass i s t  the  Commiss ion .   

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  I  th ink  more  than tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  agree fu l l y  Cha i r  bu t  I  say  more  than 

tha t .  I  was as  you speak ing  Cha i r,  I  was t ry ing  to  pu t  ou t  -  

pu l l  ou t  two paragraphs tha t  speaks to  th is  i ssue fo r  me.   I  

say  in  my a f f idav i t  Cha i r,  tha t  ANC leaders  in  and  outs ide  

o f  government  tha t  used the i r  power fu l  pos i t ions ,  the  huge  

in f luence or  s tand ing  o f  the  ANC in  soc ie ty  to  even  10 

advance the i r  own persona l  in te res t .   

Leaders  who put  p ressure  on  many CEO’s  o f  SOE’s  

and pub l i c  en t i t ies  to  ass i s t  the  ANC or  en t i t ies  in  wh ich  

ANC leaders  or  members  can be long to  the  movement .   We 

know many o f  th is  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  ANC but  

comrades mak ing  money fo r  themse lves.   The name o f  the  

ANC was used in  va in .   

But  Cha i r,  I  am a lso  go ing  and  I  say  the  modus  

operand i  i s  tha t  the  leader  o f  the  ANC wou ld  secure  

meet ings fo r  bus inesses,  and they  are  somet imes pa id  fo r  20 

the i r  e f fo r t .   They are  pa id  fac i l i ta t ion  fees and more  on  

de l i very  o f  p ro jec ts .   These have been happen ing  s ince  the  

1990 ’s  and not  l im i ted  to  the  pe r iod  under  Jacob  Zuma,  

okay.  

Now Cha i r,  then there  were  issues o f  mon ies  go ing  
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in to  the  ANC,  okay,  o r  accounts  be ing  presented,  the  Mar ia  

Gomes s tory  Cha i r,  when I  heard  Papu say R80mi l l ion  went  

to  the  ANC I  d id  no t  know tha t ,  I  was a  CEO of  PRASA I  

was a l ready out  o f  PRASA.   Cha i r,  I  t rave l led  I  even went  

to  see Mar ia  on  my way to  Ber l in ,  in  2016.   I  passed  

th rough London,  and I  met  Ms Gomes in  London and I  

asked he r  where  is  the  money because I  am now be ing  to ld  

tha t  you have go t  a  cor rup t  dea l  because the  money went  

to  ANC.  

She sa id  two th ings Cha i r,  she conf i rmed tha t  she  10 

has g iven many monies  to  the  ANC t reasurer  and tha t  I  

know because I  was the re  Cha i r  when the  accounts  are  

prov ided to  show t ransparency,  tha t  i s  the  one th ing  Cha i r,  

par t i cu la r l y  in  the  per iod  lead ing  to  the  2014 e lec t ion .   

Cha i r,  there  were  even o ther  mon ies  be ing  

organ ised f rom outs ide  where  the  ANC wou ld  send peop le ,  

even Mar ia  Gomes t rave l led-  Mar ia  Gomes,  I  th ink  w i th  her  

husband.   I  cannot  reca l l  i t  f  Dr  Mkh ize  t rave l led  to  one o f  

the  A f r i can count r ies  the re ,  so  tha t  we can get  money fo r  

the  ANC 2014 e lec t ion  and when I  look  a t  the  s ta tement  o f  20 

the  ANC,  they denounced Mar ia  Gomes they do  not  know 

her  ye t  the  Treasure r  Genera l  o f  the  ANC were  s i t t ing  w i th  

them,  were  e i ther  hav ing  lunch or  d inner  a t  the i r  house and 

were  d i scuss ing  mon ies  tha t  were  go ing  the  ANC.   

Mar ia  then a l so  ment ioned –  so  she d id  no t  deny  
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tha t  she put  money in to  t he  ANC.   She sa id  th i s  money was 

fo r  the  ANC and she d id  t ha t  th rough  a  Treasurer  Genera l .   

But  the  ANC issued a  s ta tement  say ing  th is  money  d id  no t  

come to  the  ANC.   Now I  ask  in  my  a f f idav i t  whose account  

had been prov ided to  Mar ia  Gomes to  make a  cont r ibu t ion ,  

tha t  i s  one issue there  and I  th ink  tha t  –  so  I  am jus t  

say ing  tha t  there  is  a  lo t  o f  s tu f f  tha t  we can ta lk  about  

wh ich  I  thought  the  ANC wou ld  re f lec t  upon them.   

Now they may say Lucky maybe he is  b i t te r,  he  is  

angry  I  am not  an  angry  man Cha i r,  you can see I  am here  10 

but  tha t  i s  par t  o f  the  reason why I  f igh t  w i th  many leaders  

in  the  ANC because when they wanted -  when the  Gupta ’s  

came to  PRASA I  fought  w i th  them but  they wanted to  do  

exact ly  what  the  Gupta ’s  were  do ing  and I  sa id  no  to  them,  

I  became enemy number  one.   

So i t  was f ine  when I  fought  w i th  the  Gupta ’s  bu t  

when I  say  no ,  no ,  i s  the  same th ing .   Whethe r  i t  i s  in  th is  

bo t t le  o r  in  tha t  bo t t le  i t  i s  the  same wate r,  i t  cannot  be  

done.   So Cha i r,  the  R80mi l l ion  s to ry  i t  i s  no t  the  product  

o f  cor rup t ion .   I f  tha t  i s  co r rup t ion ,  Cha i r,  you are  go ing  to  20 

f ind  a  lo t  o f  o rgan isa t ion  who fo r  one reason o r  the  o the r  

have won tenders  in  th is  count ry,  and they have  made 

cont r ibu t ions to  the  ANC.   

They were  no t  –  they never  in f luenced Dr  Mkh ize  

and I  must  de fend h im and in  th is  par t i cu la r  ins tance,  he  



03 MAY 2021 – DAY 387 
 

Page 84 of 178 
 

was not  there  when we d id  the  PRASA Cha i r.   He came 

there  w i th  –  or  ra ther  the  Swi fambo t rans i t ,  he  came there  

–  he  was e lec ted  in  December  2012 when we awarded the  

cont rac t  to  Swi fambo,  he  s ta r ted  coming to  tha t  space la te  

in  2013/  2014 Cha i r  and i f  indeed Mar ia  Gomes gave 

money to  the  ANC we have to  check whethe r  i t  comes f rom 

o ther  bus inesses  or  i t  comes f rom Swi fambo,  Cha i r,  I  do 

no t  be l ieve  i t  came f rom Swi fambo tha t  i s  one th ing  tha t  i s  

there ,  bu t  we know tha t  tha t  has been used as  a  bas is  to  

suggest  cor rup t ion .   10 

I  looked a t  the  repor t  o f  the  l iqu ida to rs  and the  

invest iga to rs  Cha i r,  le t  me say Cha i r  they d id  no t  even  

know what  they are  ta lk ing  about .   Look a t  the  t ransc r ip t  

the  guy says I  do  no t  know the  t ransact ion  ye t  h is  ab le  to  

say -  in  fac t  what  the  repor ts  o f  the  invest iga tors  to  th is  

Commiss ion ,  o r  ra ther  the  l iqu ida tors  and the  inves t iga tors  

-   what  they are  say ing  to  th is  Commiss ion ,  they are  say ing  

two th ings Cha i r.    

They are  say ing  PRASA d id  no t  pay R3.5b i l l i on  in  

land ing  the  cont rac t ,  they  on ly  pa id  R2.6b i l l i on ,  t ra ins  were  20 

de l i vered Cha i r.   I  thought  tha t  R2.6b i l l i on  about  

R2.2 /2 .3b i l l i on  went  to  p laces.   One,  i t  went  to  Voss loh  the  

company tha t  bu i l t  the  t ra in  wh ich  the  manua l  says  to  buy 

components  and o ther  th ings.   Now we are  sa t is f ied  tha t  

ac tua l l y,  when I  read tha t  repor t ,  I  was sa t is f ied  tha t  the  
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bu lk  o f  the  money we pa id  went  towards bu i ld ing  these 

t ra ins ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue.  

And then aga in ,  the  money went  to  SARS and tha t  

we had about  R280mi l l ion  tha t  went  to  the  d i rec tors  o f  

Swi fambo.   Now,  when you l i s ten  to  the  newspapers  

R3.5b i l l i on  has been s to len ,  we never  pa id  3 .5  we pa id  we 

pa id  R2.6b i l l i on ,  R2.3b i l l i on  wen t  to  the  company tha t  

bu i lds  the  t ra ins  and money went  to  SARS and e f fec t i ve ly,  

the  issue under  d iscuss ion  is  whethe r  Swi fambo was  

ent i t led  to  the  R280mi l l ion  and whether  i t  shou ld  pay and  10 

what  k ind  o f  cor rup t ion  is  tha t?   

F ina l l y,  Cha i r,  the  repor t  o f  the  l iqu ida tors .  I  wanted  

fo r  me when I  read i t ,  I  was not  in te res ted  in  wha t  I  jus t  

sa id ,  I  wanted to  see the  money f lows,  they sa id  fo l low the  

money.  I  wanted to  see who a t  PRASA had been pa id ,  no t  

even a  s ing le  pe rson has been pa id .  The l iqu ida tors  and  

the  fo rens ic  exper ts ,  they never  found a  s ing le  one .   Now 

what  k ind  o f  cor rup t  dea ls  i s  tha t  Cha i r?    

I t  can  never  be ;  the  issue is  tha t  we a re  now 

th ink ing  how the  Swi fambo d i rec tors  used tha t  280.   I  20 

ended up w i th  somebody buy ing  a  house or  whatever  and 

then I  can say i t  i s  p roo f  o f  cor rup t ion .   I t  i s  no t  fa lse  

Cha i r,  and I  th ink  tha t  as  a  Commiss ion  we need  to  dea l  

w i th  tha t  and a l l  the  PRASA hear ings tha t  were  happen ing .   

I  fo l lowed them wi th  in te res t  Cha i r  because fo r  me,  I  am 
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ves ted  in  the  t ru th .  

So the  money was pa id ,  Mar ia  has  conf i rmed pay ing  

some money.   I t  is  no t  money –  she sa id  no ,  no ,  Lucky I  am 

invo lved in  o i l  and I  am invo lved in  o ther  th ings,  I  pu t  

money in to  the  ANC and as  an  Ango lan  me and my 

husband we are  the  f r iends o f  the  ANC,  we put  money.   The  

ANC knows tha t  I  met  Mar ia  Gomes,  th rough leaders  o f  the 

ANC,  no t  in  some corners  because o f  the  PRASA dea l ,  

when we d id  the  dea l  she was not  there  I  never  knew her  

Cha i r.  10 

F ina l l y,  Cha i r,  le t  me say on  th is  one.   I  t r ied  to  see 

Dr  Mkh ize ,  i t  i s  in  my a f f idav i t .   Cha i r,  you know what  I  pu t  

in  my a f f idav i t  and peop le  w i l l  come and say,  i t  i s  t rue  we 

want  to  be  cross  examined,  I  am ready Cha i r.   But  le t  me 

say th is ,  I  wanted to  see Dr  Mkh ize  someone tha t  I  was  

work ing  w i th  very  c lose ly.   I  was  a t  Lu thu l i  House or  in  

some ins tances,  and I  th ink  a lso  we s tar ted  work ing  

together  when he  was –  because when he was e lec ted  he 

was s t i l l  a lso  Treasure r  Genera l ,  so  he  was s t i l l  a  Premie r  

and I  th ink  tha t  i s  when the  prov ince was s t i l l  a  work ing  20 

mechan ism.   

So he was do ing  –  so  somet imes I  meet  h im a t  the  

a i rpor t  be fore  he  wou ld  f l y  to  KZN,  so  he  was do ing  a l l  o f  

those th ings.    So I  am not  ta lk ing  about  th ings I  do  no t  

know I  am ta lk ing  about  th ings tha t  I  was d i rec t l y  invo l ved  
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in .   When I  le f t  PRASA Cha i r,  because Dr  Mkh ize  a t  some 

s tage a l so  wanted o the r  dea ls  fo r  the  movement ,  wh ich  I  

re jec ted  and I  became a  b ig  enemy.  

When I  t r ied  to  d i scuss the  R80mi l l ion  Cha i r,  d id  the  

ANC get  th is  money,  what  happened? I  s t rugg led  Cha i r,  I  

cou ld  no t  see Dr  Mkh ize .   You know I  met  h im a t  the  ho te l ,  

I  d ropped h im an SMS,  a  tex t  message and I  sa id  and I  was 

be ing  sarcast ic  Cha i r  and I  th ink  Vodacom wi l l  g ive  us  th i s  

SMS’s  we must  ask  Cha i r  tha t  we get  tha t  SMS’s .   I  sa id  to  

Dr  Mkh ize ,  I  g ree ted h im TG,  th is  i s  a  tex t  message.    10 

My name is  Lucky Montana,  you may not  remember  

me,  I  am the  fo rmer  Group CEO of  PRAS and I  wanted to  

d iscuss w i th  you the  s ta tement  i ssued by  the  ANC tha t  they 

know noth ing  about  the  moneys,  the  R80mi l l ion  and I  sa id  

i f  the  s ta tement  o f  the  ANC and I  used the  word  i f  Cha i r  

guarded ly.  

I f  the  ANC d id  no t  rece ive  th is  money and I  sa id  i t  

te l l s  me two th ings,  a lso  I  be l ieve  tha t  he  made payments  

to  the  ANC and the  ANC d id  no t  rece ive  money.   And I  sa id  

bo th  the  ANC and  Swi fambo,  can i t  be  or  no t  Swi fambo but  20 

Auswel l  Mashaba  had ac tua l l y  been def rauded and I  sa id ,  I  

w ish  to  d iscuss th is  i ssue w i th  you.   

He sent  me a  tex t  message and you know the  

beauty  about  tex t  messages they are  on  reco rd Cha i r  and  

we can s t i l l  pu l l  them out  and say here  is  a  fac t .   He ca l led  
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me,  I  s t rugg led  to  see h im fo r  months bu t  I  saw h im tha t  

very  day tha t  I  sent  h im a  tex t  message.  

He ca l led  me and  say I  am a t  the  ho te l ,  in  Sandton  

come and see me.   I  went  there ,  when I  go t  there ,  the  f i rs t  

th ing  he  d id  was to  bera te  me and  i t  i s  aga in  in  my 

a f f idav i t .   How can you say these th ings on  an SMS 

because you know,  th is  i n fo rmat ion  can be -  t hen he sa id  

to  me,  I  have rece ived money,  he  conf i rmed tha t  rece iv ing  

money but  I  do  no t  know whe ther  i t  i s  pa r t  o f  the  

R80mi l l ion ,  and I  d id  no t  rece ive  R80mi l l ion  anyway.   So i f  10 

i t  was par t  o f  the  R80mi l l ion ,  I  d id  no t  rece ive  a l l  the 

money,  okay.  

 And tha t  day Cha i r,  I  le f t  knowing par t  o f  the  t ru th  

and tha t  i s  when  I  sa id  the  on ly  person who is  go ing  to  

he lp  i s  Mar ia  Gomes -  a t  my own cost ,  I  was inv i ted  by  

ra i lway compan ies ,  in te rna t iona l  ra i lway compan ies  to  

come to  Ber l in  to  d iscuss ra i lways ,  dur ing  the  inner  te rm,  I  

was no longer  a t  PRASA Cha i r,  bu t  they to ld  me we th ink  

you can cou ld  he lp  us  in  A f r i ca .   

So I  f lew there ,  bu t  I  t rave l led  no t  my usua l  rou te ,  20 

t ra in  fo r  Ber l in  I  went  v ia  London and I  sent  Ms Gomes,  I  

sa id ,  I  am on my way to  Ber l in  can  I  see you?  she inv i ted  

me…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and o f  course  you have to ld  me what  

happened there .  
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MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  what  happened the i r  Cha i r,  and the re  

Cha i r  we spoke,  she conf i rmed.   So Cha i r,  I  am say ing  tha t  

I  can re lay  a l l  o f  these th ings and tha t  i s  why I  hope the  

ANC wou ld  be ,  bu t  I  want  to  te l l  the  count ry  Cha i r,  I  want  

to  te l l  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  want  to  te l l  the  count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    The Swi fambo cont rac t  i t  i s  no t  a  cor rup t  

cont rac t .   Even Judge Franc is  Jay –  you know Cha i r  on  

c iv i l  mat te rs  we have a  prob lem and th is  w i l l  be  my las t  

po in t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  have been qu i te  a  few o f  your  

las t  po in t s .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  so  th is  w i l l  be  the  las t  I  p romise  

Cha i r,  Judge Franc i s  J  –  you take  tha t ,  you a lso  take  the  

Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l .   On c iv i l  mat te rs  you have cour ts  

mak ing  rea l l y  un for tunate  s ta tements .   When somebody 

says Popo,  Mr  Mole fe  goes to  Cour t  we say tha t  we  be l ieve  

tha t  there  was  wrongdo ing  and he ment ioned f i ve  

i r regu lar i t ies .   

 They may be t rue ,  they may not  be  t rue  Cha i r  and 20 

the  Cour ts  take  those i r regu lar i t ies  and they want  -  I  heard  

tha t  t ime i t  was  common Cha i r  tha t  when we dea l  w i th  

PRASA you a re  dea l ing  w i th  a  b ig  Tsots i ,  Lucky Montana,  

even when i t  was  not  be fore  Cour t  the  judgment  mus t  be  as  

damning as  poss ib le ,  okay and Mr  Son i  sa id ,  w i th  th is  he  
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w i l l  accept  those  judgments  Cha i r,  b i t  a  c iv i l  judgments  -  

and you w i l l  see  tha t  when I  go  I  dea l  w i th  each and 

every th ing .   

 I t  i s  a  Swi fambo f ron t ,  no  Cha i r  there  was no f ron t  

here .   D id  they -  was the re  money  pa id?   And i f  there  was 

money pa id  Cha i r,  you know who i t  w i l l  be  pa id  to?   I t  w i l l  

be  pa id  to  members  o f  the  Commiss ion  Commi t tee ,  

Ad jud i ca t ion  Commi t tee ,  the  CEO of  PRASA,  the  Board  

Commi t tee  on  p rocurement  and the  Board  o f  PRASA.  

Then why do we not  ca l l  a l l  o f  these guys and dea l  10 

w i th  tha t  i ssue in  tha t  way?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  s ta r t  th is  –  le t  us  ho ld  i t  

there .   I  am sure  tha t  la te r  on ;  i t  wou ld  no t  be  necessary  to  

go  in to  a  lo t  o f  de ta i l s  on  issues tha t  you have dea l t  w i th  

now.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now in  fa i rness to  the  ANC Mr  

Montana a t  page 214.134 o f  SS4,  Mr  Mashaba says ;  

“By v i r tue  o f  the  fu l l  g ra in…[ in tervene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  tha t  i s  PRASA Bund le  C1,  

Exh ib i t  SS4?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  jus t  to  make sure  tha t  i s  a lways 

more  conven ien t  tha t  you s ta r t  w i th  the  bund le  than one  
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knows whether  one has got  the  r igh t  bund les .   Okay and  

what  page?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A t  page 214.134.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    “By  v i r tue  o f  the  four  g rand donat ions  

by  leas ing  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  ANC,  never  reached  

the  ANC and Mar ia  Gomes and  Mr  Sabe la  have 

un lawfu l l y  rece ived and re ta ined the  sum o f  

R9.4mi l l ion  and  accord ing ly  these amounts  a re  

re fundab le . ”  10 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l  Cha i r,  I  am  happy to  hear  tha t  

Cha i r,  I  have not  seen th is ,  I  am  see ing  th is  fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime but  i f  tha t  is  the  pos i t ion ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t   I  am  

happy because i t  ind ica tes  tha t  the  no ise  tha t  the  ANC took  

R80mi l l ion  f rom Swi fambo was fa lse  and i t  a lso  te l l s  us  

tha t  the  s ta tement  made by  Popo  Mole fe  under  oa th  tha t  

the  ANC rece ived  R80mi l l ion  Cha i r,  was ac tua l l y  fa lse  and  

i t  d id  ac tua l l y  -  he  m is led  Judge Franc is , J  in  th is  par t i cu la r  

regard  Cha i r,  because I  th ink  some o f  the  s t rong  

s ta tements  about  cor rup t ion  they even emanate  f rom th is  20 

k ind  o f  th ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  when Mr  Son i  -  when Mr  Mashaba 

says in  paragraph 6  tha t  you jus t  read:  

“These amounts  are  re fundab le . ”  

I s  he  ta lk ing  about  them be ing  re fundab le  to  whom? 
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    From Mr  Sabe la  and Ms Gomes,  in  

parag raph 5  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  ja  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A t  the  sect ion  417 inqu i ry  Mr  Sabe la  

tes t i f ied  tha t  he  had never  been a  fundra iser  fo r  the  ANC 

and the  on ly  par t  tha t  he  p layed in  leas ing  was to  co l lec t  

amounts  i nvo iced by S IM Leas ing ,  where  a f te r  he  

d ispersed the  amount  to  S teve ,  p resumably  in to  the  

account  o f  NS as d i rec ted  by  Mar ia  Gomes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  NS re ference to  aga in ,  I  am 10 

t ry ing  to  look?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  do  no t  see a  re fe rence to  NS here  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because f rom paragraph f i ve ,  i t  appears  

tha t  Mr  Mashaba says,  GS tha t  i s  Mr  George Sabe la?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Gave ev idence a t  the  sect ions 417 

inqu i ry  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  one,  he  had never  been a  

fundra iser  fo r  the  ANC,  two the  on ly  par t  tha t  he  –  NS,  oh  

NS wou ld  be  the  law f i rm…[ in te rvene]  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh the  law f i rm,  sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  law f i rm,  E /NS p layed  

in  leas ing  p lus  to  co l lec t  amounts  invo i ced by  S im,  what  i s  

S im?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    S im is  S im i lex ’s .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  S im i lex ’s?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  Ms Gomes’s  f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ent i t y,  yes  –  I  was to  co l lec t  amounts  

invo i ced by S IM for  leas ing .   So S im i lex  wou ld  have sent  

invo i ces fo r  leas ing ,  tha t  i s  Swi fambo and so  he  as  Mr  

Sabe la  -  accord ing  to  Mr  Mashaba ’s  says,  h is  ro le  and the  

ro le  o f  h is  f i rm was bas i ca l l y  to  c la im f rom Swi fambo.    

What ,  the  amoun ts  tha t  appeared  in  invo ices sent  

by  S im i lex  and where  a f te r  he  d ispersed the  amounts  

rece ived.  So he wou ld  have known how he d i spersed the  10 

amounts  tha t  he  rece ived as  d i rec ted  by  MG,  tha t  i s  Ms  

Gomes.   So he wou ld  say whether  he  -  where  he  d i rec ted  

mon ies .  

ADV SONI SC:   So what -  and I  am just  taking the big 

picture that  emerges around the f low of  funds.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   There is that  monies were dispersed by 

Swifambo Simi lex.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   There they were saying that   20 

“ I  received inst ruct ions f rom Maria Gomez to 

pay these amounts to Simi lex.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   So that  is the amount of  R79.4 mi l l ion.   But  

Mashaba is saying that  that  money never – because Sabelo 
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was never a fund ra iser wi th the ANC that  money never  

reached the ANC. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   What I  am more interested in  is s ince 

Mr Sabelo says his and his law f i rm’s role was to col lect  the 

money f rom Swifambo that  was ref lected in invoices sent  by 

ADV SONI SC:   S imi lex.  

CHAIRPERSON:   S imi lex to Swifambo and he says that  he or 

his law f i rm would then disperse those amounts in 

accordance with instruct ions of  Ms Maria Gomes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ms Gomes yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The next  obvious thing is to say where did 

he – where was his inst ructed to send that  to.   We do not  

know that  based on th is document.  

ADV SONI SC:   Not  – not  f rom th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay al r ight .   You want  to say 

something Mr Montana? 

MR MONTANA:   I f  I  may Chai r?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  the – the – when I  met Ms Gomes’s 

husband there are instances where Mr Sabelo was wi th them 20 

and – then I  knew that  the – and that  is why number 5 maybe 

Mashaba is quot ing what the George Sabelo said at  the 

l iquidat ion hearing but  I  know for  example that  in  those 

discussions there was no clar i ty that  he is a member of  the 

ANC Fund Raising and al l  of  those things and in some at  the 
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in i t ia l  meet ing because at  that  point  Mkhize was not  there 

but  – but  I  th ink that  Vikas Sagar was part  of  those.  So that  

is why I  am surpr ised you f ind.  

 The second th ing Chai r  that  I  want to say is that  I  

worked for PRASA and I  get  a salary af ter I  have rendered 

serv ices whether as a t rain dr iver or  whatever and I  use my 

salar ies in  a part icular  way the problem of  course for  the 

commission is to decide what is i t  that  i t  is fo l lowing because 

here is a f low of  money tel ls us a story but  i t  may not  te l l  us 

a t rue story.   Unless the commission would say Swifambo 10 

obtained – received money unlawful ly and that  is why this  

money was dist r ibuted.   But  i f  Chai r  is saying PRASA paid 

Swifambo within a contract  R2.6 b i l l ion and the bulk of  that  

money – that  is why I  said for the commission i t  has to then 

make a determinat ion whether the di rectors of  Swifambo 

af ter having the – and the – you know i f  – i f  they were given 

R2.6 bi l l ion they never even del ivered a single t rain.    

Then the commission has got  legi t imate interests hey 

that  the – there is a problem here – we give you money to 

buy – to bui ld houses you do not  bui ld them.  Swifambo is 20 

paid is de l iver ing these t rains – we use al l  of  them and later  

on we are told the t rains are tal l .    

Now I  th ink the commission in my view Chai r  did 

come to a determinat ion what is  i t  that  the di rectors of  

Swifambo are ent i t led – and i f  i t  says the 280 or whatever 
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amount they – they then repaid themselves – i t  belongs to  

them and they bought houses they gave to the ANC that  is a 

di fferent  matter.    

But  i t  says Swifambo was involved in a corrupt  deal  

and got  paid monies that  were not  legi t imately  due to them 

then of  course then the – the f low of  money f rom – f rom Mr 

Mashaba to Simi lex or v ia George and what – and then i t  

ra ises the quest ion when Ms Gomez was put t ing money to 

the ANC is i t  the same money?  Is i t  d i fferent  money?  Is the 

f low of  money showing us a lso as the – that  Sabelo also paid 10 

the ANC f rom part  of  that  money?   

Now these facts are very important  because Chai r  

they assist  the commission to deal  wi th – wi th the Terms of  

Reference corrupt ion,  f raud and as wel l  as state capture.   

But  when you do i t  in general  we are going to  have a 

si tuat ion where Lucky Montana earned the salary,  he buy a 

house and we say no,  no even i f  h is salary is part  of  that  

corrupt  th ing and I  do not  th ink that  we – I  th ink we need to 

be very speci f ic on this matter so that  we can answer the 

r ight  quest ion in  l ine wi th the Terms of  Reference of  the 20 

commission.   That  wi l l  be my humble submission Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no that  is  f ine.   I  mean obviously I  

th ink what the – what the commission is do ing and the 

invest igators and the legal  team is to keep our minds open 

that  somet imes something that  may look leg i t imate and 
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innocuous might  not  be.  And somet imes something that  looks 

i l legi t imate and cr iminal  might  not  be.   So i t  is keeping that  

mind and – and that  open mind and probing and stopping 

where i t  looks l ike there is no reason to go further.   Okay Mr 

Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Can I  then ask you to turn to the same 

bundle that  is Bundle C1 SS Ford Stand documents to page 

214.149.   Oh sorry before you – before we go there can I  

just  keep you at  133 Mr Montana and say that  according to 

paragraph 1 now and this is why the l ink to Swifambo is not  10 

al l  that  tenuous because at  paragraph 1 Mr Mashaba says:  

“Short ly af ter leasing was awarded the 

tender th is approach was made up. ”  

I  am just  making the point  that  i t  – in Mr Mashaba’s mind 

certainly the award of  the tender and the approach are not  

unrelated.   Whether  that  is  correct  or not  I  am just  making 

that  point .   And he is saying this on oath.  

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  would accept  that .   The issue of  

course for the invest igators have got  an interest ing job to 

f ind out  f rom the Sabelo and the other person when you 20 

approach were you – were they informed by PRASA people 

were they doing al l  – because we are t ry ing to get  to the 

bot tom of  corrupt ion.   

ADV SONI SC:   But  let  me make another point  you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course – of  course I  can say and you 
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may have been aware f rom the media that  the commission 

had issued summons against  Mr Mashaba for him to come 

and give evidence and he decided to defy the summons and 

then not  come here.   His complaint  was as far as I  – no I  

gave instruct ions that  the complaint  be la id and I  th ink i t  was 

la id wi th the pol ice but  that  – that  is just  one fact  you know.  

Of course there is  the issue of  Mr George Sabelo’s version.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  on a l ighter note would the 

commission consider – because I  was a lso defying the 

summonses f rom the commission but  I  changed my mind.   I t  10 

is not  lef t  up to the commission to contact  me to convince al l  

people who are defying the commission to be also come – of  

course i t  wi l l  come at  a  fee Chai r  but  i t  is something that  the 

commission – I  know the Terms – the t ime of  the commission 

is coming to an end Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but . .  

MR MONTANA:   But  i t  is not  something the commission wi l l  

consider.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is on a l ighter note.   Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see we are at  one o’clock.  

ADV SONI SC:   Can I  just  f in ish th is Chairperson? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is f ine.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then we wi l l  f in ish Mr Montana … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f ine.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Ms Ngoye’s aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f ine.   That  is f ine.   Wel l  I  can just 

say on a l ighter  note Mr Montana that  I  thought  that  you 

know the commission would get  very good cooperat ion f rom 

lots of  people and i t  has got  good cooperat ion but  there are 

some who do not  th ink that  th is commission is  such a good 

idea.    

MR MONTANA:   Chair  you do i t  an emergency appointment 

consider ing the t ime is coming to an end and that  you cannot  

go out  on tender because then we award in  six months.   So 10 

here is a candidate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are a so le source?  Yes Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chairperson.   Can I  now ask 

you to turn to page 214.149 page 00:09:53 on the same 

bundle B1 and this is  now a cont inuat ion of  the aff idavi t  that  

under note 32 is the 00:10:06 to leasing concluding a sub-

contract  agreement wi th Vosloo for the sa le of  70 

locomot ives and wi thout  the knowledge of  leasing and i ts 

consent Vosloo paid Mr Makhensa Mabunda – so the S 

Group an amount of  approximately R75 mi l l ion.   Are you 20 

aware of  th is payment? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chair  I  was not  aware unt i l  I  read in  

the newspapers that  Montana’s f r iend got  paid R75 mi l l ion.  

Chair  I  d id not  know – I  d id not  know about i t .   I  d id not  know 

that  – the terms but  Chai r  I  th ink let  me say that  my 
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understanding is that  when they were put t ing – I  do not  know 

when they were put t ing the NIP – what is i t  cal led – Nat ional  

Indust r ia l  Part ic ipat ion Program my understanding is that  

Swifambo then asked Mr Mabunda to help them.  I  th ink they 

had some kind of  an agreement  but  th is one is  st range 

because he is  now working wi th them and he also worked 

wi th Vosloo.   I  wi l l  not  – I  wi l l  not  offer any explanat ion for  

that  Chair  but  that  was my understanding of  the whole 

t ransact ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.    10 

ADV SONI SC:   Wel l  we know that  – and I  am just  saying 

this to you so we f in ish this – that  Swifambo did pay Mr 

Mabunda or the S f i rm severa l  mi l l ion rand – and that  is  

ref lected in th is  aff idavi t .   I  d id  not  refer to that  and I  

purposely did not  refer to  that  because the point  you make 

Mr Montana is th is that  i f  Swifambo had engaged the 

serv ices of  the S Group for Mr Mabunda i t  might  wel l  be 

improper for Mr  Mabunda to then receive a R75mil l ion 

payment which is  the compla int  that  Mr Mashaba makes at  

note 32.   That  is the only point  I  want to make.  20 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r  I  wi l l  accept  that  only i f  the 

R75mi l l ion is related to the – their  contracts.   You remember 

my understanding of  the – of  what  these guys should do – 

what Mr Mabunda was doing was actual ly cont racted to many 

companies in Europe he was work ing wi th.   Now the f i rst  
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issue lef t  to ver i fy the R75 mi l l ion l inked to  the Swifambo 

contract  or not?  Because i f  i t  is not  there is no conf l ict  – i f  i t  

is part  of  that  then clear ly  there is a conf l ict  Chai r  so we 

need to look at  i t  in a round.  

ADV SONI SC:   Wel l  fortunately we wi l l  not  need to look at  i t  

i t  wi l l  need – i t  w i l l  be some other forum that  wi l l .  I  am just  

saying that  Mr Mashaba’s mind.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is the impropr iety on Mr Mabunda’s 

part .  10 

MR MONTANA:   No not  that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   Let  us take the lunch 

adjournment.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is f ive past  we wi l l  resume at  f ive past  

two.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  happened th is  t ime,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA :    Sor ry,  Cha i r  I  was fee l ing  a  b i t  co ld .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  thought  I  was go ing  to  go  and get  a  
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ves t  and by  the  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . I  rea l i sed tha t  i t  was s i l l y.   So I  jus t  

abandoned and came back qu ick ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . to  be  on  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay.   

Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.   Cha i rpe rson,  

you w i l l  reca l l  when Ms Ngoye  gave her  ev idence,  she  10 

dea l t  w i th  the  a l legat ions tha t  had been made  in  the  

S iyagena mat te r  in  the  h igh  cour t .   S ince then the  h igh  

cour t  has announced judgment  in  th is  S iyagena mat te r.   So 

ra the r  then put  those a l legat ions to  Mr  Montana,  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  pu t  on  record  what  the  cour t ’s  f ind ings were  in  

regard  to  those a l legat ions made by  Ms  Ngoye  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So i f  –  what  I  w i l l  do  is  what  we d id  

on  a  prev ious . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  assume tha t  th is  means we have  moved  

away f rom the  Sw i fambo mat te r?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  the  in tended doc t r ine  is  
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jus t  to  re fe r  to  the  paragraphs in  wh ich  the  s ign i f i can t  

f ind ings were  made.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   I f  you  cou ld  s ta r t  by  g iv ing  

the  names o f  the  par t ies  and the  case number.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  as  you p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  h igh  –  wh ich  h igh  cour t  and so  

fo r th .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  the  

judgment  in  t he  mat te r  o f  PRASA v  S iyangena  

Techno log ies  and  the  re t i red  Just ice  Go lds te in  and  re t i red  10 

Just ice  Jo f fe  and  in te rven ing  par t i es  when -un i te  beh ind .   I  

am so r ry.   In  the(? )  app l i cant  and un i te  beh ind  them(?) .   

Now,  i t  i s  a  judgment  o f  the  Gauteng Cour t ,  Cha i rperson.   

May I  jus t ,  so  tha t  we have the  fu l l  fac ts?  

[Speaker  no t  c lea r ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you want  to  read the  case number  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Oh,  sor ry.   As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i rpe rson .   I t  i s  –  20 

the  case number  i s  2018/14332 and 2018/11314.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  judgment  seems to  have been  

handed down on the  8 t h  o f  October  2020.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    The  8 t h  o f  October  2020 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .by  the  fu l l  bench,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  jus t  need to  po in t  ou t  tha t  there  had 

been a  prev ious app l i ca t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   And i t  i s  the  Gauteng  

D iv i s ion  o f  the  H igh  Cour t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I t  i s  the  Gauteng D iv is ion .   As  you 

p lease.   In  Pre tor ia (?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    What  had happened Cha i rperson is .   

And th is  the  mat te r  tha t  Mr  Montana,  I  th ink ,  has re fer red  

to  p rev ious ly.   That  ce r ta in  persons app l ied  to  be  admi t ted  

or  to  be  ab le  to  f i le  a f f idav i t s  and  a  fu l l  bench o f  the  h igh  

cour t  p r io r  to  th is  judgment  had a l lowed them to f i le  

a f f idav i t s .  

 Th is  cour t ,  however,  look ing  a t  the  law in  

re la t ion  to  what  ev idence may be taken in to  account  

dec ided tha t  on  the  bas i s  o f  the  Maseko(?)  judgment  and a  

judgment  o f  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  tha t  on l y  the  re levant  20 

par t ies ,  namely,  PRASA and S iyagena the  a f f idav i t s  

p resented by  them shou ld  be  taken in to  account .  

 So I  jus t  p resent  tha t  because i t  had ra ised an 

issue tha t  had been ra ised by  Mr  Montana.   And you w i l l  

reca l l  Cha i rperson he a lso  ra i sed tha t  in  the  Swi fambo  
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mat te r.   So th is  judgment  does not  dea l  w i th  the 

a l legat ions or  the  answers  tha t  he  gave in  h is  a f f idav i t  in  

th is  mat te r (? ) .  

MR MONTANA :    Can I  say  someth ing  qu ick l y?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  very  qu i ck ly,  p lease,  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   No,  no  i t  i s  a  

fundamenta l  mat te r.   Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  on  record .   

Mr  Son i  i s  pa r t l y  r igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    We d id  no t  app ly.   PRASA went  to  cour t .   10 

I  th ink  i t  has  los t  a  coup le  o f  t imes in  these mat te rs .   I  

th ink  on  four  t imes.   Now the i r  las t  rev iew app l ica t ion  tha t  

they made,  i t  was a  fu l l  bench o f  th ree  judges wh ich  then  

wro te  tha t  i t  i s  no t  in  the  in te res t  o f  jus t i ce  fo r  a l legat ions 

to  be  made aga ins t  o f f i c ia ls  and  they are  no t  g iven an  

oppor tun i ty.   So i t  d id  no t  app ly.   We . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  f i l ed  a  de ta i led  a f f idav i t  w i th  a  lo t  

o f  ev idence.   Two weeks before  tha t  mat te r,  the  who le  

bench was changed.   A new bench came in .   And our  own  20 

a f f idav i t  tha t  was asked by  the  cour t  to  pu t  together,  we  

were  to ld  tha t  tha t  ev idence is  no  longer  admiss ib le .   So 

our  a f f idav i t  tha t  were  asked by  the  cour t .   So we are  no t  

tak ing  anyth ing(? ) .   But  when you  read the  judgment ,  you  

can hear,  Cha i r,  tha t  they,  in  fac t ,  i t  was.   But  I  w i l l  no t  
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a rgue tha t .   I  accept  what  Mr  Son i  i s  say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . fo r  the  sake o f  p rog ress bu t  I  th ink  we 

shou ld  record  i t  p roper ly,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . in  tha t  regard .   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  fo r  what  i t  i s  

wor th .   I t  wou ld  be  good,  maybe,  tha t  w i l l  be  in  your  –  

maybe tha t  i s  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  shou ld  be  good to  ge t  tha t  

fac tua l  background tha t  you have jus t  ou t l ined la te r  on .  10 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  th is  –  the  mat te r  i s  dea l t  w i th  

ind ica t ing  my . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Ms  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  as  you p lease.   Cha i rpe rson,  

Mr  Montana is  r igh t .   The –  a  fu l l  bench –  and tha t  i s  why  

there  a re  two case numbers .   A fu l l  bench had gran ted the  

persons who asked to  submi t  a f f idav i t  bu t  th is  cour t  looked  

a t  tha t  and based  on the  pr inc ip le  tha t  they d id  no t  have a  

d i rec t  and substant ia l  in te res t  in  the  proceed ings tha t  were  

be fore  them,  dec ided tha t  they wou ld  no t  take  the  f i rms(?)  20 

in  those a f f idav i t s . . .  [Speaker ’s  vo i ce  d rops –  unc lea r ]  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   Can I  aga in?   I  do  no t  want  

to  d is rup t  Mr  Son i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I t  must  be  pu t  –  we a re  pu t t ing  on  reco rd  
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tha t  we never  app l ied .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    The cour t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Inv i ted  you.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  the  second th ing ,  Cha i r.   I  jus t  want  

to  say Mr  Son i .   I  do  no t  want  to  debate  i t  bu t  they cannot  

say  the  cour t  dec ided to  take  because these guys do  not  

have substant ia l  in te res t .   I f  you  say in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  

the  S iyagena was awarded the  cont rac t  in  a  cor rup t  way 

and you ment ion  peop le ’s  names and then you ask  them to  10 

come –  and then you say –  then,  sure ly,  Cha i rperson there  

is  a  b ig  p rob lem.   I  jus t  want  to  say tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  dea l  w i th  i t  in  my a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  jus t  want  to  emphas ise .   We d id  no t  

app ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    The cour t  emphas ised,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    I  d id  an  a f f idav i t  and I  sa id  I  want  to  

ass is t  bo th  pa r t ies ,  bo th  S iyagena and PRASA because i t  

seems they a re  ge t t ing  the i r  fac ts  wrong.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I  have p rov ided those and sa id  they can  
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be  used.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  the  cour t  ru le ,  no t  f rom any 

app l i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

MR MONTANA :    To  say i t  i s  no t  in  the  in te res t  o f  jus t i ce .   

And I  th ink  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  judgment  tha t  the  th ree  –  by  the  

th ree  judges was  fo r  me i t  was the  r igh t  dec is ion  because 10 

i t  dea l t  w i th  the  in te res t  o f  jus t i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And I  th ink  in  th is  par t i cu la r  case,  o f  

course  I  do  no t  have an in te res t  in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  i f  I  am re fer red  to  –  I  do  no t  have an 

in te res t  in  the  mat te r.   Sure ly,  Cha i r,  bu t  the  in te res t  o f  

jus t i ce  i s  be ing  undermined.   But  I  th ink  le t  us  proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  jus t  wanted to  record  those fac ts  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  can I  jus t  f in ish  th i s  

par t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I t  i s  addressed a t  parag raphs  34,  35  
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and 39 o f  the  judgment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    On th is  very  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  I  jus t  want  to  read to  

you re levant  par t s  o f  the  judgment  and a t  the  end you can 

comment  on  i t .   A t  parag raph 43 the  cour t  says:  

“The background  fac ts  a re  de ta i l ed  because 

they prov ide  ins igh t  in to  how the  re la t ionsh ip  

was fo rmed. . . ”  10 

 And he is  ta lk ing  about  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  

S iyagena pe rsons  and PRASA o f f i c ia ls .    

“The deta i l s  o f  the  pa t te rn  o f  conduct  show 

how increas ing l y  the  par t i c ipants  came to 

igno re  the  procurement  requ i rements ,  the  need 

to  cont inuous ly  ac t  in  good fa i th ,  tak ing  the  

best  techn ica l  ou tcome to  meet  the 

requ i rements ,  and a t  the  most  economic  

pr ice . . . ”  

 Paragraph 44,  i t  goes on:  20 

“The background concerns two  pre l im ina ry  

phases,  the  p i lo t  p ro jec t  and an ex tens ion  o f  

the  p i lo t  p ro jec t .  

Those phases preceded the  phases present ly  

an  issue.  
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The phase is  an  issue o f  Phase 1 ,  the  Phase 1  

ex tens ion  and Phase 2 . . . ”  

 And paragraph 45 :  

“The background revea ls  tha t  in i t ia l l y  a  

spear ing  and economic  approach to  the 

ins ta l la t ion  to  the  equ ipment  and  issues are  

adopted.  

The ins ta l la t ions  were  in tended to  be  e f fec t i ve  

and e f f i c ien t  and focus on  the  needs o f  

PRASA.  10 

The in i t ia l  p rocess,  however,  was abandoned 

on or  shor t l y  a f te r  the  in t roduct ion  o f  the 

respondent .   That  i s  S iyagena.  

The scope,  ex ten t  and cost  o f  the  work  

increased dramat ica l l y  and the  work  was 

prec ip i tous l y  p roceeded w i th  in  the  absence o f  

a  budget  o r  any p lann ing  and in  u t te r  d i s regard  

o f  the  procu rement  p rocess  wh i le  the 

funct iona l i t y  o f  the  sys tem decreased. . . ”  

 Then can I  re fe r  you,  Cha i rpe rson ,  to  parag raph  20 

fo r ty  –  53 ,  sor ry.  

“Desp i te  the  absence o f  a  budge t  to  pay fo r  

the  work ,  concerns about  the  costs  and  

su i tab i l i t y  o f  the  access ga tes ,  the  in ten t ion  to  

ins ta l l  loca l  ga tes  and w i thout  a  p rocu rement  
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p rocess in  any pr io r  assessment  o f  

recommendat ions ,  Mr  Montana  ac t ing  on  

beha l f  o f  the  app l i cant ,  d i rec ted  Mr  Gansho to 

cont rac t  the  respondent . . . ”  

 A t  parag raph 54,  the  cour t  says:  

“The contents  o f  in te rna l  documents  were  

man ipu la ted  in  an  a t tempt  to  jus t i f y  the  d i rec t i ve ,  

concea l  the  pr io r  commi tment  to  t he  respondent  

and use as  a  bas is  to  expand on  the  scope o f  

work . . . ”  10 

 Paragraph 55,  the  cour t  says:  

“ In  the  f ina l  “quota t ion” ,  the  respondent  

expanded on the  scope o f  work ,  reduce the  

funct iona l i t y  o f  the  ex is t ing  work  and  

increased pr i ce  o f  i t s  p roposa l . . . ”  

 And a t  parag raph  55.4 ,  the  cour t  says:  

“Mr  Fer re i ra  and Mr  Montana met  on  the  same 

day as  the  f ina l  quota t ion ,  namely,  the 

17 t h  o f  March 2010.  

There  is  no  record  o f  th is  meet ing .  20 

Mr  Fer re i ra  requ i red  a  fo rmal  acceptance o f  

the  proposa l  wh ich  exceeded R 225 mi l l ion  by  

no  la te r  than the  19 t h  o f  March 2010.  

The respondent  does not  d isc lose  the  

response f rom Mr  Montana. . . ”  



03 MAY 2021 – DAY 387 
 

Page 112 of 178 
 

 And paragraph 57 ,  the  cour t  says:  

“Mr  Montana,  acco rd ing  to  Mr  Gansho,  

approved the  appo in tment  o f  the  respondent  

and ins t ruc ted  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  

dec is ion . . . ”  

 And a t  parag raph  59,  the  cour t  says:  

“The conduct  tha t  resu l ted  in  the  award ing  o f  

work  to  the  respondent  became a  b luepr in t  fo r  

the  award  o f  work  in  excess o f  R 6  b i l l i on  to  

the  respondent . . . ”  10 

 Then dea l ing  w i th  Phase 1 ,  s ta r t ing  a t  parag raph 

60,  the  cour t  says:  

“The expans ion  o f  the  ISAMS System,  tha t  is  

In tegra ted  Secur i t y  Access Management  

System,  beyond the  Wor ld  Cup 2010 was not  

p lanned by  the  app l i cant .  

There  was no approva l  f rom the  execut ive  and  

the  work  was not  budgeted fo r  in  the  a l loca t ion  

o f  funds. . . ”  

 Paragraph 64:  20 

“The percept ion  tha t  there  was  no need to  

comply  w i th  the  procu rement  po l i cy  in  regard  

to  the  ex tens ion  o f  the  work  and the  

appo in tment  o f  the  respondent  was 

es tab l i shed.  
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The percept ion  i n  resu l ted  in  the  fa i lu re  to  

imp lement  the  procurement  po l i cy  and manage 

the  procurement  p rocess.  

Mr  Gansho,  ins tead,  managed the  procu rement  

p rocess. . . ”  

 Paragraph 67,  the  cour t  says:  

“The documents  prov ided to  po ten t ia l  b idders  

se lec t i ve ly  inc luded and manipu la ted  the  

contents  o f  the  broader  more  genera l  SARCC’s  

spec i f i ca t ion  to  the  exc lus ive  benef i t  o f  the 10 

respondent .  

The documents  d id  no t  comp ly  w i th  the  

procu rement  po l i cy. . . ”  

 In  paragraph 69,  in  the  f i rs t  sentence,  the  cour t  

says:  

“The b ids  were  no t  checked fo r  compl iance. . . ”  

 And then in  the  las t  sentence o f  tha t  pa ragraph,  

the  cour t  cont inues:  

“The DEC reckon ing  tha t  the  b id  by  the 

respondent  desp i te  the  b id  be ing  20 

approx imate l y  60% more  than the  compet ing  

b id  and he excess ive  ra tes  charged by  the  

respondent . . . ”  

 Paragraph 70 says:  

“The  f laws in  the  procurement  p rocess were  
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concea led ,  the  m inutes  o f  the  BEC were  

man ipu la ted  to  remove i r regu lar i t ies  and 

bo ls te red the  recommendat ion  o f  the  

respondent  and  the  employees  who were  

in te rv iewed a t tempted to  concea l  the  absence 

o f  an  RFP. . . . ”  

 Paragraph 71:  

“The recommendat ion  o f  the  BEC was re jec ted  

by  the  Group CEO and more  impor tan t ly  by  the  

CTPC. . . ”  10 

 I  unders tand tha t  to  be  Corpora te  Tender  

Procurement  Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  is  some acronym tha t  i s  a lso  fo r  –  

what  c ross-sect ion  or  someth ing .  

MR MONTANA :    Cross-  funct ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Cross - funct ion .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . sourc ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  i s  no t  the  one?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  20 

MR MONTANA :    The C –  the  one . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    CTPC.  

MR MONTANA :    CTPC is  the  Ad jud ica t ion  Commi t tee  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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MR MONTANA :    . . .o f  Mr  Ti ro  Ho le le  and Mar tha  Ngoye.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    But  tha t  i s ,  o f  cou rse ,  in  the  

Swi fambo mat te r.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r  even on th is  one .   I  w i l l  

come . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a l r i gh t .   Cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Paragraph 72 :  

“ In  the  a f te rmath  o f  the  CTPC dec is ion ,  there  

was a  concer ted  e f fo r t  to  man ipu la te  or  c rea te  10 

documents  in  an  a t tempt  to  concea l  the  

dec is ion  o f  the  CTPC and the  i r regu la r i t ies  in  

the  procurement  p rocess. . . ”  

 And then a t  paragraph 73:  

“The CTPC was s imp ly  bypassed and a  tender  

p laced before  the  FCIP. . . ”  

 And tha t  acronym,  Cha i rperson,  as  I  unders tand  

i t  i s  the  F inance Cap i ta l  Investment  Procurement  

Commi t tee .  

“ . . .and tha t  conta ined inaccura te ,  incomple te ,  20 

and mis lead ing  in fo rmat ion . . . ”  

 A t  parag raph 74,  the  cour t  says:  

“The tender  p roceeded to  the  board  o f  cont ro l .  

However,  there  i s  no  ind ica t ion  tha t  the  board  

made a  dec is ion  to  cont rac t  w i th  the 
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respondent . . . ”  

 Paragraph 75:  

“ In  o rder  to  conc lude a  cont rac t ,  p r io r  approva l  

had  to  be  ob ta ined f rom the  Min is te r  o f  

Transpor t  and approva l  o f  the  con t rac t  had to  

be  ob ta ined f rom the  board ,  none o f  wh ich  

occur red . . . ”  

 And then a t  paragraph 75.4 ,  i t  says :  

“Mr  Montana,  never the less ,  s igned a  JPCC 

cont rac t . . . ”  10 

 And then a t  paragraph 76,  the  judgment  says:  

“The f lawed process was concea led  and i t  se t  

as ide  the  bas i s  tha t  i s  made. . . ”  

 And then a t  paragraph 77,  the  cour t  says:  

“As regard  Phase  1 .   The process tha t  resu l ted  

in  the  award ing  o f  work  to  the  respondent  in  

Phase 1  fa i led  w i th  the  comply  w i th  the  

const i tu t iona l  leg is la t i ve  and regu lar  

f ramework  s t ipu la ted  fo r  a  va l id  p rocu rement  

p rocess and con t ravened the  app l i cant ’s  own 20 

procurement  po l i cy. . . ”  

 And a t  parag raph  80 has regards to  Phase 2 ,  the 

cour t  says:  

“The ex tens ion  o f  Phase 1  and Phase 2  su f fe rs  

f rom the  same f laws as  those found in  Phase  
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1 . . . ”  

 Paragraph 81:  

“The method used to  secure  the  appo in tment  

o f  the  respondent  was the  same as the  

ex tens ion  o f  the  p i lo t  p ro jec t  and Phase 1 .  

An unso l i c i ted  b id  f rom the  respondent ,  the  

requ i rement  fo r  the  respondent ’s  spec i f i c  

b rands,  the  res t r i c t ion  o f  the  procu rement  

p rocess,  dev ia t ion  f rom the  requ i red  p rocess,  

igno r ing  o f  adverse  dec is ions,  10 

m isrepresenta t ions,  m is in fo rmat ion  and 

concea lment  o f  the  mater ia l  fac ts . . . ”  

 Paragraph 83:  

“Desp i te  the  absence o f  any p lann ing ,  an  

unso l i c i ted  o f fe r  f rom the  respondent  was 

enter ta ined and ac ted  upon. . . ”  

 And a t  parag raph  84,  the  cour t  says:  

“The procurement  p rocess favoured the  

respondent  and  se t  as ide  how tha t  was 

ach ieved. . . ”  20 

 And a t  parag raph  84.7 ,  i t  says :  

“The Group CEO is  requ i red  to  cons ider  

recommendat ion  by  the  CTPC.  

The CTPC d id  no t  make a  recommendat ion .  

The Group CEO,  never the less ,  made a  
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recommendat ion  to  the  FCIP.  

The board  was  requ i red  to  approved the  

appo in tment  o f  the  respondent  in  te rms o f  the  

cont rac t .  

An in  subsequen t  var ia t ion ,  the  board  d id  no t  

do  so .    

Mr  Montana d id  so  w i thout  au tho r i t y. . . ”  

 Paragraph 87:  

“ In  the  course  o f  Phase 2 ,  ex tend ing  to  Phase  

1 ,  documents  were  c rea ted tha t  conta ined  10 

misrepresenta t ions,  m is in fo rmat ion  and 

concea led  mate r ia l  fac ts . . . ”  

 And paragraph 89 :  

“ In  the  course  o f  the  Phase 2  p rocurement  

p rocesses,  documents  were  c rea ted tha t  

conta ined misrep resenta t ion ,  m is in fo rmat ion  

and concea led  mater ia l  fac ts . . . ”  

 A t  parag raph 92,  the  cour t  says:  

“There  was an  add i t iona l  a l lowance o f  

R 905 mi l l ion  namely  fo r  ma in tenance and a  20 

war ran ty  tha t  was a l ready inc luded in  the  

no tes  o f  appo in tment  fo r  Phase 2  were  

accepted by  the  respondent  bu t  no t  inc luded 

in  the  JBEC agreement . . . ”  

 That ,  Cha i rpe rson,  as  I  unders tand i t  i s  Jo in t  
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Bu i ld ing  Const ruc t ion  Cont rac t . . .   And then a t  pa rag raph  

92.2 :  

“The unso l i c i ted  o f fe r  was  i r regu lar l y  

en ter ta ined by  Mr  Montana and  

Mr  Pongo la . . . ”  

 92 .3 :  

“The respondent  p rov ided a  b id . . . ”  

 And 92.4 :  

“Mr  Montana  s igned the  addendum 

agreement . . . ”  10 

 93 :  

“The was no procurement  p rocess. . . ”  

 Paragraph 94:  

“The cont rac t  and i t s  imp lementa t ion  

resu l ted  i n  works  wh ich  were  no t  f i t  for  

purpose. . . ”  

 A t  parag raph 96,  the  cour t  says:  

“The  app l i cant ,  mean ing  PRASA,  d iscovered 

tha t  persons and  ent i t ies  connected to  the  

respondent  and persons w i th in  the  app l i cant ,  20 

Mr  Montana and  Mr  Gansho,  were  invo lved  

in  var ious proper ty  t ransact ions.  

In  the  face  o f  i t ,  the  par t i c ipants  must  

exp la in  these t ransact ions.  

They ra ise  ser ious concerns tha t  there  was 
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wrongdo ing  tha t  needs to  be  inves t iga ted .  

The proper ty  t ransact ions,  a t  the  very  least ,  

cont ravened the  pro fess iona l  and e th i ca l  

s tandards requ i red  to  be  main ta ined in  

pub l i c  admin is t ra t ions  and those ob l iga t ions 

w i th  i t s  a l l  o f f i c ia ls  and o ther  ro le -p layers  in  

the  procurement  sys tem,  inc lud ing  the  

respondent ,  must  comply  in  o rder  to  p romote  

mutua l  t rus t  and respect  and an env i ronment  

where  bus iness  can be conducted w i th  10 

in tegr i t y. . . ”  

 Paragraph 98:  

“Persons who  are  comp l ic i t  in  

maladmin is t ra t ion ,  impropr ie ty  o r  cor rup t ion  

d id  no t  be  pe rmi t ted  to  p ro f i t  f rom an 

un lawfu l  tender.  

They shou ld  be  fo rced to  make fu l l  

res t i tu t ion ,  even  i f  th is  resu l ts  i n  f inanc ia l  

loss  to  them.  

The ex i s tence o f  cor rup t ion  is  to  be  in fe r red  20 

f rom the  fac t  tha t  a  mul t i tude o f  i r regu lar i t ies  

ex i s t ,  tha t  there  i s  an  absence o f  a  cand id  

exp lanat ion  f rom the  tender. . . ”  

 And paragraph 99 :  

“Fiscus aspera (? )  as  i t  d id  no t  rece ive  fa i r  
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va lue  fo r  what  i t  had pa id . . . ”  

 And then a t  paragraph 103,  the  cour t  says:  

“Mr  Montana was invo lved w i th  p roper t y  

dea l ings wh ich  had unusua l  fea tures .  

An amount  o f  R 2  m i l l ion  was pa id  by  a  

company or  no  apparent  purpose in  one o f  

the  t ransact ions.  

Mr  Montana d id  no t  have su f f i c ien t  funds to  

purchase the  ho ld ing (?)  and p roper ty  wh ich  

he  negot ia ted  to  buy.  10 

I t  i s  apparent  tha t  the  funds fo r  the  proper ty  

were  no t  to  be  sourced in  the  hands o f  

Montana.  

Th is  be ing  so ,  where  were  they sourced?  

The in fe rence is  i r res i s t ib le  tha t  the  funds 

are  be ing  p rov ided by  a  th i rd  pa r ty  fo r  an  

unknown reason.  

Ind iv idua ls  do  no t  normal ly  p rov ide  fund ing  

in  the  m i l l ions  fo r  no  apparent  reasons.  

Th is  be ing  so ,  the  ev idence is  i r res is t ib le  20 

tha t  the  respondent  was prov id ing  the  

back ing(?) . . . ”  

 And a t  page 104 in  the  m idd le  in  the  th i rd  

sentence,  the  judgment  says:  

“Mr  Montana was invo lved in  numerous  
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p roper ty  dea l ings .  

These ac t iv i t ies  are  no t  cons is ten t  w i th  th is  

ac t i v i t y  as  a  sen ior  employee o f  the  

app l i cant .  

In  the  ord inary  course ,  the  fund ing ,  a  

var iab le ,  shou ld  no t  read i l y  have been 

ava i lab le . . . ”  

 And then a t  page –  a t  paragraph 131,  the  cour t  

says:  

“The d iscovery  o f  cor rup t ion  was a lso  10 

impeded by  the  ty rann ica l  manner  in  wh ich  

the  app l i cant  was  cont ro l led  by  the  ers twh i le  

Group CEO,  Mr  Montana. . . ”  

 And a t  page –  oh ,  sor ry  –  pa ragraph 139.   

Sor ry,  137.   I t  says :  

“We are  o f  the  cons idered v iew tha t  a l though 

the  de layed per iod  o f  ten  months  may render  

the  app l i ca t ion  to  be  ino rd ina te l y  de layed,  

c i rcumstances under  wh ich  the  de lay  

occur red ,  as  exp la ined by  the  app l i cant ,  20 

persuade th is  cour t  to  g rant  condonat ion . . . ”  

 And then the  order,  Cha i rperson,  i s  se t  ou t  a t  

parag raph 170 and the  e f fec t  o f  the  orde r,  Cha i rperson,  i f  

one looks a t  171(a ) ,  the  s ign ing  o f  the  JGCC cont rac t ,  

da ted  31 s t  March  2001,  i s  dec la red to  be  unautho r ised and 
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(c )  the  s ign ing  o f  the  addendum agreement ,  da ted  

19 September  2014,  i s  the  dec la red to  be  unauthor i sed.    

 And a t  paragraph 17.3 ,  the  JBCC agreement ,  

da ted  the  31 s t  o f  March  2011,  i s  se t  as ide .   That  i s  (a )  and 

(b)  i s  the  JBCC agreement ,  da ted  the  1s t  o f  Ju ly,  i s  se t  

as ide  and (c ) ,  the  addendum agreement ,  da ted  the 

19 t h  o f  September  2014,  i s  se t  as ide .    

 Cha i rperson,  jus t  fo r  comple teness sake.   I  

shou ld  jus t  po in t  ou t  tha t  a t  paragraph 170.5 ,  the  –  in  

te rms o f  what  was the  jus t  and equ i tab le  order,  the  cour t  10 

sa id  work  had been done and independent  eng ineer  shou ld  

be  appo in ted  to  de termine what  the  amount  i s  tha t  

S iyagena shou ld  be  a l lowed to  redeem f rom the  mon ies  

pa id  to  i t (? ) .  

 That  Cha i rperson  is  the  judgment  and i t  i s  the  

judgment  o f  Mr  Just ice  Le  Mont  concur red  in  by  Just ice  

Malunga(? )  and Just ice  Hewes(?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  those were  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  par ts  tha t  you . . . [ in te rvenes ]   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . cons idered impor tan t  to  read  in to  the 

record .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   I  th ink  you had sa id  tha t  
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Mr  Montana cou ld  then comment  i f  he  w ish  to  comment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Montana,  do  you want  to  say?  I  know 

you have a l ready commented.   So I  am,  obv ious ly,  no t  

inv i t ing  you to  say the  same th ing  bu t  i f  you  w ish  to  say 

anyth ing .  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r  I  am jus t  go ing  to  ask  you to 

g ive  me t ime to  rep ly  to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    When Mr  Son i  was read ing  th is  j udgment ,  10 

par t  o f  me was s i t t ing  w i th  anger  and a t  some s tage I  was  

a lso  laugh ing .   How can the  judges do th i s  Cha i r?   One o f  

the  most  scanda l ised judgment ,  susp ic ion  o f  wrongdo ing ,  

in fe rence and a l l  o f  those th ings.   Then jus t  two  weeks  

before  we go to  cour t ,  the  judges  f ind  reason – the  judges 

are  changed,  Cha i r,  new judges are  brought  in  and then 

our  a f f idav i t s  tha t  p rov ides on  th is  mat te r,  cannot  be  

cons idered and the  judgments  so  s im i la r,  Cha i r,  to  the 

Swi fambo judgment .    

You remember  I  spoke about  the  SCA judgment?   So  20 

the  SCA judges and the  judges in  Pre tor ia  th ink  the  same,  

they th ink  tha t  th is  th ing  was under  cont ro l  o f  th is  what  

was i t ,  t y rann ica l  Montana.   The SCA judges say the  same 

th ing .  

Cha i r,  le t  me address th is  th ing .   I  want  to  address 
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the  fac ts  and Mr  Son i  has ra ised  the  judgment  – I  do  no t  

have,  I  have not  par t y  to  th is  mat te r,  so  I  cannot  take  i t  on  

appea l  and I  cannot  I  ca l l  the  judges here  to  c ross-

examine,  I  w ish  i f  I  had the  pr iv i lege.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  jus t  one  second,  be fore  you do  

tha t ,  you have sa id  tha t  you had ,  a t  the  inv i ta t ion  o f  the  

cour t ,  submi t ted  a  de ta i led  a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Not  Montana a lone.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    A l l  the  peop le  who par t i c ipa ted  in  tha t  

p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  never  par t i c i pa ted ,  I  was a  CEO.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  th ink  there  were  e igh t  peop le  who  

were  ment ioned by  Ms Ngoye in  he r  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Now th is  a f f idav i t ,  I  th ink  i f  there  i s  one –  20 

who is  happy w i th  th is  k ind  o f  judgment?   Sure ly,  Cha i r,  

tha t  Werksmans,  Ms Ngoye,  Mr  Molo fe  w i l l  be  ce lebra t ing  

because they were  ab le  to  ge t  a  judgment  a lmost  s im i la r  a t  

the  H igh  Cour t ,  Gauteng H igh Cour t  South  d iv i s ion  as  we l l  

as  in  the  Nor th .    
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 Cha i r,  the  changes o f  judges –  and I  do  no t  know 

what  the  Judge  Pres ident  cons idered,  one o f  the  most  

scanda lous th ings and I  want  to  go  in to  de ta i l s ,  Cha i r,  i f  

you cou ld  a l low me because I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  was –  the  reason why  I  was  

re fer r i ng  to  you hav ing  f i led  an  a f f idav i t  was tha t  I  was  

wonder ing  whether  i t  wou ld  no t  be  conven ien t  to  hear  what  

you have to  say a f te r  look ing  a t  such an a f f idav i t  o r  no t  bu t  

I  assume tha t  those a f f idav i t s ,  Mr  Son i ,  even though the  

f ina l  –  the  u l t ima te  cour t  tha t  gave th is  judgment  exc luded  10 

them,  they ava i lab le  somewhere .   A t  leas t  h is .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Cha i rpe rson,  le t  me –  or  a re  you 

look ing  a t  the  a f f idav i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  –  par t i cu la r l y  h is  a f f idav i t  tha t  he  was 

not  inc luded.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    My –  par t  o f  what  i s  in  my mind is  tha t  

he  was no longer  a t  PRASA when the  l i t iga t ion  was  

launched,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    He was no longer  a t  PRASA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   He was no longer… 

CHAIRPERSON :    And ye t  he  was a  s ign i f i can t  p layer  in  

the  t ransact ion ,  i s  i t  no t  and a f f idav i t s  were  p laced  before  

the  cour t  by  PRASA and I  guess [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  
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vo i ce ]  bu t  somebody who may have known qu i te  a  lo t  about  

the  t ransact ion ,  h is  a f f idav i t  was  not  there .   I  am not  

say ing  tha t  i t  was a  wrong dec i s ion  o r  r igh t  dec is ion  to  

inc lude or  no t  inc lude h i s  a f f idav i t ,  I  am jus t  th ink ing  tha t ,  

you know,  a  cour t  i s  ab le  to  –  no t  tha t  i t  i s  ab le ,  th is  i s  

what  cour ts  do ,  they dec ide  d isputes  be tween par t i es ,  they 

are  ab le  to  say we l l ,  bo th  par t ies  pu t  your  fac ts  be fore  the 

cour t  and the  cour t  dec ides bu t  an  inqu i ry  such as  th is  one 

might  go  broader  in  te rms o f  fac ts ,  you know? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i t  i s  no t  dec id ing ,  i t  i s  no t  

l i t i ga t ion .   So I  am jus t  wonder ing  –  I  was jus t  wonder ing  

whethe r  i t  m igh t  no t  have been conven ien t  to  l i s ten  to  h im 

knowing what  the  a f f idav i t  says  bu t  maybe tha t  i s  

someth ing  to  th ink  about  and I  shou ld  jus t  g ive  h im a 

chance to  comment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson,  le t  me sugges t  a  way 

fo rward .   We were  obv ious ly  bound by  the  cour t  judgment  

as  the  ev idence leaders .   Now Mr  Montana says tha t  what  

he  sa id  in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  i t  was p resented to  cour t  bu t  no t  20 

cons idered by  the  cour t ,  may th row a  d i f fe ren t  l igh t  on  

some o f  the  issues.  

 Now wi thout  in te r fe r ing  w i th  the  cour t  judgment ,  o f  

course ,  you as  Cha i rperson wou ld  be  ab le  to  take  tha t  in to  



03 MAY 2021 – DAY 387 
 

Page 128 of 178 
 

account .   In  your  repor t  you wou ld  say there  was th is  

judgment  bu t  my scope is  b roader.    

 But  one is  look ing  a t  a  lega l  p rocess and I  want  to  

take  the  p rocess  fo rward  to  g ive  you the  max imum scope  

tha t  you shou ld  exerc ise ,  be  fa i r  to  Mr  Montana but  a lso  

no t  to  cast  aspers ions on  the  jud ic ia l  sys tem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Th i s  the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  can I  ob jec t  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  can I  p lease f in ish?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  h im f in ish  and then I  w i l l  g ive  you a  

chance.   Le t  h im f in ish  h im f in ish  f i rs t .  

MR MONTANA:    Not  on  the  substance o f  the  mat te r,  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  th ink  we have d iscussed  

prev ious l y  and I  th ink  we need to  take  a  dec i s ion .   Ear l ie r  

on ,  Cha i r,  I  was dea l ing  w i th  the  ANC issues.   I t  i s  t ime fo r  

me to  respond to  the  judgment ,  to  what  the  judges have  

sa id .   I t  i s  fo r  the  second t ime Mr  Son i  spoke about  the  20 

fac t  tha t  we do not  need cast  aspers ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you want  to  emphas ise  tha t  you  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA:    Bu t  a l l  o f  us ,  the on ly  th ing  tha t  i s  above  

a l l  o f  us  i s  the  const i tu t ion  in  th is  count ry.   I f  I  need  to  take  

on the  judges,  as  long as  I  do  no t  cas t  on  a  fac tua l  bas is ,  I  

add ress the  issues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  cannot  have th is  th ing  pu t  be fo re  me to 

say do  not  case aspers ions and every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  I  w i l l  l e t  you say what  

you want  to  say,  le t  h im f in ish  f i rs t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson,  I  unders tand,  Mr  10 

Montana ’s  des i re  to  pu t  h is  vers ion  in  regard  to  the 

S iyangena because we have now had a  judgment  tha t  

seems to  re f lec t  bad ly  on  h im.  

 What  we need to  do ,  though,  Cha i rperson,  i s  to  

cons ider  whether  the  best  and e f f i c ien t  –  o r  the  most  

e f f i c ien t  use  o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  t ime shou ld  no t  be  a long 

the  fo l low ing l ines .   We rece ived Montana ’s  a f f idav i t ,  the  

one he gave to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  the  cour t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   To  the  cour ts ,  wh ich  is  no t  taken in to  20 

cons idera t ion .   We know what  tha t  a f f idav i t  w i l l  say.   You 

look a t  the  a f f idav i t  in  your  capac i ty  as  Cha i rperson.   We,  

as  the  lega l  team,  look a t  i t  and  then i f  you dec ide  tha t  

there  shou ld  be  input ,  o ra l  input  on  tha t ,  we se t  a  t ime fo r  

tha t .   I t  w i l l  obv ious l y  have to  be  l im i ted  bu t  tha t  wou ld  
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g ive  Mr  Montana  every  oppor tun i ty  to  c lear  h i s  name,  i f  

tha t  i s  what  he  wants  to  do .    

What ,  though,  we need to  be  concerned,  

Cha i rperson,  i s  the  l im i ted  the  t ime we have ava i l ab le .   We 

spent  now on th is  –  Mr  Montana ’s  response  w i thout  

anybody know what  the  response i s ,  i t  i s  go ing  to  t ake  the  

res t  o f  the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   I  take  what  you are  say ing  to  

be  to  say is  i t  no t  be t te r  tha t  Mr  Montana gets  an  

oppor tun i ty  to  say what  he  w ishes  to  say when we have the  10 

a f f idav i t  and there fore  know in  advance what  he  is  go ing  to  

say?  That  i s  what  you are  say ing?  That  i s ,  I  th ink ,  

cons i s ten t  w i th  what  I  was th ink ing .    

 So I  must  jus t  say  tha t  –  you see,  as  we look a t  

these issues where  a  cour t  has made ce r ta in  f ind ings and 

has g iven judgment ,  one needs to  on  the  one hand bear  

tha t  in  m ind but  on  the  o the r  hand,  bear  in  m ind tha t  

because o f  the  d i f fe ren t  funct ions  be tween the  cour t  and  

the  Commiss ion  and as  we l l  as  i ssues wh ich  m ight  –  fo r  

the  cour t  they m ight  be  nar rower,  fo r  the  Commiss ion  much 20 

w ider,  there  may  be c i r cumstances where  the  Commiss ion  

might  need to  hear  more  than the  cour t  had before  i t .    

I  th ink  o f  an  example  tha t  w i l l  be  –  t ha t  w i l l  

resonate  w i th  you,  I  th ink .   You w i l l  remember  du r ing  the  

‘80 ’s  when labour  law was in  i t s  in fancy in  th i s  count ry  tha t  
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when there  had  been a  j udgment  by  the  then Supreme 

Cour t  on  a  mat te r  a f fec t ing  a  d ismissa l ,  when the  employee 

o f  a  t rade un ion  went  to  the  Indust r ia l  Cour t  to  cha l lenge  

the  fa i rness o f  the  d ismissa l ,  usua l l y  you wou ld  f ind  

lawyers  fo r  the  company,  fo r  the  employer,  say ing  no ,  bu t  

the  cour t  has dec ided but  what  the  cour t  wou ld  have  

dec ided is  we l l ,  the  d ismissa l  was  lawfu l  o r  whatever  and  

the  Indust r ia l  Cour t  wou ld  look a t  the  quest ion  o f  whethe r  

the  d ismissa l  was fa i r.   So the  Indust r ia l  Cour t  cou ld  s t i l l  

l ook  in to  the  mat te r.    10 

So tha t  i s  what  c rossed my mind  as  I  th ink  about  

the  fac t  tha t  there  may be s i tua t ions where  there  is  a  

judgment  bu t  because i t  i s  two d i f fe ren t  fo rums wi th  a 

d i f fe ren t  scope o f  inqu i ry  i t  may be tha t  there  may be 

c i rcumstances where  the  Commiss ion  has to  hear  

someth ing  tha t  the  cour t  d id  no t  hear  bu t  one has got  to  

bear  in  m ind obv ious ly  var ious th ings,  the  t ime cons t ra in ts ,  

bu t  a lso  the  issue o f  fa i rness to  somebody a f fec ted ,  such 

as  Mr  Montana espec ia l l y  where  he  d id  no t  ge t  a  chance to  

h is  s ide ,  h is  fac t s ,  as  he  knows them,  were  exc luded .  20 

So i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  one may need to  t read  

care fu l l y  on  bu t  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  one might  need to  look  

a t  w i th  a  v iew to  mak ing  su re  tha t  one,  there  is  fa i rness  

bu t  there  is  p roper  cons ide ra t ion  fo r  the  t ime const ra in t s  

tha t  one is  work ing  under  and then take  i t  f rom there .   That  
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i s  what  has c rossed my mind.   Does what  I  thought  

resonate  w i th  you  resonate  w i th  you?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  accept  tha t  fu l l y,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  i t  i s  no t  a  quest ion  o f  Commiss ion  

no t  re look ing  a t  i t  as  wou ld  have been under  d i f fe ren t  

ju r i sd i c t ions  o f  lega l i t y  and unfa i rness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The on ly  po in t  I  want  to  make,  

Cha i rperson,  i s  we are  go ing  to  base i t  on  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  10 

is  no t  be fore  us  and i t  wou ld  be  in  the  pub l i c  in te res t  to  

know what  was before  tha t  cour t  tha t  i t  d id  no t  take  in to  

account ,  de l ibe ra te ly,  fo r  good or  bad reason.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  i t  d id  no t  take  in to  account .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  Mr  Montana is  maybe say ing  

to  you,  no t  say ing  is ,  may be d i f fe ren t  f rom i t  and so  we 

need to  be  care fu l  tha t  when we are  de termin ing  whethe r  

what  Mr  Montana  wou ld  have sa id  in  tha t  cour t  m ight  have  20 

produced a  d i f fe ren t  ou tcome,  one  has the  necessary  fac t s  

and we do not  have tha t  in  the  absence o f  Mr  Montana ’s  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Montana,  be fore  you –  be fore  we  

move fu r the r,  le t  me ask the  quest ion .   In  your  a f f idav i t  do  
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you  dea l  w i th  –  or  no ,  p robab ly  you do not  dea l  w i th  the  

judgment ,  o r  do  you?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  in  the  la tes t  tha t  I  have  

prov ided I  have added a  paragraph .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    The a f f idav i t  tha t  was submi t ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    And fo r  Mr  Son i ’s  in fo rmat ion ,  one o f  my 

annexures is  my a f f idav i t  tha t  I  tab led  the re ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    One o f  your  annexures…? 10 

MR MONTANA:    To  my a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  my a f f idav i t  tha t  I  

p laced the re  in  the  H igh  Cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  tha t  i s  –  you have g iven tha t  

to  the  lega l  team or  no t  ye t?  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r ,  we –  i t  p robab ly  there ,  we  

have d i scussed …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    P rev ious l y?  

MR MONTANA:    P rev ious ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  we sa id  we are  a l loca t ing  tomorrow,  20 

Cha i r,  we are  ge t t ing  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  am hop ing  tha t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  

issue,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Wel l ,  I  w i l l  te l l  you  what  I  am 
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inc l ined to  do .   I  am inc l ined to  f i rs t  see what  you have to  

say and maybe i t  i s  tha t  a f f idav i t  and whatever,  whatever,  

be fore  I  le t  you then dea l  w i th  i t .   I s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you? 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  can  I  suggest  a  d i f fe ren t  

approach?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    The judgment  has  been read.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And,  you see,  the  issue has noth ing  to  do  

w i th  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  am not  dea l ing  –  my ent ry  i n to  th is  

i ssue has got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    There  is  no th ing  i n  th is  judgment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I t  ta lks  about  pa r t i c ipants ,  i t  does not  say  

Mr  Montana d id  tha t ,  i t  in fe rs ,  we be l ieve ,  we th ink  

wrongdo ing  may  have been done by  someone and then 

ment ion  proper ty.   Cha i r,  I  am not  here  to  de fend.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    There  is  no th ing  to  de fend.   I  do  come to  

the  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r,  I  came to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    To  pu t  fac ts  on  the  tab le .   The fac ts  
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ment ioned in  these judgments  are  fa lse ,  f i rs t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Second ly,  i t  i s  no t  on l y  l i ke  Montana ’s 

a f f idav i t s ,  a l l  the  peop le  tha t  were  inv i ted  by  the  cour ts  to  

f i le  a f f idav i t s  because the  cour t  sa id  i t  i s  no t  in  the  in te res t  

o f  jus t i ce .   Okay,  Cha i r?    To  f i le  –  no t  to  be  g iven the  

oppor tun i ty  to  respond and o f  course  I  we lcomed tha t  

oppor tun i ty,  I  sa id  he re  is  a  cour t ,  we have been cr i t i c is ing  

the  cour ts ,  he re  i s  a  cour t ,  the  judges sa id  no  but  you  

cannot  be  mak ing  these s ta tements ,  le t  the  peop le  –  and I  10 

responded no in  each and every  de ta i l ,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  f i l ed  a 

very  de ta i led  a f f idav i t  w i th  annexures to  p rove tha t  the  

a l legat ions tha t  were  made were  fa lse .   There  were  seven  

o ther  peop le  who were  asked by  the  cour t  to  say f i le  

a f f idav i t s .   They d id  the  same,  Cha i r.   They were  admi t ted .  

And I  want  to  say bo ld ly  he re ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  my 

a f f idav i t  and the  a f f idav i t  o f  the  seven o the rs  who were  

admi t ted ,  they were  admi t ted  because the  cour t  has asked  

fo r  i t  and then jus t  be fore  the  hear ing  s ta r ts ,  in  tha t  cour t  

Werksmans come and say there  is  no  way they  can be 20 

admi t ted .   Say no,  no ,  when the  cour t  took tha t  dec i s ion ,  

the  two main  pa r t ies ,  wh ich  is  S i yangena and PRASA were  

to  be  –  they shou ld  have agreed to  tha t  dec is ion ,  now i t  i s  

a  cour t  mat te r,  i t  i s  the  ru les  o f  the  cour t  tha t  I  do  no t  

know.   I  am not  cha l leng ing  tha t ,  Cha i r.  
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Bu t  the  cour t  has inv i ted  us  and  then the  cour t  –  

and,  Cha i r,  then cour t  then says comes to  a  de terminat ion  

tha t  the  judges who were  there  be fore  who sa id  i t  is  in  the  

in te res t  o f  jus t i ce  fo r  th is  peop le  to  come,  they came back  

and the  new judges says no ,  we shou ld  no t .    

Cha i r,  I  want  to  say tha t  there  i s  no  way the  cour t  

wou ld  have ar r i ved a t  th is  judgment  o r  penned th is  

judgment  i f  they  agreed to  accept  ou t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Those a f f idav i t s .  

MR MONTANA:    Those a f f idav i t s  tha t  the  cour t  had asked 10 

us  to  g ive .   But ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  most  -  in  te rms o f  the  

way fo rward  now,  the  fa i r  p rocess –  because i t  i s  no t  on ly  

the  a t tachment  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  a lso  what  I  have  

wr i t ten  on  th i s  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Ac tua l l y.   Now I  th ink  tha t  i r respect ive  o f  

what  tha t  a f f idav i t  sa id  bu t  I  have  got  an  a f f idav i t  and we  

have agreed on a  process here  tha t  i f  there  are  i ssues tha t  

I  shou ld  no t  dea l  w i th  them as we l l ,  I  can  then re fer  to  

them and dea l  w i th  them now because I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  the  –  20 

you see,  the  p rob lem tha t  I  have and I  know tha t  th is  

Commiss ion  cannot  c rea te  a  p la t fo rm f rom which  judges 

are  a t tacked and every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  unders tand the  sens i t i v i t y.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  we a lso  want  

robustness.   I  w i l l  no t  go  and a t tack  judges,  I  am not  –  I  

be l ieve  myse l f  to  be  someone who –  who go a t  th ings 

d i rec t l y.   I  do  no t  have an in te res t  in  a t tack ing  judges but  

th is  judgment ,  Cha i r,  I  want  to  see i t  and g i ven the  –  

be fore  we even agree on the  p rocedure ,  even e levate  some 

o f  the  issues tha t  a re  here ,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  ac tua l l y  be  

shocked.   The las t  t ime you gave us  a  b i t  o f  gu idance,  

Cha i r,  and you know one th ing ,  I  en joyed be ing  here  the  10 

las t  few days,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  when I  am about  to  respond,  

you engage tha t  judgment  and I  th ink  tha t  p robab ly  ten  

m inutes  ago I  wou ld  have sa id  th ings tha t  rea l l y  –  jus t  what  

you and Mr  Son i  were  t ry ing  no t  to  hear.  

 But ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  te l l  you ,  th is  judgment ,  i s  a  ro t ten  

judgment ,  I  want  to  say tha t .   Th i s  judgment  and the  SCA 

judgment  ac tua l l y  po in ts  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  w i l l  –  le t  me say –  why do you th ink  

i t  i s  no t  r igh t  tha t  you rese rve  your  comments  on  the 

judgment  un t i l  we  have seen what  we want  to  see? 20 

MR MONTANA:    Because I ,  Cha i r,  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  because [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  w i l l  agree w i th  tha t  as  

long as  you dea l  w i th  i t  a t  the  r igh t  t ime.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Ja ,  ja .   No,  no ,  you w i l l  ge t  a  

chance,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And g iven what  I  have read,  Mr  

Montana,  must  be  g iven a  chance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  he  must  be  g i ven –  I  am,  myse l f ,  

in te res ted  in  see ing  a t  leas t  your  a f f idav i t .   I  may be  

in te res ted  to  see more  o f  the  o ther  a f f idav i t s  bu t  your  

a f f idav i t  because  you have sa id  the  fac t s  tha t  the  cour t  

was g iven were  no t  t rue  or  d id  no t  g ive  the  comple te  

p ic tu re  and i f  i t  had looked a t  the  a f f idav i t s  tha t  were  10 

exc luded i t  may have come to  a  d i f fe ren t  conc lus ion .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  sa id  your  gu idance on th is  mat te r,  

I  th ink  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  sa id  bu t  there  a re  seven o ther  

peop le ,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  when  you read the  judgment ,  

you look a t  what  Mar tha  Ngoye and what  Werksmans sa id  

in  tha t  i ssued ac tua l l y  wou ld  –  i t  shou ld  ra ise  a  b ig  i ssue.   

But ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  issues a t  the  r igh t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  want  to  ind ica te  to  th is  cour t ,  Cha i r,  

these issues have been read as  fac t  a re  in  fac t  fa lse  and 20 

tha t  i s  why I  was prepared,  w i thout  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  to  jus t  go 

in to  the  th ing  to  demonst ra te  to  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And i t  i s  why I  was ask ing  how wou ld  

honourab le  judges,  how wou ld  they do  th is  to  us?  You 
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know?  Cha i r,  can I  make one po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  have been concerned w i th  i t  fo r  

a  wh i le .   The judgments  on  PRASA,  a l l  o f  them,  Cha i r,  f rom 

judgment  o f  Mth imkhu lu ,  the  judgment  on  S iyangena,  you  

w i l l  ac tua l l y  see,  Cha i r,  maybe there  i s  a  d i f fe rence o f  a  

comma and every th ing ,  they are  one judgment  and,  Cha i r,  I  

w i l l  e labora te  a t  the  r igh t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    When once you have seen a l l  o f  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  the  prob lem 

is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  w i l l  speak about  th is  i ssue,  ja ,  I  w i l l  

respect  the  judges,  I  p romise  you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  a t  the  same t ime to  te l l  the  t ru th  and  

be honest  to  ourse lves,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   20 

So,  Mr  Son i ,  you w i l l  take  charge o f  the  process o f  

ob ta in ing  the  a f f idav i t s .  

MR MONTANA:    O f  Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   A t  leas t  Mr  Montana ’s  

one.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  may be tha t  –  I  do  no t  know,  I  jus t  do  

have a  reco l lec t ion  tha t  the  cour t  papers  in  some o f  these  

PRASA mat te rs  go  in to  thousands.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   They do,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  am –  so  a t  leas t  maybe the  f i rs t  –  

the  s ta r t  i s  to  ge t  Mr  Montana ’s  one.  

MR MONTANA:    Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then one can take  i t  f rom there .   

Okay.  10 

MR MONTANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t ,  Mr  Montana,  you w i l l  make your  

ava i lab le  to  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  tomorrow.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .   I  w i l l  do  tha t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   And i f  there  are  mat te rs  

when we f in ish ,  Mr  Montana,  i f  there  a re  mat te rs  tha t  e i ther  

the  Commiss ion  has under taken to  look  a t ,  you have asked  

tha t  they be  looked a t ,  wh ich  by  tha t  t ime i t  m igh t  no t  have  

looked a t  o r  come back to  you,  jus t  ra ise  them when you 

f in ish  a l l  your  ev idence,  i f  there  a re  th ings because I  jus t  20 

want  to  make su re  tha t  every  i ssue tha t  needs to  be  looked 

a t  i s  looked a t .   Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson ,  then tha t  i s  the  las t  b i t  

o f  Ms Ngoye ’s  cont r ibu t ion  and I  want  to  dea l  w i th  Mr  

Oe l le rmann ’s  repor t .   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Which  appears  a t  bund le  8 .   

Cha i rperson,  the  in fo rmat ion  on  wh ich  I  want  to  pu t  –  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  want  to  pu t  to  Mr  Montana,  cons is ts  

main ly  o f  documents .   Now I  w i l l  jus t  g ive  shor t  

in t roducto ry  excursus on  what  I  want  to  do  th is  a f te rnoon  

in  re la t ion  to  th is  and Mr  Montana know what  t ype o f  

quest ions I  am go ing  to  ask .    

Cha i rperson,  Mr  Oe l le rmann gave  ev idence on –  o r  

came and tes t i f ied  on  h is  repor t  and you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  he  10 

dea l t  w i th  four  p roper t ies .   The f i rs t  one is  the  p roper ty  

tha t  Mr  Montana owned in  Parkwood wh ich  he  then  so ld  to  

Prec i se  Trade represented by  Mr  van de r  Wal t .   Then there  

was a  proper ty  in  Wate r fa l l  in  Pre tor ia  …[ in tervenes ]  

MR MONTANA:    Waterk loo f .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  Wate rk loo f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  Waterk loo f ,  ja .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Waterk loo f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry.   In  Pre tor ia  and there  was a  20 

proper ty  in  Sandr ingham in  Johannesburg  and then a  four th  

proper ty  in  Hur l ingham,  a lso  in  Johannesburg .   Now most  

o f  the  in fo rmat ion  is  based –  or  most  o f  the  repor t  i s  based 

on documents  tha t  Mr  Oe l le rmann a t taches to  h i s  repor t .   

I  jus t  po in t  ou t  two o ther  th ings,  Cha i rperson.    One 
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i s ,  based on the  documents  i t  i s  qu i te  c lear  tha t  Mr  

Montana d id  se l l  to  Mr  Oe l le rmann –  I  mean to  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Van der  Wal t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   To  Prec i se  Trade,  h is  p roper ty  in  

Parkwood and i t  i s  a lso  c lea r,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  he  

purchased the  proper ty  in  h is  own name in  Hur l ingham.  

 The o ther  two proper t ies ,  Mr  Mon tana made some 

enqu i r ies  about  bu t  those proper t ies ,  a l though connected 

to  Mr  Montana  ind i rec t l y  in  t he  sense tha t  he  made 10 

approaches abou t  them,  e i ther  in  re la t ion  to  h is  ch i ld ren ’s  

t rus t  o r  h imse l f ,  those proper t ies  were  t ransfer red  f rom the  

owners  to  Prec ise  Trade.    

 Now based on tha t ,  what  I  want  to  do  today is  jus t  

to  es tab l i sh  the  re levant  fac ts  as  they emerge f rom the  

documents  and Mr  Montana can,  hav ing  regard  to  what  I  

ask ,  can e i ther  say  yes,  I  accept  tha t  i s  what  i s  conta ined 

in  there  –  obv ious ly  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  impor tan t ,  and tha t ’s  

where  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  spend most  o f  my t ime is  what  

in fe rence is  to  be  drawn f rom the  four  p roper ty  20 

t ransact ions . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m okay no tha t ’s  f ine .   I  th ink  because 

we s ta r t ing  a  new top ic  i t  m igh t  be  conven ien t  tha t  we take 

a  shor t  b reak.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Indeed Ch ie f  Jus t ice .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  jus t  take  a  shor t  b reak,  I  want  to  

say f i ve  m inutes ,  I  know f i ve  m inu tes  m ight  be  good fo r  me 

but  I  don ’ t  know whethe r  –  Mr  Montana you sa id  you were  

look ing  fo r  you r  je rsey and so  on .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  f i ve  m inutes  is  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    F ive  m inutes  is  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r i gh t ,  le t ’s  ad journ  fo r  f i ve  

m inutes .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  cont inue.     Your  m ic .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  Cha i r.   Mr  Montana the  f i rs t  

i ssue I  wou ld  l i ke  to  look  a t  i s  the  sa le  o f  the  Parkwood 

proper ty  and you  w i l l  f ind  tha t  re levant  fac t s  a re  se t  ou t  a t  

Bund le  HSSAT Pages 34 to  39 .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  can I  suggest  o r  ra ther  request  

address you f i rs t l y  on  th is  i ssue  because we go  to  the  

spec i f i c  mat te rs .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  you mean in  genera l?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  th is  par t i cu la r  p roper ty.  

MR MONTANA:   This  repor t ,  th is  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  repor t ,  oh ,  okay,  a l r igh t  do  tha t .  
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MR MONTANA:   Because I  th ink  there  are  two th ings 

Cha i r,  shou ld  th is  repor t  be  be fore  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  th ink  

le t ’s  s ta r t  there ,  and Cha i r  I  th ink  you w i l l  see  my a f f idav i t  

I  dea l  w i th  a l l  the  proper t ies ,  I  am not  even get t ing  in to  

tha t ,  bu t  the  Commiss ion  Cha i r  shou ld  know what  in  fac t  he  

is  t ry ing  to  do .   Th is  repor t  i t  takes  the  v iews –  i t  takes the  

pos i t ions  o f  o ther  peop le  who make a l legat ions ,  i t  i s  

compi led  by  an  invest iga tor  a t  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  i s  pu t  as  

a  repor t  o f  the  Commiss ion .    Now these are  un tes ted  

a l legat ions,  I  am not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me say  th is  because th is  m ight  

cer ta in  th ings m ight  be  caus ing  confus ion ,  be fo re  you  

proceed,  okay so  I  see tha t  so  i t  i s  a  repor t  o r  

invest iga tor ’s  repor t  as  opposed to  be ing  a  repor t  o f  the  

Commiss ion ,  so  I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t  so  tha t  tha t  

d is t inc t ion  is  made,  in  o ther  words a  member  o f  the  

invest iga t ion  team ass igned to  look  in to  cer ta in  mat te rs  i s  

supposed to  have conducted invest iga t ion  and looked a t  

documents  and he then cu ts  to  cer ta in  i ssues wh ich  I  m ight  

accept  o r  re jec t ,  so  I  jus t  want  to  ment ion  tha t ,  then you 20 

can cont inue.  

MR MONTANA:    No thanks Cha i r,  I  accept  tha t  Cha i r  and 

le t  me s tar t  by  quot ing  a  judgment ,  I  th ink  i t  was Judge J  

Dav is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You see Mr  Montana by  coming to  the  
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Commiss ion  you might  end up be ing  a  de fac to  lawyer.  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed Cha i r  I  th ink  I  am hav ing  tha t  

d i rec t ion  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  Mr  Son i  can take  me under  h i s  

w ing  Cha i r  un t i l  I  a lso  ge t  to  the  leve l  Cha i r,  thank you 

very  much.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  the  –  Judge Dav is  i n  a  mat te r  

invo l v ing  the  SABC ra i sed two impor tan t  i ssues,  and I  jus t  

want  to  quote  them qu ick ly  Cha i r,  he  says f i rs t l y  th is  is  a  

mat te r  tha t  was between the  SABC and a  fo rmer  Prov inc ia l  10 

SABC news ed i to r,  Mr  Char les  Mat lou .    He took the  Joe  

Co l l ie r  repor t  on  the  SABC ed i to r ia l  independence,  so  

in te r fe rence w i th  the  SABC,  on  rev iew and th is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  repor t ,  I ’m sor ry?  

MR MONTANA:   This  was the  Joe Co l l ie r,  remember  Joe  

Co l l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   He was appo in ted  to  invest iga te ,  th is  

Commiss ion  to  invest iga te  the  ed i to r ia l  independence o f  20 

the  SABC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA:   He makes two impor tan t  po in ts  Cha i r  and  

I  jus t  want  to  qu ick l y  quote ,  the  f i rs t  one he says i t  o f fends  

one  sense o f  fa i rness,  even an  invest iga tor,  and I  am 
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say ing  in  th is  case,  th is  Commiss ion ,  were  to  on l y  l i s ten  to  

the  vers ion  o f  the  compla inant  w i thout  cons ider ing  the  

vers ion  o f  the  accused befo re  mak ing  a  f ind ing  or  

recommendat ion .     

 He a l so  come and say Cha i r  in  the  same judgment  

he  says and th is  i s  very  impor tan t ,  and th is  i s  my bas i s  fo r  

look ing  a t  th is  repor t ,  he  says i t  is  equa l l y  wor ry ing  when  

an accused person hears  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime 

recommendat ions  wh ich  adverse l y  a f fec t  h im when they are  

a l ready made.  10 

 Cha i r  I  accept  the  d is t inc t ion  tha t  you have made 

but  th is  repor t  Cha i r  somebody in  the  Commiss ion  has g i ve  

a  –  i s  go ing  to  invest iga te  a  par t i cu la r  a rea ,  to  go  and 

invest iga te ,  what  he  does i f  he  does an invest iga t ion  i t  has  

spoken to  eve ryone tha t  looked  a t  a l l  the  s ta tements ,  

spoken to  a l l  the  re levant  peop le  and these are  my 

pre l im inary  v iews,  I  want  to  pu t  them before  the  

Commiss ion .  

 Cha i r  i t  d idn ’ t  happen,  what  has happened here  is  

tha t  the  Commiss ion ’s  invest iga te  on  PRASA when to  take  20 

a l legat ions tha t  were  made by  Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  in  the  22 

page a f f idav i t  tha t  he  pu t  in  Brook l yn  Po l ice  S ta t ion  and  

the  Werksmans Repor t ,  and these are  now compi led  in to  a 

pre l im inary  repor t  today to  the  Commiss ion .  

 Cha i r  I  w i l l  answer  quest ions ,  any quest ions  
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because I  agreed  to  come and tes t i f y  be fore  you Cha i r,  bu t  

th is  repor t  Cha i r  can never  be ,  ac tua l l y  what  i s  f i rs t  

because th is  i s  an  invest iga tor  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  you 

know I  l i s tened Cha i r  when th is  th ing  was happen ing ,  Mr  

Son i  asked fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  they were  c la r i f y i ng  and say ing  

Mr  Montana bought  p roper t ies  fo r  R36mi l l ion .    Okay,  no t  

t rue  Cha i r,  bu t  th is  repor t  says tha t ,  because i t  takes the  

v iew,  you see these peop le  who manufac tu re  these s tor ies  

about  us ,  they don ’ t  themse lves come to  the  Commiss ion ,  

they pu t  them as i f  the i r  repor t  i s  in  the  med ia  th ing  or  10 

someth ing  and then the  Commiss ion  e levates  –  takes tha t ,  

i t s  invest iga tors  takes tha t  and then they are  channe l led  

th rough the  process because O’Su l l i van  doesn ’ t  come here  

and f i le  an  a f f idav i t  on  h i s  22  and  say I  be l ieve  tha t  there  

is  cor rup t ion  and I  wr i te  i t  he re ,  then i t ’s  a  cha l lenge,  

because Cha i r  he  says I  have taken,  I  have used bank  

s ta tements ,  I ’ ve  used o ther  th ings,  I  have a l so   used  

documents  tha t  a re  be fo re  Cour t .  

 On the  ve ry  mat te r  we have jus t  comple ted ,  i t  i s  no t  

on ly  the  H igh  Cour t  tha t  d id  no t  what  I  sa id  even on these 20 

th ings and my vers ion  on  th is  i ssue.   The Commiss ion  

Cha i r  igno red,  they touched,  they ta lked about  every th ing ,  

and I  s t i l l  make tha t  d is t inc t ion  Cha i r  tha t  you have  made I  

jus t  take  i t  and use i t ,  they  take  these th ings,  they  e levate  

i t ,  i t  i s  p resented before  the  Commiss ion .  
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 Cha i r  there  is  no  reason,  i f  I  look  a t  the  l i tany,  I  

wro te  to  the  Commiss ion  Cha i r,  you w i l l  reca l l  I  even went  

to  the  –  I  wro te  to  the  Jud ic ia l  Serv i ce  Commiss ion ,  the  

Commiss ion  is  ac tua l l y  b reak ing  the  very  te rms o f  tha t ,  th is  

i s  one o f  the  issues Cha i r,  tha t  I  ra ised.  

 Now here  is  the  Commiss ion  where  there  is  a  

d ispute  on  even fac t ,  i t  pu ts  th is  repor t ,  i t  takes repor ts  

f rom o ther  peop le  who are  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  they  don ’ t  f i l e  

them,  then they e levate ,  the  Commiss ion  then enters  the  

arena,  in  favour  o f  par t i cu la r  peop le  and then I  come to  the  10 

Commiss ion ,  so  the  quest ions I  shou ld  be  answer ing  I  am 

go ing  to  answer  now,  I  shou ld  be  answer ing  those 

Commiss ion  dur ing ,  I  shou ld  have answered du r ing  the  

invest iga t ion .  

 Now I  am hav ing  a  pre l im inary  repor t  on  th is  i ssue 

okay,  where  myse l f  and I  have checked w i th  o ther  peop le ,  

d id  they speak to  you,  the  answer  i s  no ,  Mr  Oe l le rman is  

no t  here ,  so  i f  you  ask  h im he was  ab le  to  say Mr  Montana  

bought  p roper t ies  fo r  R36mi l l ion ,  okay,  wh ich  i s  fa lse ,  bu t  

they were  presen t ing  i t  as  fac t .  20 

 I  a lso  ment ioned someth ing  e lse  Cha i r  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  went  and presented to  the  Cha i r  tha t  there  i s  

on ly  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  and a l l  o the r  th ings 

even about  how we dea l  w i th  cour t  judgments .    Th i s  repor t  

Cha i r  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  say we have  got  the 
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in fo rmat ion ,  we want  to  ask ,  we  want  to  ask  you ce r ta in  

quest ions and then we a re  a lso  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  in  tha t .   

Th is  repor t  Cha i r  I  th ink  i f  we were  procedura l l y  d i l igence  

o f  earnest  we dea l  w i th  the  issue tha t  Judge Dav is  has 

sa id  tha t  i t  i s  qu i te ,  i t  i s  ex t remely  wor ry ing .   Th is  repor t  

shou ld  no t  be  accepted by  th is  Commiss ion ,  no t  because i t  

conta ins  the  l ies  tha t  i t  con ta ins ,  bu t  p rec i se ly  because the  

process be fore  i t  was tab led  here  Cha i r  I  shou ld  have been 

spoken to ,  four / f i ve  o the r  peop le  shou ld  have been spoken 

to ,  the  documents  tha t  Mr  Oe l le rman says he  p laces 10 

re l iance on he ac tua l l y  ignored them Cha i r,  Mr  Oe l le rman 

ignored documents  on  a  who le  range o f  f ron ts  on  the  

PRASA i ssue wh ich  has pu t  in to  me in to  d i spute  w i th  the  

Commiss ion  Cha i r.  

 Cha i r  i f  there  was t ime I  wou ld  ac tua l l y  pu t  an  

app l i ca t ion ,  maybe i t  has  no t  been done,  app ly ing  to  you 

Cha i r  to  say I  am ask ing  fo r  th is  chap to  be  f i red   because  

he has ac tua l l y  m is led  the  Commiss ion ,  undermined i t s  

mandate  to  reach  to  the  t ru th .  

 What  he  is  do ing  s i r  he  is  f igh t ing  a  ba t t le  on  beha l f  20 

o f  par t i cu la r  ves ted  in te res ted  in  these mat te rs .   Cha i r  you  

remember  I  ment ioned the  issue about  the  NPA and the  

Hawkes,  aga in  the  PRASA invest iga t ing  team ignored the  

fac t  and presented the  Commiss ion  w i th  the  fac ts  tha t  

PRASA was f igh t ing  the  Hawks to  invest iga te  these  
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mat te rs ,  when we know tha t  the  fac ts  a re  in  fac t  the  

oppos i te  and in  my a f f idav i t  I  have a t tached a  lo t  o f  th ings,     

 Cha i r  I  wro te  to  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  

why wou ld  th is  Commiss ion  or  ra ther  why wou ld  the  

invest iga to rs  i n  th is  Commiss ion  pursue cer ta in  th ings,  

a l ign  themse lves  w i th  cer ta in  peop le  and the  fac ts  tha t  I  

pu t  inc lud ing  pub l i c  s ta tement ,  inc lud ing  some o f  them 

under  oa th  l i ke  the  a f f idav i t s  they ignored them and they 

want  to  pursue,  so  th is  Cha i r  what  we have before  you is  

th is  repor t ,  i t  i s  bas ica l l y  Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  tak ing  h is  10 

a f f idav i t ,  wh ich  the  po l i ce  in  Brook l yn  they are  no t  ac ted  

upon,  wh ich  Werksmans says the re  is  ac tua l l y  no  suppor t  

ev idence fo r  th is ,  Werksmans sa id  about  i t ,  bu t  somehow 

they are  ge t t ing  to  be  invest iga to rs  a t  the  commiss ion  to  

say accept  th is  and do not  accept  th is ,  so  Cha i r  I  am 

prepared to  answer  every th ing ,  bu t  I  am say ing  th i s  repor t  

i s  no t  wor th  the  paper  i t  i s  wr i t ten  on ,  i t  shou ld  no t  be  

accepted by  th is  Commiss ion ,  and  I  th ink  tha t  in  fac t  i f  you  

are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  my proper t i es  Cha i r  the  Commiss ion  

must  have invest i ga tors  to  come and speak to  me,  p repare  20 

a  proper  p re l im inary  repor t ,  and then the  facts  a re  casted 

here .  

 What  we have i s  these th ings are  e levated,  the  

Commiss ion  has done work  wh ich  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and I  am 

supposed to  come here  and respond to  mat te rs  tha t  the  



03 MAY 2021 – DAY 387 
 

Page 151 of 178 
 

Commiss ion  shou ld  have sa t  w i th  me on the  s ide  and then  

s tar t  to  quest ion  me and ver i f y  the  fac ts ,  so  th i s  i s  you are  

ac tua l l y  say ing  Cha i r  i f  you  accept  th is  repor t ,  and I  am not  

say ing  the  Cha i r  has accepted,  bu t  the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  be fore  

us  you are  bas i ca l l y  say ing  the  Commiss ion  is  coming to  

the  r ing ,  the  peop le  are  mak ing  accusat ions,  they don ’ t  

want  to  box w i th  me,  they are  now put t ing  Judge  Zondo 

and the  Commiss ion  to  box w i th  me,  so  i f  I  h i t  them I  s t i l l  

have peop le  s tand ing  beh ind  the  Judge.    

 I  th ink  Cha i r  i t  is  no t  on ly   un fa i r  bu t  i t  ac tua l l y  10 

fundamenta l l y  undermine the  te rms o f  re fe rence  o f  th is  

Commiss ion ,  espec ia l l y  c i te  fo r  the  t ru th  Cha i r  and  I  th ink  

tha t  th is  i s  what  has happened,  and I  take  s t rong except ion  

Cha i r,  Mr  Son i  can cont inue ask ing  me,  bu t  I  am urg ing  

Cha i r  tha t  a  repor t  o f  th is  na ture  wh ich  is  show ing so  

par t i san  th is  repor t  and i f  Mr  Oe l le rman was wr i t ing  th is  

repor t  and hav ing  h is  own dreams i t  i s  f ine  Cha i r,  he  went  

to  take  peop le  tha t  I  am cha l leng ing ,  some o f  them have 

sa id  they want  to  c ross-examine me,  he  has e levated the i r  

vers ion  and i t  i s  e leva ted there ,  bu t  fo r tunate l y  I  am here 20 

and fo r tunate l y  I  am g lad  tha t  you w i l l  g ive  me the  chance I  

w i l l  dea l  w i th  these issues but  th is  repor t  Cha i r  shou ldn ’ t  

have been,  when the  count ry  was be ing  to ld  Montana  

bought  the  R36mi l l ion  proper t ies  wor th  R36mi l l ion ,  and m 

fami ly  asked me hey you a re  so  loaded Montana,  where  do  
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you  get  th is  money f rom.  

 So these are  the  th ings tha t  they do  Cha i r,  so  Cha i r  

I  th ink  tha t  I  wan t  to  pu t  i t ,  I  w i l l  answer  spec i f i c  quest ions  

tha t  Mr  Son i  wants  to  ask .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  do  no t  expect  th is  repor t  Cha i r  and I  

w i l l  never  accept  i t ,  even tomor row.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  Mr  Son i  w i l l  be  ab le  to  say 

someth ing  in  response i f  he  w ishes  to ,  bu t  what  you say Mr  

Montana i s  you have sa id  tha t  th is  repor t  i s  based on Mr  10 

O ’Su l l i van ’s  a f f idav i t  so  I  am keen  to  see tha t  a f f idav i t  and 

then I  th ink  you sa id  someth ing  e lse  a l so  based on  

someth ing  e lse .  

MR MONTANA:   So in  fac t  i t  is  based on th ree  th ings,  

wh ich  a re  a t tached,  a re  par t  o f  my a t tachment  tha t  I  

d iscussed w i th  you.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:   The f i rs t  one is  the  22  page a f f idav i t  by  

O ’Su l l i van ,  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van ,  the  second one is  the  repor t  o f  

Werksmans,  the  same mat te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And the  th i rd  one Cha i r  the re  is  a  chap  

who worked fo r  PRASA who worked w i th  Mr  Mole fe  who  

compi led  and knowing the  chap Cha i r  I  can see tha t  he  

wou ldn ’ t  w r i te  an  a f f idav i t  o f  tha t  na ture  so  a l l  o f  them I  
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have a t tached them so tha t  the  Commiss ion  can see a l l  o f  

those documents ,  and I  have a t tached them Cha i r,  I  want  

us  to  have a  look  a t  them.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  a lso  another  

po in t  I  wanted to  make is  one wh ich  I  th ink  I  have made  

before ,  namely  i t  i s  good tha t  you came to  par t i c ipa te  

because then you can ra ise  these th ings and say  here  is  

someth ing  tha t  i s  f lawed as  fa r  as  I  am concerned,  here  is  

my s ide  o f  the  s to ry,  and w i th  o ther  peop le  do  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  has been t ry ing  to  say come le t ’s  hear,  i t  i s  to  10 

a f fo rd  them exac t ly  th is  oppor tun i ty  to  say so  and  so  is  

say ing  these th ings to  me because o f  A ,  B ,  C,  D or  he  is  

bas ing  th i s  on  E ,  F and G you know so  tha t  we have the  

fu l l  perspect ive  so  tha t  in  the  end obv ious ly  one wou ld  look 

a t  rea l l y  what  the  ev idence re f lec t s ,  bu t  i t  i s  good tha t  you 

are  here ,  you can  ra ise  your  –  ra i se  those mat te rs .  

 Mr  Son i?    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i r.    Mr  Montana I  

don ’ t  want  to  en ter  in to  a  d ispute  about  –  w i th  you about  

th is ,  I  wou ld  ra ther  ask  the  quest ion .   I  jus t  make two 20 

po in ts ,  tha t  you do not  see a  s ing le  re ference in  th is  repor t  

to  Mr  O ’Su l l i van .   Second ly  you w i l l  see  in  re fe rence  in  th is  

repor t  a t  many leve ls  a  Mr  van der  Wal t  and payments  tha t  

he  made in  respect  o f  these proper t ies  togethe r  w i th  a  

bank account  tha t  h is  pa r tne r  supp l ied  to  the  Commiss ion ,  
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so  fo r  you to  say tha t  th is  i s  Mr  O ’Su l l i van  – I  have read Mr  

O ’Su l l i van ’s  a f f idav i t  o r  repor t  o r  whatever  i t  i s ,  I  can  say 

to  you tha t  Mr  Loubser ’s  a f f idav i t  came las t  yea r  and i t  was 

the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  anybody in  the  count ry  knew how 

payments  fo r  the  proper t ies  were  made and tha t  was made,  

tha t  came about  because Mr  van  der  Wal t   had p rov ided  

two le t te rs  to  Mr  Loubser  wh ich  are  par t  o f  Mr  Loubser ’s  

a f f idav i t .  

 I  jus t  make tha t  po in t .   

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  no ,  I  th ink  –  I  w i l l  accept  10 

your  gu idance tha t  you have g iven  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   That  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  have a  look a t  

tha t ,  I  am g lad  tha t  Mr  Son i  had seen the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   But  you w i l l  see  there ,  o r  ra ther  the  

le t te rs  and what  they ment ion  Cha i r,  so  you w i l l  see  when  

you see the  a f f idav i t ,  the  a f f idav i t s ,  the  concerned  

a f f idav i t s  tha t  th is  has go t  no th ing  to  do ,  I  have read Mr  

Loubser ’s  a f f idav i t  and I  have read a lso  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  20 

Andre  Wagner,  wh ich  the  Commiss ion  by  the  way Cha i r  le t  

me ment ion  be fore  we p roceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MONTANA:    You see Cha i r  t he  Commiss ion  engages 

w i th  someone,  Mr  Oe l le rman he goes and in te rv iews 
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somebody,  and th is  i s  Mr  Andre  Wagner,  the  man  who is  

invo l ved in  a  par tnersh ip  w i th  me th rough a  company ca l led  

Mid town Brace,  he  f i les  an  a f f idav i t ,  he  says th is  i s  my  

money,  I  have a  par tnersh ip  fo r  deve lopment  o f  p roper ty  o r  

p roper t ies  w i th  Mr  Montana,  okay and he exp la ins ,  he  was  

in te rv iewed,  I  th ink  he  spoke to  the  Commiss ion ,  he  

exp la ined and he  f i led  an  a f f idav i t  Cha i r,  he  s igned  i t ,  th is  

a f f idav i t  he  doesn ’ t  suppor t  i t  in  th is  p re l im ina ry  repor t  in  

respect  o f  th is  p roper ty  –  one o f  the  proper t ies  we are  

ta lk ing  about .  10 

 What  happened?   We saw Sa l ly  de  Beer,  Ms de 

Beer  was here ,  we saw Lou is  Green who in  fac t  was in  my 

v iew,  I  sub jec ted  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  who was here  because he 

cont rad i c ted  what  was sa id ,  and Cha i r,  and Cha i r  Mr  

Wagner  was not  even b rought  here  because he says I  don ’ t  

do  tenders  w i th  government ,  I  am not  invo lved w i th  PRASA,  

I  have got  a  p roper t y  dea l  w i th  Mr  Montana,  and  i t  i s  a  

good proper ty  dea l ,  okay,  and what  do  they say?   No,  no ,  

no  we don ’ t  need  you,  because you are  no t  a r t i cu la t ing  th is  

vers ion  tha t  we want ,  so  Mr  Son i  w i th  due respec t  I  hear  20 

what  you are  say ing ,  bu t  th is  repor t  Cha i r  once you have  

seen fo r  yourse l f  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  and the  

f i rs t  a f f idav i t  comes f rom Mr  I  th ink  he  is  ca l led  Mr  

Ph i lemon Mamaholo ,  Paka Mamaholo .    

 Cha i r  the  enormous l ies  bu t  fo r tunate ly  I  am here ,  I  
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am go ing  to  conf ron t  the  l ies  Cha i r  and dea l  w i th  them one 

by  one,  we are  here ,  bu t  the  Commiss ion  can ’ t  be  –  i t  

be longs to  a l l  o f  us ,  i t  cannot  be  abused by  peop le ,  i f  Mr  

O ’Su l l i van  he w i l l  on ly  go  to  Brook lyn ,  he  must  f i l e  an 

a f f idav i t  here  and defend i t  and make those accusat ions 

and be open to  c ross-examinat ion .  

 Now i t  i s  h idden under  the  Commiss ion ’s  

invest iga to r,  now what  do  they do ,  do  they cross-examine  

each o ther  and s ta tements  tha t  a re  made to  the  na t ion ,  a  

p re l im inary  repor t  Cha i r,  a  few days i t  was a  fu l l  repor t ,  10 

then we got  a  th ing  tha t  i s  now a  pre l im inary  repor t .   The 

damage tha t  was done now I  must  come a f te rwards to  

respond to  l ies  bu t  i t  has  been dea l t  w i th  a t  the  

Commiss ion  in  th is  pa r t i cu la r  way Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:   Now I  am go ing  to  leave i t  a t  tha t  Cha i r  

because you have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  yes ,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   Let ’s  go  in to  the  issue but  the  pr inc ip le  o f  

i t  I  don ’ t  want   us  to  be  cracks over  c racks,  pu t  p las ter  20 

over  c racks th is  th ing  was wrong in  a  very  fundamenta l  

way,  i f  I  say  i t  was unfa i r  i t  i s  an  unders ta tement  Cha i r.  

 The conduct  o f  th is  chap,  th is  invest iga tor  by  the  

Commiss ion  was un lawfu l  Cha i r  and i f  the  Cha i r  had  known 

probab ly  a  few months ago I  wou ld  have wr i t ten  and asked 
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fo r  th is  chap to  be  f i red  because now I  have been made to  

be l ieve  i t  i s  the  pos i t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  now i t  i s  

qu i te  c lea r  tha t  the  –  here  is  someone who is  go ing  –  I  

asked the  quest ion ,  how was th is  chap appo in ted ,  I  had to  

ask  tha t  quest ion  Cha i r  because  I  have never  seen an  

invest iga to r  a t  th is  Commiss ion  who a l igns  h imse l f  w i th  the 

vers ion  he  wants  to  pu t  on  the  tab le  Cha i r.  

 Cha i r  the  reason  why I  d idn ’ t  come fo r  two years  

here  is  because I  have been f igh t ing  to  say no ,  no ,  no ,  i t  

cannot  be  done,  I  sa id  e i ther  you  dea l  w i th  the  t ru th  or  I  10 

won ’ t  come and tes t i f y  bu t  I  am g lad  I  am here  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Maybe we p roceed,  and I  want  I  th ink  Mr  

Son i  shou ld  no t  de fend i t  bu t  shou ld  no te  my v iew unt i l  we 

have now conf i rmed tha t  w i th  the  a f f idav i t s  tha t  a re  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  wanted to  say 

someth ing  about  Mr  Wagner  I  th ink ,  I  don ’ t  remember  tha t  

name but  I  do  reca l l  tha t  on  one o f  the  occas ions when you 

were  appear ing  here  you d id  re fe r  to  a  w i tness and  I  th ink  20 

i t  was in  the  con tex t  o f  the  proper ty,  o f  the  issues  o f  the 

proper t ies  tha t  you sa id  as  I  unders tood you had deposed 

to  an  a f f idav i t  o r  had sa id  someth ing  tha t  you sa id  were  – 

d id  no t  accord  or  suppor t  a  ce r ta in  nar ra t i ve ,  and I  th ink  ou  

sa id  he  was not  ca l led  to  g ive  ev idence.  
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 Subsequent  to  hear ing  you say ing  tha t  I  d id  ask  I  

th ink  I  hope I  am not  m is taken,  I  d id  ra i se  i t  w i th  the  lega l  

team to  say fo l low up on th is ,  wha t  i s  Mr  Montana i s  ta lk ing  

about ,  because  i t  may be tha t  somet imes somebody  

expects  a  cer ta in  w i tness to  be  ca l led  and the  w i tness i s  

no t  ca l led  fo r  reason A ,  bu t  when tha t  person sees tha t  th is  

w i tness is  no t  be ing  he  or  she th inks  i t  i s  reason B ,  you  

know,  somet imes  there  is  a  good reason but  when you 

know there  is  no t  communica t ion  and d iscuss ion  i t  is  easy  

to  th ink  d i f fe ren t ly,  so  I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  when you 10 

prev ious l y  ment ioned someth ing  l i ke  tha t  I  ra ised  i t  w i th  

the  lega l  team to  say they must  look  in to  tha t .  

 Mr  Son i  d id  I  ra ise  i t  w i th  you?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes no  you d id  Cha i rperson,  I  am 

go ing  to  address i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  I  do  reca l l  tha t  you to ld  me I  

th ink  a  cer ta in  answer,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.    Mr  Montana can I  ask  you to  

p lease look a t   -  we are  s t i l l  dea l i ng  w i th  Bund le  H ,  p lease 

look a t  page 198.  20 

MR MONTANA:    198?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  am there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  paragraph 24 the  repor t  says:  

“One o f  the  d i rec tors  o f  Mid town  Brace,  Mr  Andre  
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Wagner,  has under taken to  p rov ide  an  a f f idav i t  

se t t ing  ou t  how i t  came about  tha t  the  R11.5mi l l ion  

in  respect  o f  the  Hur l ingham p roper ty  came about . ”  

I t  i s  re fe r red  to  in  paragraph 23 and a t  pa ragraph  24 the  

repor t  cont inues:  

“A t  the  t ime th is  repor t  was compi led  the  a f f idav i t  

had not  been fu rn ished to  the  Commiss ion . ”  

So tha t  i s  the  answer.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  I  must  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you must  read  the  las t  sentence as  10 

we l l ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

“Once i t  i s  submi t ted  a  dec is ion  w i l l  be  made 

whethe r  to  supp lement  th is  repor t . ”  

Now Cha i rpe rson  can I  –  can I  make Mr  Andre  Wagner ’s  

a f f idav i t  ava i lab le  to  a l l  o f  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    To  unders tand why no dec i s ion  was  

made to  supp lement  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  

Mr  Wagner  eventua l l y  submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion ,  now 

he dea ls  w i th  the ,  in  paragraph  3  w i th  the  Hur l ingham 

proper ty,  we l l  f i rs t l y  he  says:  

“he  is  a  representa t i ve  o f  Mid town Brace,  i t  i s  a  
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company reg i s te red in  Botswana and then in  

parag raph 3  dea l i ng  w i th  the  Hur l ingham p roper t y  h  

he  says  Mr  R iaan van der  Wal t  and I  have known 

each o ther  s ince  1992,  we are  good f r i ends.   We  

have engaged in  jo in t  venture  agreements  du r ing  

th is  t ime,  The E lements  Go l f  Es ta te  and proper ty  in  

Keurboom St rand .    R iaan van de r  Wal t  in t roduced 

me to  M L Mon tana wh ich  p resented a  p roper t y  

deve lopment  p roposa l .    I  have never  met  Mr  

Montana pr io r  to  th is  in t roduct ion .    The pa r t ies  10 

Mid town Brace and Mr  Montana agreed to  the  te rms 

and cond i t ions  o f  such a  deve lopment  and entered 

in to  an  ag reement  dur ing  2015.   The deve lopment  

encountered severa l  obstac les  tha t  resu l ted  in  

de lays  and red i rec t ion  o f  the  or ig ina l  deve lopment  

and agreement    The company is  sa t is f ied  w i th  the  

cur ren t  agreements  in  p lace  to  secure  i ts  

investment .    

To  cover  the  company aga ins t  any losses we have  

issued summons  aga ins t  Mr  Mon tana and awai t ing  20 

defau l t  judgment  i f  he  de fau l ts  aga in .  

I  fu r ther  conf i rm  tha t  the  fu l l  investment  amount  

was pa id  over  to  Mr  Montana to ta l l ing  

R11 500 000. ”  

Then he dea ls  w i th  Mid town Brace and what  i t s  dea l ings 
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a re .   He says  Mid town Brace  was a  shareho lde r  in  

Wet lands Count ry  Ret rea t ,  Mid town Brace so ld  i t s  shares 

in  Wet lands to  TMM dur ing  2014  as  per  a  sa le  o f  share  

agreement  and in  te rms o f  the  shareho lders  agreement .   

Th is  was my on ly  dea l ings w i th  Mr  Mar io  Fer re i ra ,  the  sa le  

o f  share  agreement ,  p repara t ion  and rece ip t  o f  payments  

was hand led  by  Mr  R iaan van der  Wal t  th rough an Investec  

account ,  you w i l l  see  two things here does not  annex the 

agreements when he refers to  agreements his  agreement 

wi th Mr Montana and his  agreement wi th Mr Ferreira  that  –  10 

those agreements are not  there but  what also emerges is  

there was in fact  now a legal  dispute between him or his f i rm 

and Mr Montana.    

Now nothing in the report  because when I  go through 

the Hurl ingham property Chai rperson you wi l l  see that  that  is 

exact ly what he says that  mid-town brace aid the R11.5 

mi l l ion in respect  of  the property.   This is what Mr Van Der 

Walt  said in his let ter.   So based on that  and I  was one of  

the decision makers thought that  i t  was not  necessary 

because i t  does not  take the matter  any further in relat ion to 20 

the report  i tsel f  and throwing any further l ight  on the 

purchase of  the Hur l ingham property.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   The – the agreement – wel l  

the agreements he refers to in 3.1 or 3.2 must  be 

agreements.  
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ADV SONI SC:   With Mr Van Der Walt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   With Mr Van Der Walt .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   I t  is 3.5 that  the agreement  wi th Mr 

Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay,  al r ight .   Yes okay.   Mr Montana 

do you – I  th ink Mr – what Mr Soni  was doing was just  to 

explain why Mr Wagner was not  cal led but  the aff idavi t  is  

here.   Do you want to say something on that? 

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chair  I  want  to  say two quick things.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR MONTANA:   In fact  th is aff idavi t  remember why – why 

are we here?  Why are we discussing these issues?  This 

commission – the commission invest igated property.   They 

did not  invest igate al l  my propert ies.   I t  invest igated certain 

propert ies where al legat ions of  wrongdoing were in .   Okay.   

Now they ment ioned four and I  am glad i t  seems you are 

making progress.    

His aff idavi t  okay says no,  no,  no I  am 00:02:55 I  am 

not  involved in  that  and that  I  have entered into a property  

t ransact ion wi th Mr Montana.   I  gave him R11 mi l l ion – R11.5 20 

mi l l ion.   He had to put  and advert ise by the way for  your  

informat ion Chai r  the agreement I  have at tached as part  of 

my – to my aff idavi t .    

Now we are looking at  propert ies that  Mr Montana a l l  

propert ies for R36 mi l l ion according to th is report .   Okay.    
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Now this aff idavi t  by Mr Wagner he has proved that 

Chai r.   I t  conf i rms the fact  that  me and him had a property 

development and he says I  knew Riaan Van Der Wal t  and I  

knew Mario Ferre ira there but  I  have got  a t ransact ion wi th 

Mr Montana and I  am not  involved in PRASA – I  am not  

involved in anything.    

Now when Chair  you are – you asking me Mr Soni  

conf i rmed Montana bought propert ies f rom stolen money 

effect ive ly that  was being said.   He has an aff idavi t  Chai r  I  

am not  deal ing wi th – I  wi l l  deal  wi th – we are coming to the 10 

others.   We are deal ing wi th – here is  an aff idavi t  i t  te l ls us 

that  someone who is involved in farming,  in mining get  

involved in a property deal  wi th  me – we buy a property  

Chair  and I  wi l l  explain the detai ls o f  that  t ransact ion.   Okay.    

Now by associat ion when they f ind that  ay this guy 

knows somebody else they say no the money for buying th is 

th ing should come from that  s ide is the relat ionship that  we 

set  up to  pay Montana corrupt ly.   And Chair  the reason why – 

because you want to hear both sides – you want to hear 

when I  am accused that  I  bought propert ies.    20 

But  here is the man who is saying to the commission 

I  am deposing to an aff idavi t  and I  am saying that  the 

al legat ion that  I  brought I  bought a property  wi th  Montana as 

part  of  a  corrupt  deal .   I t  is fa lse I  am not  even involved in 

those – in those k ind of  t ransact ions.   Chai r  there is no – the 
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commission interested in the t ruth there is  no way that  i t  wi l l  

invi te Ms De Beer and ignore – because the biggest  – 

probably one of  the biggest  pro – monies in that  R36mil l ion 

comes f rom Mr Wagner and I  wanted the commission to  

pursue and say we want to – who draws Mr Wagner Chair  i t  

is Mr O’Sul l ivan okay.    

Now – now today we are told that  th is th ing does not  

add value.   This th ing add value.   You know what the value i t  

adds Chai r  i t  says the narrat ive about al l  these propert ies is 

actual ly fa lse.   There i t  is Chai r.    10 

And so – and so Chair  I  want  us to go into detai l .   I  

am raising this pr inciple that  when the commission says 

there is no need to pursue okay no I  want to prove Chair  that  

the story about R36 mi l l ion worth of  houses bought by 

Montana is so false i t  is  in the prel iminary report  and that  is 

why I  even looked at  the accounts Chai r  what one of  the 

things that  O’Sul l ivan did was to provide the accounts and 

you wi l l  see that  th is R36mil l ion how that  – i t  does not  come 

from anywhere else – i t  does not  come from an independent  

invest igat ion by th is commission.    20 

Someone was t ry ing to extort  money f rom me I  

refused again i t  is in my aff idavi t  and then they decided to 

go to me and they created a story and I  am simply saying 

Chair  that  – that  th is aff idavi t  i f  somebody makes an 

accusat ion that  Montana stole money and bought propert ies 
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i t  must  also be this aff idavi t  that  says no,  no,  no Montana did 

not  steal  money he entered into a property development wi th  

me.  His contr ibut ion to that  – I  mean when you look at  th is  

report  Chai r  let  me read the last  – the last  th ing.    

The last  sentence there.   Not  the last  sentence – the 

one before – the one before where they are ment ion ing that  

– oh no there i t  is  Chair  i t  says:  

“This man paid R11.5 mi l l ion and Mr  Montana 

did not  even pay a cent .   That  – that  money 

the R2 mi l l ion was paid by Mr Riaan Van Der 10 

Walt . ”  

Chair  i t  is fa lse.   So here we deal  we stand in f ront  of  the 

nat ion some of  us who wake up in the ear ly hours of  the 

morning to go and work for th is country they are then being 

tarnished that  we are thieves.   I  enter into a proper ty deal  I  

put  – I  sel l  one of  my – one property I  put  the money into 

another property okay.   This guy i f  he had – i f  he had come 

and inves – and interviewed me Chair  or he probably the 

other people he would have real ised that  Montana sold 

property X he did not  take that  money he paid the bank and I  20 

instructed Van Der Walt .    

The balance of  that  money i t  must  go as a deposi t  

into that  property  or pay for that  property that  is what I  wi l l  

demonstrate here today Chai r.   So this  story about  Montana 

being r ich,  steal ing f rom PRASA and buying R36 mi l l ion 
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worth of  propert ies and I  th ink we must deal  wi th  i t  and I  

th ink Mr Soni  you sa id you are going to deal  wi th – you want 

to deal  wi th the facts I  want to assis t  you wi th the facts. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  these things that  we have before us i t  is  

not  a fact  i t  is f ict ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now Mr Soni  or  Mr Montana in your  

aff idavi t  that  is saying that  in terms of  the annexures is there 

a d ist inct  sect ion where you deal  wi th the issue of  

propert ies? 10 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no Chai r  in great  detai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In great  detai l .  

MR MONTANA:   I  know this  is one of  the accusat ions that 

have been made against  me in publ ic.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  would not  come to this commission and not  

ta lk about  my propert ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  deal  wi th  each and every property  

how each of  – each one of  them was funded.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Precisely because I  wanted to put  th is l ie to 

rest  for the last  t ime we do not  deal  wi th i t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know what I  am thinking Mr Soni  i t  

may be convenient  that  Mr Montana gets quest ioned on the 
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propert ies when one has seen what he has to say about each 

of  the al legat ions connected wi th a l l  h is  propert ies because 

without  that  he might  spend – we might  spent  a lot  of  t ime 

because one he is  not  looking at  what he has al ready wri t ten 

and we could take maybe hal f  the t ime i f  we were to do i t  

that  way.  

ADV SONI SC:   No I  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  have got  – I  have got  everything I  

have wri t ten on th is th ing i t  is a… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I f  the commission asks me to read them into 

record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  can do that  now Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  th ink I  would prefer to read i t  before 

you give evidence because then… 

MR MONTANA:   Okay Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then I  would be in a posi t ion and Mr Soni  

would be in a posi t ion too – I  would be in a posi t ion to  say in 20 

the l ight  of  your  response the only issues are real ly  ABCD.  

So let  us focus on those issues then we do not  have to 

spend too much t ime.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson may I  augment that  and that  we 

must  do because Mr Montana must be ent i t led to ( inaudible).  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   One of  the purposes of  the 10.6 d irect ive 

was to say tel l  us what you admit  and what you do not?  So 

i f  I  am just  giv ing an – that  is in addi t ion to what you sa id 

Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A background.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  wi l l  shorten things a lot  more.   I f  I  could 

just  take and I  am doing i t  for Mr Montana’s sake at  page 34 

i f  we are – that  is of  SS18 Bundle H.  Because i t  says  

MR MONTANA:   34? 10 

ADV SONI SC:   Page 34.   Paragraph 2 says Mr Montana 

purchased the Parkwood property on the 4t h of  July for R1.85 

mi l l ion.   Mr Montana can say yes or  no.   So one then knows 

that  when one is deal ing wi th the – and those are just  facts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  am not  asking him to deal  wi th the 

inference.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Just  the facts.   Then we say that  in 

paragraph 3 there – there is a – an emai l  f rom Mr Montana’s 20 

pr ivate banker which says the property is  valued at  R3.5 

mi l l ion.    I t  does not  mean he accepts the va luat ion i t  merely 

says yes I  accept  that  that  is what my cl ient  ( inaudible).   

Then at  paragraph 4 we say Precise Trade and Mr Montana 

entered into a purchase and sale contract  whereby the 
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property  was sold.   So that  would just  el iminate al l  the 

factual  disputes and we wi l l  get  into the real  disputes as to  

where did the money come from.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana’s explanat ion being sought.   So 

i t  is not  amending what you are saying i t  is augment ing 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So – so for example – I  mean you said 

al ready you have got  th is story.   You have your – what you 

have to say in your aff idavi t .   So when one has regard to 10 

whatever the documents say here and what you have to say 

one ought to be able to say there is no disputes in terms of  

facts on the fol lowing issues.   The disputes are only in 

regard to  ABCD. 

ADV SONI SC:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And… 

ADV SONI SC:   And i t  wi l l  save us plenty of  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So – ja you want to say something.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  have accepted your guidance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.    20 

MR MONTANA:   But  I  a lso do not  want because we are going 

to now lose purpose – you see Mr Soni  – Chai r  we must  not  

forget  what we are deal ing wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MONTANA:   The invest igators know that  the property in  
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Parkwood was bought by me was paid for by me. I  do not  

want to go into detai l  about  i t .   And – and they are talk ing 

about  an evaluate – they are talk ing about  the valuat ion 

when I  bought the property they are not  ta lk ing about  when I  

bought the – when I  sold the property.   Okay.   Now – now 

Chair  and I  th ink – I  th ink that  – I  th ink that  the issue whi le 

we are discussing the pr ivate – the Parkwood property let  us 

remember why we are discussing i t  i t  is because they are 

saying I  sold i t  for R6.8 mi l l ion above the valuat ion.   They 

are not  te l l ing you what the valuat ion – the valuat ion was – 10 

they are taking the valuat ion that  I  got  when I  bought  the 

property because the bank had to f inance me so i t  d id a 

valuat ion of  the property  and i t  says no we can f inance i t  

because the value of  the property i t  is far above the value of  

the bond you are request ing.    

So the grant  – they give me a bond but  to – that  story  

is created that  no Montana he sold i t  for R6.8 this property is 

worth R3.3 or R4 mi l l ion okay.   They are not  te l l ing you Chair  

that  the property  was – I  am not  being asked how did he 

develop this  property?  How much did you spend on i t  and 20 

everything?   

Chair  I  have got  pictures fortunately I  have got  

pictures of  th is  property then and now.   I  bought a wreck 

Chai r.   The bank f inanced us because of  i ts locat ion i t  is far 

above that .   I  modernised the property.   What these people 
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want  Chai r  you do not  even evaluat ion – they said they 

heard thei r  neighbour saying this property should be R4. -  a 

neighbour who has not  even been inside my house he knows 

the value of  th is property.    

And then Chair  they are saying he sold i t  for  R6.8.   

You know what the R6.8 is saying?  So they are saying 

between the R3.3 that  the bank evaluated when I  bought the 

property and when I  sold i t  they then say i t  is a br ibe f rom 

Riaan Van Der Walt .   Okay Chair  so I  do not  want us to deal  

wi th th is th ing as i f  – as i f… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  – that  is  important .   In the end – 

in the end you are r ight  to say to the extent  that  th is is on 

the basis of  suspicion that  i t  is a br ibe this is my answer.   I t  

is not  or i t  cannot be because of  these facts.   So – so we 

must not  forget  that  – that  is important .  

MR MONTANA:   No Chair  I  wi l l  keep on reminding the 

commission 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Respect ing progress and I  th ink Mr Soni  

and I  agreed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   That  we must  move with speed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR MONTANA:   But  Chair  again Mr Soni  when he augment 

he said Regulat ion 10.6 Chai r  I  do not  want to go back.   I  
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have said i t  on record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  and I  have said to the commission I  

wrote a – to the commission you as a commission issuing a 

10.6 against  me you are going to  the Chair  to ask for a  

00:16:52 2.6.   You know i t  is unlawful  to ask the chai rman to 

do that  because I  have al ready agreed – I  have already put  a  

draf t  aff idavi t  and so Chai r  go back my f i rst  draf t  I  gave to 

this commission in 2019 – August  2019 I  am al ready wri t ing 

about my propert ies.    10 

I  never  Chai r  I  am not  hiding anything.   The 

commission was t ry ing to manipulate things and I  said no I  

st ick my ground I  refused and that  is why Chair  when he look 

back and I  spoke to some people wi thin the commission I  

asked how do you af ter I  have given a draf t  and make a 

commitment respond to al l  Rule 3.3 Not ices and al l  the 

al legat ions that  have been made against  me why would you 

go and ask the Chai r  to issue a 10.6?    

And I  said we are going to f ight  because I  am not  

going to accept  i t  and actual ly I  know what you guys are – 20 

because Chair  the commission’s legal  and invest igat ing 

teams they were t ry ing to impose – and they were t ry ing to 

get  certain things that  they want  for th is commission in 

respect  of  me.  And that  I  want 00:17:55 Chai r  was to refuse 

I  say we are going to put  the total  p icture so I  want to 
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answer these quest ions okay but  I  am going to at  var ious 

stops – stages ask the Chai r  wi th your  permission Chai r  

(speaking in vernacular) .   

Chair  can I  come in there because I  am giving this  

example Chai r  i f  you l isten to people l ike Montana has been 

paid a br ibe I  want to put  before the Chai r  th is property when 

I  bought i t  the wreck i t  was and the value by the bank – what  

work I  d id and what was the end product  and then ask.    

But  i f  I  am told I  do not  even know which neighbour 

te l ls Paul  O’Sul l ivan that  I  bought a property – that  th is 10 

property should have been R4.8 the neighbour who cannot  

even develop his own property yet  he can – he can provide 

an opinion on the value of  my property then this commission 

come and ask me and say no,  your property should have 

been R3.3.   Chai r  i t  is shocking.   But  I  leave i t  at  that  –  

answer the quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And then Chair  as long as you are admit  me 

where I  fee l  very st rongly on these things.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  No,  no that  is f ine.  20 

MR MONTANA:   And then you can correct  the facts you al low 

me to come in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   In that  respect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   How far  – how far are you and the legal  
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team to f inal is ing the annexures for the aff idavi t?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no tomorrow Chai r.   I  th ink we have now 

– we have even ident i f ied areas that  the commission should 

focus on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So Chai r  I  th ink we are one – I  th ink the 

f ight  is  gone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   ja.  

MR MONTANA:   We are no longer f ight ing – I  am here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR MONTANA:   I  wi l l  test i fy Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So tomorrow I  g ive them al l  the evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And then we move forth on that  basis Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The reason I  ask Mr Soni  you remember 

that  – and Mr Montana would remember that  I  d id say 

previously what we wi l l  do wi th the aff idavi t  once i t  has – i t  

is ready i t  is something we decide – that  I  wi l l  decide then 

because of  the t ime const raints.    20 

Now i f  Mr Montana’s assessment that  tomorrow 

whatever is lef t  we f inal ise – should be f ina l ised i f  that  is 

correct  then i t  may be that  al l  we need is that  i t  gets 

f inal ised tomorrow and then one can look at  i t  wi th  special  

reference to the sect ion relat ing to the propert ies and then 
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take i t  f rom there.    

I t  may wel l  be that  when his response to the issues of  

propert ies is looked at  is considered i t  may wel l  be that  i t  

might  be necessary to maybe do some further l imi ted 

invest igat ion of  some issues.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know.  Or i t  may be that  i t  is not  

necessary.   But  certainly in relat ion to propert ies I  – i t  is  

going to be important  that  or I  hear  what he has to say and 

as I  say I  want to hear when there is something in  wri t ing 10 

and then what one does wi th the balance of  the aff idavi t  

might  also be something to look at .    

I f  the posi t ion is that  the sect ion on the propert ies is 

– has got  to be deal t  wi th because that  is part  of  what he 

was asked to respond on but  maybe he is not  go ing to get  a 

chance to give al l  the evidence about other  matters that  has 

– the aff idavi t  i t  may wel l  be that  – you might  consider  

whether there should be a separate aff idavi t  that  just  

extracts f rom the – f rom his aff idavi t  the sect ion that  deals 

wi th propert ies you know.   20 

So – so i t  seems to me that  –  but  let  me f ind out  is i t  

your understanding too that  tomorrow the issue of  annexures 

and whatever in regard to his aff idavi t  might  be sorted out? 

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson let  me say I  have for var ious 

reasons have not  involved mysel f .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   In deal ings wi th Mr Montana outside the 

commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ms Gatanga is … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes do you want to f ind… 

ADV SONI SC:   Is  – they have arranged that  al ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  was supposed to happen on Fr iday i t  d id 

not .   As I  understand i t  that  is the arrangement for tomorrow.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh but  in terms of  whether i t  can be 

f inal ised the process can be f inal ised tomorrow?  Is she in  

agreement as wel l?  

ADV SONI SC:   She thinks by Wednesday Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   By Wednesday.   Okay.   In any event  that  is  

qui te close.  

ADV SONI SC:   Qui te close.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink ja.   So I  th ink therefore what we 

should do is not  move forward on the issue of  propert ies for  

now.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us get  that  part  sorted out  and then 

once I  have seen what he has got  to say on the propert ies 

then we can take i t  f rom there.   Okay.   Is  that  f ine Mr 

Montana? 
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MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  th ink i t  is fa i r  I  am happy wi th  

that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  is f ine.   Ja.   I  th ink what – what the 

effect  of  that  arrangement for present  purposes is therefore I  

guess that  i f  there are other matters but  I  th ink the – you 

know the Oel lermann document was the last .  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The one that  you wanted – ja so f rom your  

point  of  v iew you have nothing further.  

ADV SONI SC:   No nothing further Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   For today.  

ADV SONI SC:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And I  guess that  to the extent  that  

Mr Montana has throughout indicated that  he deals wi th  

certain th ings in h is aff idavi t  – in his aff idavi t  we cannot deal  

wi th those ei ther because the aff idavi t  must  st i l l  be f inal ised 

in terms of  annexures.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  being the case I  th ink i t  would 

mean we should adjourn on the understanding that  soon 20 

another date wi l l  be g iven maybe another evening and then 

we take i t  f rom there.   Is that  al r ight? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   We are at  seventeen minutes 

past  four so I  th ink let  us adjourn then and then we wi l l  
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ar range a date but  the sooner the process of  sort ing out  the 

annexures to his aff idavi t  is f inal ised the bet ter.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   I  th ink we adjourn.   Ja.   

Okay we are going to adjourn for the day.   We do not  have 

an evening session today.   We were going to probably have 

i t  i f  we were cont inuing wi th Mr Montana.   Tomorrow for the 

benef i t  of  the publ ic I  wi l l  be hear ing Mr Koko’s ev idence in 

regard to Eskom.  Ja.   Okay al r ight .   We adjourn.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai r.  10 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 4 MAY 2021 


